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This document (the "Base Prospectus") constitutes a base prospectus in respect of the Programme (as defined below). Any
Securities (as defined below) issued on or afier the date of this Base Prospectus are issued subject to the provisions herein. This
Base Prospectus constitutes a base prospectus for the purpose of Article 5.4 of Directive 2003/71/EC (the "Prospectus Directive”).
The Issuers have also prepared a registration document (the "Registration Document") for use in connection with the issue of
Securities under the Programme. Securities issued under the Programme by way of Registration Document shall be documented in a
Securities Note (the "Securities Note"), and, if applicable, a Summary (the "Summary"). The Registration Document and any
Securities Note and Summary prepared in connection therewith do not form part of this Base Prospectus.

Under the terms of the Note, Warrant and Certificate Programme (the "Programme"), Merrill Lynch S.A. ("MLSA") may from time
to time issue notes ("Notes") or certificates ("Certificates") and Mermill Lynch International & Co. C.V. ("MLICo." and, together
with MLSA, the "Issuers" and each an "Issuer") may from time to time issue Certificates or warrants ("Warrants" and, together
with Certificates, "W&C Securities", and W&C Securities together with Notes, "Seéurities"). Securities of any kind may be issued
including but not limited to Securities relating to a specified index or a basket of indices ("Index Linked Securities"), a specified
share or a basket of shares ("Share Linked Securities"), a specified debt instrument or a basket of debt instruments ("Debt Linked
Securities"), a specified GDR or ADR or basket of GDRs and/or ADRs ("GDR/ADR Linked Securities"), a specified currency or a
basket of currencies ("FX Linked Securities"), a specified commodity or commodity index or a basket of commodities and/or
commodity indices ("Commaodity Linked Securities"), a specified fund or basket of funds ("Fund Linked Securities"), a specified
inflation index or a basket of inflation indices ("Inflation Linked Securities") and, in the case of Notes and Certificates, the credit of
a specified entity or entities ("Credit Linked Notes and Certificates") or any combination of the foregoing. Securities may also
bear interest (in the case of Notes) or pay additional amounts (in the case of W&C Securities). Each issue of Notes will be issued on
the terms set out herein which are relevant to such Notes under "Terms and Conditions of the Notes" on pages 97 - 125 and the
Additional Terms and Conditions on pages 197 - 289 (the "Note Conditions") and each issue of Warrants and Certificates will be
issued on the terms set out herein which are relevant to such W&C Securities under "Terms and Conditions of the W&C Securities”
on pages 156 - 195 and the Additional Terms and Conditions on pages 197 - 297 (the "W&C Conditions") and, in each case, on
such additional terms as will be set out in the applicable Final Terms (the "Final Terms").

Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc. ("ML&Co.") has, in a guarantee dated 16th September, 2008 (the "Guarantee") irrevocably and
unconditionally guaranteed the payment and delivery obligations in respect of the Securities issued by each Issuer from time to time
under the Programme (see "Form of Guarantee" on page 298). The Guarantee will be governed by, and construed in accordance
with, the laws of the State of New York. The Securities will be governed by, and construed in accordance with English law.

The maximum aggregate nominal amount of all Notes from time to time outstanding under the Programme will not exceed
- EUR 15,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies), subject to increase as described herein, '

Application has been made to the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the "CSSF") in its capacity as competent
authority under the Luxembourg Act dated [0th July 2005 on prospectuses for securities to approve this document as a base
prospectus. Application has also been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange for Securities issued under the Programme to be
admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated market and to be listed on the Official List of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange.- The Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated market is a regulated market for the purposes of
Directive 2004/39/EC.  Application has also been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange for Securities issued under the
Programme to be admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's alternative market — Euro MTF — and to be listed on the
Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.



The Programme provides that Securities may be listed or admitted to trading, as the case may be, on such further or other stock
exchanges or niatkets as the relevant Issuer and the Dealer(s) may agree. The applicable Final Terms will specify whether or not the
Securities are to be listed on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and traded on the regulated market,'Euro MTF
and/or any other stock exchanges. The relevant Issuer may also issue unlisted Securmes and/or Secuntm not admntted to tradmg on
any market '

Any person (an "lnvestor") intending to acquire or acquiring any securities from any person (an "Offeror") should be aware. that in
the context of an offer of securities to the public as defined in the Prospectus Directive, the Issuer may be responsible to the Investor
for the Base Prospectus only if the Issuer is acting in association with that Offeror to make the offer to the Investor. Each Investor
should therefore verify with the Offeror whether or not the Offeror is acting in association with the Issuer. . If the Offeror is not acting
in association with the Issuer, the Investor should check with the Offeror whether anyone is responsible for the Base Prospectus for
the purposes of Article 6 of the Prospectus Directive as implemented by the national legislation of each. European Economic. Area
Member State in the context of the offer to the public, and, if so, who that person is. If the Investor is in any doubt about whether it
can rely on the Base Prospectus.and/or who is responsible for its contents it should take legal advice. :

The Securities, the Guarantee and, in certain cases, the Entitlement (as defined herein) have not been and will not be registered under
the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), or under any state securities laws and the Securities may
not be offered, sold, transferred, pledged, delivered, exercised or redeemed, directly or indirectly, at any time within the United States
or to, or for the account or benefit of, any U.S. person (as defined herein) except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction
not subject to, the registration requifemehts of the Securities Act. In addition, certain issues of Securities including all issues of
Notes and Certificates, and all Entitlements may not at any time be offered, sold or delivered in the United States or to, or for the
account or benefit of, U.S. Persons, nor may any U.S. persons at any time trade or maintain a position in such Securities. Neither
Issuer has registered as an investment company pursuant to the United States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the
"1940 Act") and the rules thereunder. MLICo., may offer and sell Warrants of certain issues within the United States or to, or for the
account or benefit of, U.S. persons exclusively to persons reasonably believed by MLICo., to be qualified institutional buyers (each a
"QIB") as defined in Rule 144A under the Securities Act ("Rule 144A") who are also each a qualified purchaser (each a "QP")
within the meaning of Section 3(c)(7) and as defined in Section 2(a)(51) of the 1940 Act and the rules thereunder and who have
executed an Investor Representation Letter (as defined herein) prior to acquiring any interest in the Warrants. Each purchaser of
Warrants being offered within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person is hereby notified that the offer
and sale of such Warrants is being made in reliance upon an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act and
the 1940 Act. In certain circumstances, exercise of Securities will be conditional upon certification as to non-U.S. beneficial
ownership or in the case of certain Series of Warrants that the holder (and any person on whose behalif the holder is acting) is a QIB
and a QP. See "Terms and Conditions of the W&C Securities" on pages 156 to 195 and "Additional Terms and Conditions for Rule
144A Warrants" on pages 290 - 297. Investors in the Securities will be deemed to have made or be required to make certain
representations and warranties in connection with purchasing the Securities. See "Notice to Purchasers and Holders of Secuntles and
Transfer Restrictions" on page 304, Warrants sold in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of U.S. persons .who are
QIBs and also QPs will be cash settled Warrants only and will, unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, be sold
through Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, which is a registered broker dealer in the United States.

For a description of certain further restrictions on offers and sales of the Securities and on the distribution of this Base Prospectus,
see "Offermg and Sale" on page 349. :

Each issue of Securities will be issued in the form set out in Form of the Securities on pages 55 - 59.

Prospective purchasers of Securities should ensure that they understand the nature of the relevant Securities and the extent
of their exposure to risks and that they consider the suitability of the relevant Securities as an investment in the light of their
own circumstances and financial condition. Securities involve a high degree of risk and potential investors should be
prepared to sustain a total loss of the purchase price of their Securities. See "Risk Factors' on pages 28 -49.

Dated 16th September, 2008
MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL




IMPORTANT NOTICES

This Base Prospectus has been approved by the CSSF as a Base Prospectus for the purposes of Article '
5.4 of the Prospectus Directive. This Base Prospectus is not a prospectus for purposes of Section
12(a)(2) or any other provision of or rule under the Securities Act.

Each of MLSA, MLICo. and ML&Co. (the "Responsible Persons") accepts responsibility for the
information contained in this Base Prospectus and to the best of the knowledge of the Responsible
_Persons (each having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information
contained in this Base Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to
affect the import of such information.

The previous paragraph should be read in conjunction with the first paragraph on the second page of
this Base Prospectus.

Subject as provided in the applicable Final Terms, the only persons authorised to use this Base
Prospectus in connection with an offer of Securities are the persons named in the applicable Final
Terms as the relevant Issuer or the relevant Dealer(s) or Manager(s) and the persons named in or
identifiable following the applicable Final Terms as the Financial Intermediaries, as the case may be.

AN INVESTOR INTENDING TO ACQUIRE OR ACQUIRING ANY SECURITIES FROM AN
OFFEROR WILL DO SO, AND OFFERS AND SALES OF THE SECURITIES TO AN INVESTOR
BY AN OFFEROR WILL BE MADE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANY TERMS AND OTHER
ARRANGEMENTS IN PLACE BETWEEN SUCH OFFEROR AND SUCH INVESTOR
INCLUDING AS TO PRICE, ALLOCATIONS AND SETTLEMENT ARRANGEMENTS. THE
RELEVANT ISSUER WILL NOT BE A PARTY TO ANY SUCH ARRANGEMENTS WITH
INVESTORS (OTHER THAN THE MANAGER(S) OR DEALER(S) (AS THE CASE MAY BE)), IN
CONNECTION WITH THE OFFER OR SALE OF THE SECURITIES AND, ACCORDINGLY,
THIS BASE PROSPECTUS AND ANY FINAL TERMS WILL NOT CONTAIN SUCH
INFORMATION. THE INVESTOR MUST LOOK TO THE OFFEROR AT THE TIME OF SUCH
OFFER FOR THE PROVISION OF SUCH INFORMATION. THE RELEVANT ISSUER HAS NO
RESPONSIBILITY TO AN INVESTOR IN RESPECT OF SUCH INFORMATION.

Information contained in this Base Prospectus which is sourced from a third party has been accurately
reproduced and, as far as each Issuer and ML&Co. is aware and is able to ascertain from information
published by the relevant third party, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced
information inaccurate or mlsleadmg Each Issuer has also identified the source(s) of such
information.

The applicable Final Terms will (if applicable) specify the nature of the responsibility taken by the
relevant Issuer and ML&Co. for the information relating to the underlying asset, index or other asset
or basis of reference to which the relevant Securities relate and which is contained in such Final Terms.

No person is or has been authorised by MLSA, MLICo., ML&Co. or Merrill Lynch International
("MLI") to give any information or to make any representation not contained in or not consistent with
this Base Prospectus or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme and, if
given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised
by MLSA, MLICo., ML&Co., MLI or any other Dealer of an issue of Securities. This document does
not constitute, and may not be used for the purposes of, an offer or solicitation by anyone in any
jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or to any person to whom it is unlawful
to make such offer or solicitation and no action is being taken to permit an offering of the Securities or
the distribution of this document in any jurisdiction where any such action is required.

This document is to be read and construed in conjunction with all documents which are deemed to be
incorporated herein by reference (see "Documents Incorporated by Reference" on page 9). This
document shall be read and construed on the basis that such documents are incorporated and form
part of this Base Prospectus.

The Securities of each issue may be sold by the relevant Issuer and/or any Dealer at such time and at
such prices as the relevant Issuer and/or the Dealer(s) may select. There is no obligation upon the



relevant Issuer or any Dealer to sell all of the Securltles of any issue. The Securltles of any issue may
be offered or sold from time to time in one or more transactions in the over-the-counter market or
otherwise at prevallmg market prices or in negotiated transactions, at the discretion of the relevant
Issuer.

Subject as provided in the Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the Terms and Conditions of the
W&C Securities, as apphcable, each Issuer shall have complete discretion as to what type of Securltles
lt issues and when.

The Dealers have not mdependently verified the information contained hereln. Accordiugly, no
representatlou, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibility or liability
is accepted by any Dealer as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in this Base
Prospectus or any other information provided by MLSA, MLICo. and/or ML&Co. No Dealer accepts
any liability in relation to the information contained or incorporated by reference in. this Base .
Prospectus or any other mformatlon provided by MLSA, MLICo. and/or ML&Co. in connection with
the Programme.

Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or
any Securities (a) is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or (b) should be
considered as a recommendation by MLSA, MLICo., ML&Co. or any Dealer that any recipient of this
Base 'Prospectus or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or any
Securities should purchase any Securities. Each investor contemplating purchasing any Securities
should make its own independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs, and its own
appraisal of the creditworthiness, of the relevant Issuer and ML&Co. Neither this Base Prospectus nor
any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or any issue of Securities
constitutes an offer or an invitation by or on behalf of MLSA, MLICo ML&Co. or any Dealer or auy
other person to subscribe for or to purchase any Securities.

Neither the dehvery of this Base Prospectus nor the offering, sale or dehvery of any Securities shall in
any circumstances imply that the information contained herein concerning MLSA, MLICo. and
ML&Co. is correct at any time subsequent to the date hereof or that any other information supphed in
connection ‘with the Programme. is correct as of any time subsequent to the date indicated in the
document containing the same. No Dealer undertakes to review the financial condition or affairs of
MLSA, MLICo. and/or ML&Co. during the life of the Programme or to advise auy investor in the
Securities of any information coming to their attention.

This Base Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any
Securities in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation in
such jurisdiction. The distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of Securities may be
restricted by law in certain jurisdictions. None of MLSA, MLICo., ML&Co. or any Dealer represents
that this Base Prospectus may be lawfully distributed, or that any Securities may be lawfully offered,
in compliance with any applicable registration or other requirements in any jurisdiction, or pursuant
to an exemption available thereunder, or assume any responsibility for facilitating any such
distribution or offer. In particular, unless specifically indicated to the contrary in the applicable Final
Terms, no action has been taken by MLSA, MLICo., ML&Co. or any Dealer which is intended to
permit a public offering of any Securities or distribution of this document in any jurisdiction where
action for that purpose is required. Accordingly, no Securities may be offered or sold, directly or
indirectly, and neither this Base Prospectus nor any advertisement or other offering material may be
distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliance
with any applicable laws and regulations. Persons into whose possession this Base Prospectus or any
Securities may come must inform themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions on the
distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offering and sale of Securities. In particular, there are
restrictions on the distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of Securities in the United
States, the European Economic Area (including Luxembourg, the United Kingdom, France and Italy),
Japan, Singapore and the Netherlands Antilles (see "Offering and Sale" on page 349). In particular,
the Securities, the Guarantee and, in certain cases, the Entitlement to be delivered upon exercise of the
Securities, have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act.



NOTICE TO NEW HAMPSHIRE RESIDENTS

NEITHER THE FACT THAT A REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR AN APPLICATION FOR A
LICENSE HAS BEEN FILED UNDER CHAPTER 421-B OF THE NEW HAMPSHIRE REVISED .
STATUTES WITH THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE NOR THE FACT THAT A SECURITY IS
EFFECTIVELY REGISTERED OR A PERSON IS LICENSED IN THE STATE OF NEW
HAMPSHIRE CONSTITUTES A FINDING BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF NEW
HAMPSHIRE THAT ANY DOCUMENT FILED UNDER CHAPTER 421-B IS TRUE, COMPLETE
AND NOT MISLEADING:. NEITHER ANY SUCH FACT NOR THE FACT THAT AN EXEMPTION
OR EXCEPTION IS AVAILABLE FOR A SECURITY OR A TRANSACTION MEANS THAT THE
SECRETARY OF STATE HAS PASSED IN ANY WAY UPON THE MERITS OR
QUALIFICATIONS OF, OR RECOMMENDED OR GIVEN APPROVAL TO, ANY PERSON,

SECURITY OR TRANSACTION. IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE, OR CAUSE TO BE MADE, TO
ANY PROSPECTIVE PURCHASER, CUSTOMER OR CLIENT ANY REPRESENTATION
INCONSISTENT WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PARAGRAPH.

This Base Prospectus has been prepared on the basis that, except to the extent sub-paragraph (b)
below may apply, any offer of Securities in any Member State of the European Economic Area which
has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a "Relevant Member State") will be made pursuant
to an exemption under the Prospectus Directive, as implemented in that Relevant Member State, from
the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of Securities. Accordingly any person making or
intending to make an offer in that Relevant Member State of Securities which are the subject of an
offering contemplated in this Base Prospectus as completed by final terms in relation to the offer of
those Securities may only do so (a) in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the relevant
Issuer or any Dealer to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or
supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive, in each case, in relation to
such offer, or (b) if a prospectus for such offer has been approved by the competent authority in that
Relevant Member State or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and
notified to the competent authority in that Relevant Member State and (in either case) published, all in
accordance with the Prospectus Directive, provided that any such prospectus has subsequently been
completed by final terms which specify that offers may be made other than pursuant to Article 3(2) of
the Prospectus Directive in that Relevant Member State and such offer is made in the period beginning
and ending on the dates specified for such purpose in such prospectus or final terms, as applicable.
Except to the extent sub-paragraph (b) above may apply, neither the relevant Issuer nor any Dealer
have authorised, nor do they authorise, the making of any offer of Securities in circumstances in which
an obligation arises for the relevant Issuer or any Dealer to publish or supplement a prospectus for
- such offer.

Seécurities in bearer form are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or
delivered within the United States or its possessions or to United States persons, except in certain
transactions permitted by U.S. tax regulations. Unless otherwise noted, as used in this Base
Prospectus, "United States" means the United States of America (including the States and District of
Columbia) and its possessions and ""United States person" has the meaning given to it by the United
States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and the U.S. Treasury regulations
thereunder, including U.S. Treasury Regulation Section 1.163-5(c)(2)(i)(D).

Certificates or Notes, or interests therein, may not at any time be offered, sold, resold or delivered,
directly or indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons and any
offer, sale, resale, trade or delivery made, directly or indirectly, within the United States or to, or for
the account or benefit of, a U.S. person will not be recognised.

Warrants have not been approved or dlsapproved by the United States Securities and Exchange ‘
Commission or any other securities commission or other regulatory authority in the United States, nor
have the foregoing authorities reviewed or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this Base
Prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States. The .
Warrants have not been approved by the Commodity Futures Trading Commlsslon under the United
States Commodity Exchange Act of 1936, as amended.



This Base Prospectus is being submitted on a confidential basis in the United States to a limited
number of QIBs who are also QPs for informational use solely in connection with the consideration of
the purchase of the Warrants. It may not be copied or reproduced in whole or in part nor may it be
distributed or any of its contents disclosed to anyone other than the prospective investors to whom it is
originally submitted.

Each purchaser or holder of interests in the Warrants will be deemed, by its acceptance or purchase of
any such Warrants, to have made certain representations and agreements as set out in "Offering and
Sale".

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, each holder and beneficial owner'of the
Securities (and each employee, representative, or other agent of each holder and beneficial owner of
the Securities) may disclose to any and all persons, without limitation of any kind, the tax treatment
and tax structure of the transactions described herein and all materials of any kind that are provided
to the holder or beneficial owner of the Securities relating to such tax treatment and tax structure (as
such terms are defined in U.S. Treasury Regulation Section 1.6011-4).. This authorisation of tax
disclosure is retroactively effective to the commencement of discussions with holders or beneficial
owners of the Securities regarding the transactions contemplated herein.

Each of MLSA or MLICo. has not investigated, and does not or may not have access to information
that would permit it to ascertain, whether any company which has issued equity, debt or other
instruments to which any Securities relate is for U.S. tax purposes a passive foreign investment
company, a controlled foreign corporation, a publicly-traded partnership or other type of pass-
through entity, Prospective investors in any Securities that are U.S. taxpayers should consult their
own advisers concerning U.S. tax considerations relevant to an investment in such Securities.

In this Base Prospectus, references to "USS$", "$" and "U.S. dollars" are to United States Dollars,
references to ""Singapore Dollar" and "S$" are to Singapore Dollars and references to "euro'" and "€"
are to the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary
union pursuant to the Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended by the Treaty on
European Union.

In connection with the issue of any Series of Notes, the Dealer or Dealers (if any) named as the
Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in the applicable
Final Terms may over-allot Notes or effect transactions with a view to supporting the market price of
the Notes at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail. However, there is no assurance
that the Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of a Stabilising Manager) will undertake
stabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may begin on or after the date on which adequate public
disclosure of the terms of the offer of the relevant Series of Notes is made and, if begun, may be ended
at any time, but it must end no later than the earlier of 30 days after the issue date of the relevant
Series of Notes and 60 days after the date of the allotment of the relevant Series of Notes. Any
stabilisation action or over-allotment must be conducted by the relevant Stabilising Manager(s) (or
persons acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in accordance with all applicable laws and
rules.
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

ML&Co. is subject to the informational requirements of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (the "Exchange Act"), and, in accordance therewith, files reports and other information with the
United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission"). Such reports and other
information concerning ML&Co. can be inspected and copied at the public reference facilities maintained by
the Commission in the Public Reference Room, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Information on
the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330.
The Commission maintains a Web site that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other
‘materials that are filed through the Commission's Electronic Data Gathering Analysis and Retrieval System.
The Web site can be accessed at http://www.sec.gov. In addition, similar information concerning ML&Co.
can be inspected at the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents, which have previously been published and have been filed with the CSSF shall be
deemed to be incorporated in, and to form part of, this Base Prospectus:

(@)

®

()

the terms and conditions of the Notes contained in the listing particulars of MLSA dated 1st April,
2003 (the "2003 MLSA EMTN Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Notes contained in
the listing particulars of MLSA dated 2nd April, 2004 (the "2004 MLSA EMTN Conditions"), the
terms and conditions of the Notes contained in the listing particulars of MLSA dated 1st April, 2005
(the "April 2005 MLSA EMTN Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Notes contained in
the base prospectus of MLSA dated 30th September, 2005 (the "September 2005 MLSA EMTN
Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Notes contained in the base prospectus of MLSA
dated 10th May, 2006 (the "2006 MLSA EMTN Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the
Notes contained in the base prospectus of MLSA dated 2nd April, 2007 (the "2007 MLSA EMTN
Conditions") and the terms and conditions of the Notes contained in the base prospectus of MLSA
dated 1st April, 2008 (the "2008 MLSA EMTN Conditions", and together with the 2003 MLSA
EMTN Conditions, the 2004 MLSA EMTN Conditions, the April 2005 MLSA EMTN Conditions,
the September 2005 MLSA EMTN Conditions, the 2006 MLSA EMTN Conditions and the 2007
MLSA EMTN Conditions, the "MLSA EMTN Previous Conditions");

the terms and conditions of the Warrants contained in the offering circular of MLICo. dated
13th August, 2003 (the "2003 MLICo. Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Warrants
contained in the offering circular of MLICo. dated 20th August, 2004 (the "2004 MLICo.
Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Warrants contained in the offering circular of MLICo.
dated 3rd November, 2005 (the "2005 MLICo. Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the
Warrants and Certificates contained in the offering circular of MLICo. dated 9th February, 2007 (the
"February 2007 MLICo. Conditions"), the terms and conditions (the "September 2007 MLICo.
Conditions") of the Warrants and Certificates contained in the offering circular of MLICo. dated
28th September, 2007. (the "September 2007 MLICo. Offering Circular"), the terms and
conditions of the Warrants and Certificates contained in the supplement to the September 2007
MLICo. Offering Circular dated 29th November, 2007 (the "November 2007 MLICo.
Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Warrants and Certificates contained in the supplement
to the September 2007 MLICo. Offering Circular dated 23rd April, 2008 (the "April 2008 MLICo.
Conditions") and the terms and conditions of the Warrants and Certificates contained in the
supplement to the September 2007 MLICo. Offering Circular dated 15th July, 2008 (the "July 2008
MLICo. Conditions" and, together with the 2003 MLICo. Conditions, the 2004 MLICo. Conditions,
the 2005 MLICo. Conditions, the February 2007 MLICo. Conditions, the September 2007 MLICo.
Conditions, the November 2007 MLICo. Conditions and the April 2008 MLICo. Conditions, the
"MLICo. Previous Conditions");

the terms and conditions of the Certificates contained in the information memorandum of MLSA
dated 25th April, 2005 (the "2005 MLSA Certificate Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the
Certificates contained in the information memorandum of MLSA dated 24th March, 2006 (the "2006
MLSA Certificate Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Certificates contained in the
information memorandum of MLSA dated 17th January, 2007 (the "January 2007 MLSA
Certificate Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Certificates (the "September 2007 MLSA
Certificate Conditions") contained in the information memorandum of MLSA dated
27th September, 2007 (the "September 2007 MLSA Information Memorandum"), the terms and
conditions of the Certificates contained in the supplement to the September 2007 MLSA Information
Memorandum dated 29th October, 2007 (the "October 2007 MLSA Certificate Conditions"), the
terms and conditions of the Certificates contained in the supplement to the September 2007 MLSA
Information Memorandum dated 15th July, 2008 (the "15th July 2008 MLSA Certificate
Conditions") and the terms and conditions of the Certificates contained in the supplement to the
September 2007 MLSA Information Memorandum dated 24th July, 2008 (the "24th July 2008
MLSA Certificate Conditions" and, together with the 2005 MLSA Certificate Conditions, the 2006
MLSA Certificate Conditions, the January 2007 MLSA Certificate Conditions, the September 2007
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MLSA Certificate Conditions, the October 2007 MLSA Certificate Conditions and the 15th July
2008 MLSA Certificate Conditions, the "MLLSA Certificate Previous Conditions");

ML&Co.'s 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 28th December, 2007 (the "2007
Annual Report") (excluding the documents listed as Exhibits on pages E-1 to E-4 (Exhibit Index)
except for Exhibit 99.8), which includes the audited consolidated balance sheets of ML&Co. and its
subsidiaries as of 28th December, 2007 and 29th December, 2006, and the related consolidated
statements of (loss)/earnings, changes in stockholders' equity, comprehensive (loss)/income and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended 28th December, 2007, the financial statement
schedule (listed as Exhibit 99.8) and the auditors' reports dated 25th February, 2008. thereon (the
"2007 Auditors' Report");

ML&Co.'s 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 29th December, 2006 (the "2006
Annual Report") (excluding the documents listed as Exhibits on pages E-1 to E-4 (Exhibit Index)
except for Exhibit 99.9), which includes the audited consolidated balance sheets of the ML&Co. and
its subsidiaries as of 29th December, 2006 and 30th December, 2005, and the related consolidated
statements of earnings, changes in stockholders' equity, comprehensive income and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended 29th December, 2006, the financial statement schedule
(listed as Exhibit 99.9) and the auditors' reports dated 26th February, 2007 thereon (the "2006
Auditors' Report");

ML&Co.'s 2008 Proxy Statement dated 14th March, 2008 in connection with its Annual Meetmg of

- Shareholders (the "Proxy Statement");

ML&Co.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended 28th March, 2008
(excluding the documents listed as Exhibits on pages 130 to 131 (Index to Exh1b1ts)) (the "May 2008
Quarterly Report");

ML&Co.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q excluding Exhibits 3.1 to 10.3, 99.1 and 99.2 thereto for
the quarterly period ended 27th June, 2008 (the "August 2008 Quarterly Report");

ML&Co.’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated 21st February, 2008 and filed on 25th February, 2008,

" in relation to restatements of ML&Co.'s cash flows for each of the years ended 30th December, 2005

and 29th December, 2006 and the first, second and third quarters of 2007 (the "February 2008
Current Report");

ML&Co.'s Current Report on Form 8-K dated 17th April, 2008 and filed on 17th April, 2008, in
relation to its results 'of operations for the three-month period ended 28th March, 2008, which
includes Exhibits 99.1 and 99.2 thereto (excluding the last paragraph on page 7 of Exhibit 99.1)
(the "April 2008 Current Report");

ML&Co.'s Current Report on Form 8-K dated 28th April, 2008 and filed on 2nd May, 2008, in
relation to the appointment of Thomas K. Montag as Executive Vice President and Head of Global
Sales and Trading, which includes Exhibits 10.1, 10.2, 10.3 and 99.1 thereto (excluding the last
paragraph on the second page of Exhibit 99.1) (the "May 2008 Current Report");

ML&Co.'s Current Report on Form 8-K dated 17th July, 2008 and filed on 17th July, 2008, in
relation to its results of operations for the three- and six-month periods ended 27th June, 2008, which
includes Exhibits 99.1 and 99.2 thereto (excluding the second paragraph on page 9 of Exhibit 99.1
and that the reference to Form 8-K in the first paragraph on page 10 of Exhibit 99.1 shall be deemed
to refer solely to the Current Reports on Form 8-K dated 17th April, 2008, 28th April, 2008 (and
filed on 2nd May, 2008) and the 17th July 2008 Current Report) (the "17th July 2008 Current
Report");

ML&Co.'s Current Report on Form 8-K dated 28th July, 2008 and filed on 29th July, 2008, in
relation to a press release dated 28th July, 2008, which includes Exhibits 99.1 and 99.2 thereto
(excluding the first paragraph on page 4 of Exhibit 99.1 and that the reference to Form 8-K in the
first paragraph on page 5 of Exhibit 99.1 shall be deemed to refer solely to the Current Reports on
Form 8-K dated 17th April, 2008, 28th April, 2008 (and filed on 2nd May, 2008), 17th July, 2008
and the 29th July 2008 Current Report) (the "29th July 2008 Current Report");
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ML&Co.'s Current Report on Form 8-K dated 7th August, 2008 and filed on 8th August, 2008, in
relation to a press release dated 8th August, 2008, which includes Exhibits 99.1 thereto (excluding
the last paragraph on page 2 of Exhibit 99.1 (the "August 2008 Current Report");

ML&Co.'s Current Report on Form 8-K dated 3rd September, 2008 and filed on 4th September,
2008, in relation to a press release dated 4th September 2008, which includes Exhibits 99.1 thereto
(excluding the last paragraph on page 2 of Exhibit 99.1 (the "4th September 2008 Current
Report");

ML&Co.'s Current Report on Form 8-K dated 14th September, 2008 and filed on 15th September,
2008 in relation to a press release dated 15th September, 2008 (the "15th September 2008 Current
Report");

MLSA's audited financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2006 and the auditor's report
dated 22nd March, 2007 thereon (the "MILSA 2006 Accounts") and for the year ended
31st December, 2007 and the auditor's report dated 20th March 2008 thereon (the "MLSA 2007
Accounts"); and

MLICo.'s financial statements (including the auditors' report and the notes to the accounts) for the
years ended 2006 (the "MLICo. 2006 Accounts") and 2007 (the "MLICo. 2007 Accounts").

To the extent that this document is used in connection with an issue or offering of Securities under the
Programme in circumstances where the Prospectus Directive does not apply, the following documents, which
may be produced or issued from time to time after the date hereof, shall upon publication be deemed to form
part of this document. For the avoidance of doubt, such documents will not form part of this Base
Prospectus for the purpose of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive:

®

(i)

the most recent annual report on Form 10-K and proxy statement of ML&Co. filed with the United
States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission"); and

any other reports filed by the ML&Co. with the Commission pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c) 14 or
15(d) of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") and
the rules and regulations thereunder subsequent to the date of the financial statements included in the -
annual report on Form 10-K referred to in sub-paragraph (d) above including, without limitation, any
quarterly report on Form 10-Q.

1
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Transactions

May 2008 Quarterly Report

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended 28th March, 2008

Part I - Item 1. Financial Statements (unaudited)

Part I - Item 1. Financial Statements (unaudited) -
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements -

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm ‘

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Part Il - Other Information — Item 1. Legal
Proceedings

August 2008 Quarterly Report

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended 27th June, 2008 ‘

Part1-Item 1. Fz‘nanciql Statements (unaudited)

Part I - Item 1. Financial Statements
(unaudited) - Notes to Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm o

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Part II - Other Information - Item 1. Legal
Proceedings

February 2008 Current Report

Current Report on Form 8-K dated 21st February,
2008 and filed on 25th February, 2008

April 2008 Current Report

Current Report on Form 8-K dated 17th April, 2008
and filed on 17th April, 2008

Exhibit 99.1

All
pages 4-8

pages 9-63

page 64

pages 65-123

page 88

pages 124-125

All
Pages 4-9

Pages 10-70

Page 71

Pages 72-137
Page 99
Pages 138-140

All

All

Exhibit 99.1
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Exhibit 99.2

May 2008 Current Report

Current Report on Form 8-K dated 28th April, 2008
and filed on 2nd May, 2008

17th July 2008 Current Report

Current Report on Form 8-K dated 17th July, 2008 and
filed on 17th July, 2008

Exhibit 99.1
Exhibit 99.2

29th July 2008 Current Report

Current Report on Form 8-K dated 28th July, 2008 and
Jiled on 29th July, 2008

Exhibit 99.1

Exhibit 99.2

August 2008 Current Report

Current Report on Form 8-K dated 7th August, 2008 and
filed on 8th August, 2008

The press release dated 7th August, 2008, which is filed
as Exhibit 99.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated
7th August, 2008 and filed on 8th August, 2008, referred
to above

4th September 2008 Current Report

Current Report on Form 8-K dated 3rd September, 2008
and filed on 4th September, 2008 '

The press release dated 4th September, 2008, which is
Jiled as Exhibit 99.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
dated 3rd September, 2008 and filed on 4th September,
2008, referred to above

15th September 2008 Current Report -

Current Report on Form 8-K dated 14th September
2008 and filed on 15th September, 2008

MLSA 2006 Accounts
Auditor's Report
Balance Sheet

Profit and Loss Account

Exhibit 99.2

All

All

Exhibit 99.1

- Exhibit 99.2

Al

Exhibit 99.1

Exhibit 99.2

All

Exhibit 99.1

All

Exhibit 99.1

Al

pages 1-2
page 3
page 4
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A4.82
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Notes to the Accounts pages 5-16 A4.13.1

Cash Flow Statement page 16 A4.13.1
MLSA 2007 Accounts

Auditors’ Report ' pages 1-2 A4.13.1
Balance Sheet page 3 A4.13.1
Profit and Loss Account page 4 A4.13.1
Notes to the Accounts pages 5-16 A4.13.1
Cash Flow Statement page 16 A4.13.1

MLICo. 2006 Accounts

General Partner's Annual Report pages 1-2 A4.13.1
Independent Auditors’ Report to the General Partner  pages 3-4 A4.1 3 1
Profit and Loss Account page 5 A4.13.1
Balance Sheet ‘ page 6 A4.13.1
Note to the Financial Statements pages 7-19 A4.13.1

MLICo. 2007 Accounts

General Partner's Annual Report pages 1-2 A4.13.1
Independent Auditors’ Report to the General Partner ~ pages 3-4 A4.13.1
Profit and Loss Account ‘ page 5 A4.13.1
Balance Sheet page 6 ' A4.13.1
Cash Flow Statement page 7 A4.13.1
Note to the Financial Statements page 8-23 A4.13.1

For the purposes of Article 28.4 of Commission Regulation (EC) No 809/2004, any non-incorporated parts of
a document referred to herein are either deemed not relevant for an investor or are otherwise covered
elsewhere in this Base Prospectus.

Following publication of this Base Prospectus a supplement may be prepared by the Issuers and ML&Co.
and approved by the CSSF in accordance with Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive. Statements contained
in any such supplement (or contained in any document incorporated by reference thetein) shall, to the extent
applicable (whether expressly, by unphcatnon or otherwise), be deemed to modify or supersede statements
contained in the Base Prospectus or in a document which is incorporated by reference in this Base
Prospectus. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not, except as so modified or superseded,
constitute a part of this Base Prospectus.

Copies of documents incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus will be made available, free of
charge, at the offices of the Principal Security Agents. Requests for such documents should be directed to
any Principal Security Agent at its specified office. Copies of documents incorporated by reference in their
Base Prospectus will also be available on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange website (www.bourse.lu). Copies
of documents incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus can also be obtained from the ML&Co.'s
Corporate Secretary's office at 222 Broadway, 17th Floor, New York, New York, 10038-2510, USA.

The Issuers and ML&Co. will, in the event of any significant new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy
relating to information included in this Base Prospectus which is capable of affecting the assessment of any

16
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Securities, prepare a supplement to this Base Prospectus or publish a new Base Prospectus for use in
connection with any subsequent issue of Securities.
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SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME

This summary must be read as an introduction to this Base Prospectus. Any decision to invest in any
Securities should be based on a consideration of this Base Prospectus as a whole, including the
documents incorporated by reference. Following the implementation of the relevant provisions of the
Prospectus Directive in each Member State of the European Economic Area, no civil liability will
attach to the Responsible Persons in any such Member State in respect of this Summary, including any
translation thereof, unless it is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the
other parts of this Base Prospectus. Where a claim relating to information contained in this Base
Prospectus is brought before a court in a Member State of the European Economic Area, the plaintiff
may, under the national legislation of the Member State where the claim is brought, be required to
bear the costs of translating the Base Prospectus before the legal proceedings are initiated.

Words and expressions defined in the "Terms and Conditions of the Notes" or in the "Terms and Conditions
of the W&C Securities” as applicable and in the remainder of this Base Prospectus shall have the same
meanings in this summary. MLSA may issue Notes and Certificates and MLICo. may issue Warrants and
Certificates. Notes, Certificates and Warrants are together referred to as "Securities”.

Issuers: Merrill Lynch S.A. ("MLSA")
Merrill Lynch International & Co C.V. ("MLICo.")

Guarantor: Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc. ("ML&Co.")

Description: ' Note, Warrant and Certificate Programme

Guarantee: The Securities are unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by
ML&Co. upon and subject to the terms set out in the Guarantee.

Calculation Agent: Merrill Lynch International or such other calculation agent specified in
the applicable Final Terms.

Arranger: Merrill Lynch International

In respect of Notes:

Issuer: MLSA

Dealers: Merrill Lynch International

Merrill Lynch Capital Markets AG.
Merrill Lynch (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
Notes may also be issued to other dealers and third parties.

Maximum nominal amount of Up to EUR 15,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies)
Notes which may be issued under

the Programme;

Principal Paying Agent: Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch

Issue Price: Notes may be issued on a fully-paid or partly-paid basis at an issue
price which is at par or a discount to, or a premium over, par.

Terms of Notes: Notes may be dendminated in any currency specified in the relevant

- Final Terms with any agreed maturity, subject to compliance with all
applicable legal and/or regulatory restrictions. Notes with maturities of
183 days or less will have a minimum denomination of US$500,000
(or its equivalent in other currencies).
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Physical Delivery Notes:

Negative Pledge:

Events of Default:

Taxation:

Notes may: (i) bear interest at a fixed or floating rate; (ii) not bear
interest; (iii) bear interest and/or provide that the redemption amount is

~ calculated by reference to one or more specified underlying assets or

bases of reference such as indices (including equity, bond, commodity
or inflation indices), currency exchange rates, shares (including GDRs
and/or ADRs), fund shares or units, commodities or the credit of one or
more underlying entities; (iv) be redeemed by physical delivery
("Physical Delivery Notes") of specified asset(s) (each such
underlying asset or basis of reference, a "Reference Item" and any
Reference Item Linked Notes, "Reference Item Linked Securities"),
(v) reference any combination of the foregoing; and/or (vi) have such
other terms and conditions as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Interest periods, interest rates and the terms of and/or amounts payable
on redemption will be specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The Final Terms will indicate either that the relevant Notes may not be
redeemed prior to their stated maturity (other than in specified
instalments, (if applicable); for taxation reasons, following an Event of
Default and acceleration of the Notes, or (if applicable) following an
Additional Disruption Event), or that such Notes will be redeemable at
the option of the Issuer and/or the Noteholders.

In order to receive the relevant asset(s), a Noteholder must deliver an
Asset Transfer Notice on or prior to a specified cut-off time and pay all
taxes, duties and/or expenses arising from delivery. For certain
Reference Item Linked Notes, if certain disruption events occur on
settlement, the relevant settlement date may be postponed and in
certain circumstances the Issuer will be entitled to make payment of a
cash amount in lieu of physical delivery.

The Guarantee provides that, in the case of Physical Delivery Notes,
ML&Co. will have the right to elect not to make physical delivery, but
rather to pay cash as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Terms of the Notes contain a negative pledge provision relating to
indebtedness for borrowed money of ML&Co. or its subsidiaries
secured by a pledge of, lien on or security interest in certain types of
stock of certain subsidiaries.

Terms of the Notes contain, among others, events of default covering
non-payment or non-delivery and relating to the insolvency of the
Issuer and ML&Co.

The Issuer or the Guarantor will, subject to certain limitations and
exceptions (set forth in Condition 7 of the Terms and Conditions of the
Notes), pay to Noteholders who are United States Aliens or a
Luxembourg Non-resident (each as defined in Condition 7 of the
Terms and Conditions of the Notes) such additional amounts as may be
necessary so that every net payment of principal or interest or other
amount with respect to the Notes or the Guarantee after deduction or
withholding for or on account of any present or future tax, assessment
or other governmental charge imposed upon such Noteholders or by
reason of the making of such payment, by the United States or
Luxembourg or any political subdivision or taxing authority of or in
the United States or Luxembourg, as the case may be, and will not be
less than the amount provided for in the Notes or the Guarantee to be
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In respect of W&C Securities:

Issuers:

Dealer:

Principal Security Agent (for
Warrants and Certificates issued
by MLICo.):

Principal Security Agent (for
Certificates issued by MLSA):

Issue Price:

Terms of W&C Securities:

Settlement:

Exercise Rights:

then due and payable, except as provided in Condition 7 of the Terms
and Conditions of the Notes.

MLSA (in respect of Certificates only)

MLICo. (in respect of Warrants and Certificates)
Merrill Lynch International

The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch

BNP Paribas Securities Services S.A., Frankfurt Branch

Securities may be issued at such price as shall be determined by the
relevant Issuer or Manager appointed in respect of the issue.

MLSA may from time to time issue Certificates and MLICo. may from
time to time issue Warrants and Certificates of any kind, including but
not limited to Warrants or Certificates linked to one or more underlying
assets or bases of reference such as indices (including equity, bond,
commodity or inflation indices), currency exchange rates, shares
(including GDRs and/or ADRs), fund shares or units, commodities or
(in the case of Certificates) the credit of one or more underlying
entities (each such underlying asset or basis of reference, a "Reference
Item" and any Reference Item linked W&C Securities, "Reference
Item Linked Securities") or any combination of the foregoing and on
such terms as may be determined by the relevant Issuer and specified
in the applicable Final Terms. ’ '

W&C Securities may or may not pay additional amounts as specified
in the applicable Final Terms.

Settlement may be by way of cash payment ("Cash Settled") or
physical delivery ("Physical Delivery"). Warrants sold in the United
States or to, or for the account or benefit of U.S. persons who are QIBs
and also QPs, and Swedish Securities, will be Cash Settled only. For
certain Physical Delivery W&C Securities, if certain disruption events
occur on settlement, the relevant settlement date may be postponed and
in certain circumstances the relevant Issuer will be entitled to make
payment of a cash amount in lieu of physical delivery.

The Guarantee provides that, in the case of Physical Delivery W&C
Securities, ML&Co. will have the right to elect not to make physical
delivery, but rather to pay cash as specified in the apphcable Final
Terms.

European Style Warrants are only exercisable on the Exercise Date.

American Style Warrants are exercisable on any Exercise Business Day
during the Exercise Period.

The applicable Final Terms will specify whether or not Warrants will
be automatically exercised.
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Expenses and Taxation:

Reference Item Linked
Securities

Index Linked Securities:

Share Linked Securities:

The applicable Final Terms will specify if Warrants may be
automatically exercised early (as a result of an Issuer Call, a mandatory
early exercise or Holder put).

Certificates will be automatically exercised on the Exercise Date. In

the case of Physical Delivery Certificates in order to receive the

Entitlement in respect of a Certificate, the Holder must deliver a
Collection Notice prior to a specified cut-off time and pay all taxes,
duties and/or expenses arising from such delivery.

The applicable Final Terms will specify if the Exercise Date for
Certificates may be brought forward (as a result of an Issuer Call, a
mandatory early exercise or a Holder put).

A holder of a W&C Security must pay all taxes, duties and/or expenses
arising from the exercise and settlement of such W&C Security and/or
if applicable, delivery of the Entitlement. The Issuer shall not be liable
for tax, duty, withholding or other payment which may arise as a result
of the ownership, transfer, exercise or enforcement of any W&C
Security and all payments will be made subject to any such tax, duty,
withholding or other payment.

Amounts payable in respect of Index Linked Securities will be
calculated by reference to one or more Indices. The index may
reference or comprise reference equities, bonds, property, curréncy
exchange rates or other assets or bases of reference.

Index Linked Securities may be subject to early redemption or
cancellation, as applicable, or adjustment if an Index is modified or
cancelled and there is no successor index acceptable to the Calculation
Agent, if the Index's Sponsor fails to calculate and announce the Index,
if certain market disruption events occur, or if certain events (such as
illegality, disruptions or cost increases) occur with respect to the
relevant Issuer's or any Affiliate's hedging arrangements.

If certain disruption events occur with respect to valuation of an Index
such valuation will be postponed and may be made by the Calculation
Agent. Payments may also be postponed.

Amounts payable in respect of Share Linked Securities will be -
calculated by reference to a single share or basket of shares. Share
Linked Securities may also provide for settlement by physical delivery
of a specified amount of shares of one or more companies, subject to
payment of the Exercise Price (in case of Warrants) and any other sums
payable.

Share Linked Securities may, at the discretion of the relevant Issuer, be
subject to early redemption or cancellation, as applicable, or
adjustment (including valuation and in certain circumstances Share
substitutions) if certain corporate events (such as events affecting the
value of a Share (including Share divisions or consolidations,
extraordinary dividends and capital calls), de-listing of a Share,
insolvency, merger or nationalisation of a Share issuer; a tender offer
or redenomination of a Share) occur, if certain events (such as
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Debt Linked Securities:

GDR/ADR Linked Securities:

FX Linked Securities:

Commodity Linked Securities:

illegality, disruptions or cost increases) occur with respeét to ‘the
relevant Issuer's and/or any Affiliate's hedging arrangements, or if
insolvency filings are made with respect to a Share issuer. ‘

If certain disruption events occur with respect to valuation of a Share,
such valuation will be postponed and may be made by the Calculation
Agent. Payments may also be postponed. '

Amounts payable in respect of Debt Linked Securities will be
calculated by reference to a single debt instrument or basket of debt
instruments. Debt Linked Securities may also provide for settlement
by physical delivery of a specified amount of debt instruments of one
or more issuers, as applicable, subject to payment of the relevant
Exercise Price (in the case of Warrants) and any other sums payable.

Certain disruption events affecting trading on exchanges on which the

relevant Debt Instrument(s) or options contracts or futures contracts

with respect to the Debt Instrument(s) are traded may occur with .
respect to Debt Linked Securities.

Amounts payable in respect of GDR/ADR Linked Securities will be
calculated by reference to a single global depositary receipt ("GDRs")
or American depositary receipts ("ADRs") or a basket of GDRs and/or
ADRs. GDR/ADR Linked Securities may also provide for settlement
by physical delivery of a specified amount of GDRs and/or ADRs
subject to payment of the relevant Exercise Price (in the case of
Warrants) and any other sums payable.

GDR/ADR Linked Securities may, at the discretion of the relevant
Issuer, be subject to early redemption or cancellation, as applicable, or
adjustment (including valuation and in certain circumstances
GDR/ADR substitutions) if certain corporate events (such as events
affecting the value of a GDR and/or ADR (including GDR, ADR or
underlying share divisions or consolidations, extraordinary dividends
and capital calls), de-listing of a GDR, ADR or underlying share,
insolvency, merger or nationalisation of an underlying share issuer, a

_tender offer or redenomination of a GDR, ADR and/or underlying

share) occur, if certain events (such as illegality, disruptions or cost
increases) occur with respect to the relevant Issuer's and/or any
Affiliate's hedging arrangements, or if insolvency filings are made with

* respect to an underlying share issuer.

Amounts payable in respect of FX Linked Securities will be calculated
by reference to the rate of exchange of a single currency or basket of

~currencies. FX Linked Securities may also provide for settlement by

physical delivery of a specified amount of the relevant currencies,
subject to payment of the relevant Exercise Price (in the case of
Warrants) and any other sums payable.

If certain disruption events occur with respect to a rate of exchange of
a single currency or basket of currencies, such valuation may be
postponed and/or made by the Calculation Agent.

Amounts payable in respect of Commodity Linked Securities will be
calculated by reference to a single commodity and/or commodity index
or basket of commodities and/or commodity indices. Commodity
Linked Securities may also provide for settlement by physical delivery

22



Fund Linked Securities:

Inflation Linked Securities:

of a specified amount of commodities, subject to payment of the
relevant Exercise Price (in the case of Warrants) and any other sums
payable, .

If certain disruption events occur with respect to valuation of a
Commodity or futures or options contracts relating to such commodity,
such valuation may be postponed and/or made by the Calculation
Agent. Commodity Linked Securities linked to a commodity index
may be subject to adjustment if the index is modified or cancelled and

‘there is no successor acceptable to the Calculation Agent or if the

index's sponsor fails to calculate and announce the index.

Amounts payable in respect of Fund Linked Securities will be
calculated by reference to units, interests or shares in a single fund or
basket of funds. Fund Linked Securities may also provide for
settlement by physical delivery of a specified amount of units, interests
or shares of one or more Funds, subject to payment of the relevant
Exercise Price (in the case of Warrants) and any other sums payable.

Fund Linked Securities may, at the discretion of the relevant Issuer, be
subject to early redemption or cancellation, as applicable, or
adjustment (including as to valuations and fund substitutions) if certain
corporate events (such as insolvency (or an analogous event) or
nationalisation of a Fund; litigation against, or regulatory events
occurring with respect to a Fund, suspensions of Fund subscriptions or
redemptions, certain changes in net asset value or violations of
leverage restrictions of a Fund, Fund reporting disruptions, or
modifications to the investment objectives or changes in the nature or
administration of a Fund) occur, if certain valuation or settlement
disruption events occur with respect to a Fund, or if certain events
(such as illegality, disruptions or cost increases) occur with respect to
the relevant Issuer's or Affiliate's hedging arrangements.

Fund Linked Securities linked to Exchange Traded Funds may be
subject to early redemption or cancellation, as applicable, or
adjustment (including as to valuation) if certain corporate events (such
as events affecting the value of a Fund Share including share divisions
or consolidation, de-listing of a Fund Share, insolvency, merger or
nationalisation of a Fund Share issuer, or a tender offer of a Fund
Share) or modifications of its investment objectives occur or if certain
events occur with respect to the Issuer's or Affiliate’'s hedging
arrangements.

If certain disruption events occur with respect to the valuation of a
Fund Share in respect of an Exchange Traded Fund, such valuation
may be postponed and may be made by the Calculation Agent.
Payments may also be postponed.

Amounts payable in respect of Inflation Linked Securities will be
calculated by reference to a single inflation index or basket of inflation
indices.

Inflation Linked Securities may be subject to early redemption or
cancellation, as applicable, and/or adjustment if an Inflation Index is
modified or cancelled and there is no successor index acceptable to the
Calculation Agent, or if the Inflation Index Sponsor fails to calculate
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Credit Linked Notes and
Certificates:

General

Status of the Securities:

Status of the Guarantee:

Approval, listing and admission to
trading:

Governing law:

Rating:

and announce the Index.

Amounts payable in respect of Credit Linked Notes and Certificates
will be calculated by reference to the credit of a specified entlty or
entities.

If Conditions to Settlement are satisfied during the Notice Delivery
Period, the Credit Linked Notes or Certificates will be redeemed or
cancelled, as the case may be, and the Issuer will pay the Credit Event
Redemption Amount, if Conditions to Settlement - Cash Settlement is
specified in the applicable Final Terms, or Deliver the Deliverable
Obligations comprising the Entitlement, if Conditions to
Settlement - Physical Delivery is specified in the applicable Final
Terms.

Securities constitute direct, unsubordinated, unconditional and
unsecured obligations of the relevant Issuer and rank equally among
themselves and rank equally (subject to such exceptions as are from
time to time provided by applicable laws) with all other present and
future direct, unsubordinated, unconditional and unsecured
indebtedness (in the case of Notes) or obligations (in the case of W&C
Securities) of the relevant Issuer.

The obligations of ML&Co. under the Guarantee, save for such
exceptions as may be provided by applicable legislation or judicial
order, rank pari passu with its other present and future unsecured and
unsubordinated indebtedness.

Application has been made to the CSSF to approve this document as a
base prospectus. Application has also been made to the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange for Securities issued under the Programme to be
admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated
market and to be listed on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange. Application has also been made to the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange for Securities issued under the Programme during the 12
months from the date of this Base Prospectus to be admitted to trading
on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's alternative market — Euro MTF —
and to be listed on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange.

Securities may be listed or admitted to trading, as the case may be, on
such other or further stock exchange(s) or market(s) as determined by
the relevant Issuer. Securities which are neither listed nor admitted to
trading on any market may also be issued.

The Securities and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in
connection with them will be govermed by, and construed in
accordance with, English law. The Guarantee will be governed by, and
construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.

If any issue of Notes under the Programme is to be rated, the rating of
such.Notes will be specified in the applicable Final Terms. Such rating
will not necessarily be the same as the rating(s) assigned to the
Programme. A rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at
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Selling Restrictions:

Risk Factors:

any time by the assigning rating agency.

There are restrictions on the offer, sale and transfer of the Securities in
the United States, the European Economic Area (including
Luxembourg, the United Kingdom, France and Italy), Japan, Singapore
and the Netherlands Antilles and such other restrictions as may be
required in connection with the offering and sale of a particular series
of Securities, see "Offering and Sale".

Certain factors that may affect the relevant Issuer's ability to fulfil its
obligations under the Securities and that are material for the purposes
of assessing the risks associated with investing in the Securities are
specified under "Risk Factors" and include market risk, credit risk,
risks relating to the commodities business, international risk, liquidity
risk, operational risk, litigation risk, regulatory and legislative risk,
competitive risk, effect of credit rating reduction, structural risks
relating to particular Securities, including with respect to Reference
Item Linked Securities, risks relating to unsecured obligations, market
disruption, settlement disruption, failure to deliver due to illiquidity,
expenses and taxation, no claim against the Reference Item,
modification, meetings, hedging and potential conflicts of interest,
physical delivery requirements and settlement risk, "illegality and
cancellation, partly-paid Notes, optional redemption (in the case of
Notes), minimum denomination (in the case of Notes), factors affecting
the value and trading price of W&C Securities, time lag after exercise
(in the case of Warrants), minimum exercise amount (in the case of
Warrants) limitations on exercise (in the case of Warrants), Rule 144A
Warrant transfer restrictions, possible illiquidity of Securities,
exchange rate risks and exchange listing and legal regulation risk.

Risks Relating To Merrill Lynch's’ Business

Market Risk. Merrill Lynch is exposed to changes in the value of
financial instruments caused by fluctuations in interest and currency
exchange rates, equity and commodity prices, credit spreads, and/or
other risks resulting from changes in economic conditions, investor
sentiment, monetary and fiscal policies, the liquidity of global markets,
availability and cost of capital, and rating agencies' actions. Merrill
Lynch has incurred losses and may incur additional losses as a result of
increased market volatility or decreased market liquidity. A decline in
volatility may adversely affect the results in Merrill Lynch's trading
businesses. :

Merrill Lynch recorded significant net write-downs in 2007, primarily
related to U.S. ABS CDOs, sub-prime residential mortgages and credit
valuation adjustments related to hedging transactions with financial
guarantors on U.S. ABS CDOs. The markets for U.S. ABS CDOs and
other subprime residential mortgage exposures remain extremely
illiquid and as a result, valuation of these exposures is complex and
will continue to be impacted by market factors. Merrill Lynch's ability
to mitigate its risk by selling or hedging its exposures is limited by the
market environment.

Credit Risk. Merrill Lynch is exposed to potential credit-related losses
that can occur as a result of an individual, counterparty or issuer being

Unless the context otherwise requires, the term “Merrill Lynch” means ML&Co. and its consolidated  subsidiaries.

25



unable or unwilling to honour its contractual obligations. These
exposures may arise from a decline in the financial condition of a
counterparty, entering into swap or other derivative contracts under
which counterparties have obligations to make payments to Merrill
Lynch, a decrease in the value of securities of third parties held by
Merrill Lynch as collateral or extending credit to clients through loans
or other arrangements.

Risks Related to Merrill Lynch's Commodities Business. Through its
commodities business, Merrill Lynch enters into exchange-traded
contracts, financially settled over-the-counter derivatives, contracts for
physical delivery and contracts providing for the transportation,
transmission and/or storage rights. Contracts relating to physical
ownership, delivery and/or related activities can expose Merrill Lynch
to numerous risks, including performance, environmental and
reputational risks. Regulatory authorities have recently intensified
scrutiny of certain energy markets, resulting in increased regulatory
and legal enforcement, litigation and remedial proceedings involving
companies engaged in activities in which Merrill Lynch is engaged.

International Risk. In past years, Merrill Lynch has expanded its
international operations, and expects to continue to do so, which gives
it greater exposure to a number of risks, including economic, market,
reputational, litigation and regulatory risks.

Liquidity Risk. Merrill Lynch's liquidity may be impaired due to
circumstances beyond its control, such as general market disruptions
(including for a specific asset class), any disruption requiring Merrill
Lynch to honour commitments to provide liquidity to off-balance sheet
vehicles, or an operational problem that affects its trading clients or
itself. The inability to borrow funds or sell assets to meet obligations, a
negative change in credit ratings that would have an adverse effect on
its ability to borrow funds, increases in the amount of collateral
required by counterparties, or regulatory capital restrictions imposed
on the free flows of funds between Merrill Lynch and its affiliates, may
have a negative effect on its business and financial condition.

Operational Risk. Merrill Lynch's business may be adversely impacted
by operational failures or unfavourable external events, including
exposure to theft and fraud, improper business practices, client
suitability and servicing risks, product complexity and pricing risk or
from improper recording, evaluating or accounting for transactions.
Merrill Lynch could suffer financial loss, disruption of its business,
liability to clients, regulatory intervention or reputational damage from
such events.

Litigation Risk. Legal proceedings could adversely affect Merrill
Lynch's operating results and financial condition for a particular period
and impact its credit ratings. Merrill Lynch has been named as a
defendant in various legal actions, including investigations and/or
proceedings by governmental and self-regulatory agencies. Some legal
actions include claims for substantial compensatory and/or punitive
damages or claims for indeterminate amounts of damages. Some are
likely to result in adverse judgments, penalties, injunctions, fines or
other relief. Any prolonged decline in securities prices may lead to
increased actions against Merrill Lynch and increased legal expenses
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and potential liability.

Regulatory and Legislative Risk. Merrill Lynch's businesses may be
affected by various regulatory and exchange authorities, self-regulatory
organisations and industry participants that continue to review and
adopt changes to their established rules and policies.

Competitive Environment. Competitive pressures could adversely
affect Merrill Lynch's business, which competes globally for clients
with commercial banks and other broker-dealers in brokerage (where it
has experienced intense price competition), underwriting, trading,
financing and advisory businesses. Many of its non-U.S. competitors
may have competitive advantages in their home markets.

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MUST REVIEW THE APPLICABLE
FINAL TERMS TO ASCERTAIN WHAT THE RELEVANT
REFERENCE ITEM(S) ARE AND TO SEE HOW THE AMOUNT
PAYABLE AND/OR DELIVERABLE ON THE SECURITIES AND
ANY PERIODIC INTEREST PAYMENTS (IN THE CASE OF
NOTES) OR ADDITIONAL AMOUNT PAYMENTS (IN THE CASE
OF W&C CERTIFICATES) ARE DETERMINED AND WHEN
SUCH AMOUNTS ARE PAYABLE AND/OR DELIVERABLE, AS
THE CASE MAY BE, BEFORE MAKING ANY DECISION TO
PURCHASE ANY SECURITIES.
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RISK FACTORS

Each of MLSA, MLICo. and ML&Co. believes that the following factors may affect its ability to fulfil its
obligations in respect of Securities issued under the Programme and/or are material for the purpose of
assessing the market risks associated with Securities issued under the Programme. All of these factors are
contingencies which may or may not occur and none of MLSA, MLICo. or ML&Co. is in a position to
express a view on the likelihood of any such contingency occurring.

In addition, factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with
Securities issued under the Programme are also described below.

Each of MLSA, MLICo. and ML&Co. believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks
inherent in investing in Securities issued under the Programme, but the inability of the relevant Issuer or
ML&Co. to pay any cash amounts in connection with any Cash Settled Securities ("Cash Settled Securities")
or to deliver the Entitlement in connection with any Physical Delivery Securities ("Physical Delivery
Securities") may occur for other reasons and neither the Issuers nor ML&Co. represents that the statements
below regarding the risks of holding any Securities are exhaustive. Additional risks and uncertainties not
presently known to any of MLSA, MLICo. or ML&Co. or that any of MLSA, MLICo. or ML&Co. currently
believes to be immaterial could also have a material impact on its business operations or the Securities. The .
Final Terms in respect of an issue of Securities may contain additional Risk Factors in respect of such
Securities. Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Base
Prospectus and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

Terms used in this section and not otherwise deﬁned shall have the meanings given to them in the "Terms and
Conditions of the Notes" or the "Terms and Conditions of the W&C Securities”, as applicable (together the
"Conditions" and references herein to "relevant Conditions" shall be construed accordingly).

Factors that may affect the relevant Issuer's ability to fulfil its obligations under Securities issued
under the Programme

The Issuers are finance vehicles whose principal purposes are to raise debt or enter into financial contracts to
assist the financing activities of the relevant Issuer's affiliates. Accordingly, the Issuers do not have any
trading assets and do not generate any significant net income.

MLICo. engages primarily in the issuance of warrants and related financial instruments and the distribution
of Merrill Lynch managed funds world-wide (with the exception of North America) and other managed fund
products..

The main markets in which MLSA sells securities are the Eurobond markets.

Securities issued under the Programme are guaranteed on an unsubordinated basis pursuant to a Guarantee,
Accordingly, if the Guarantor's financial condition were to deteriorate, the Issuers and investors in the
Securities may suffer direct and materially adverse consequences. Accordingly, prospective investors in
Securities should review, inter alia, the factors below in respect of ML&Co.'s ability to fulfil its obligations
under the Guarantee. :

Factors that may affect ML&Co.'s ability to fulfil its obligations under the Guarantee

ML&Co. is the holding company for Merrill Lynch’. ML&Co.'s ability to fulfil its obligations under the
Guarantee may therefore be affected by certain factors as set out below which may affect Merrill Lynch.

Risks Relating to Merrill Lynch's Business

In the course of conducting its business operations, Merrill Lynch is exposed to a variety of risks that are
inherent to the financial services industry. A summary of some of the significant risks that could affect
Merrill Lynch's financial condition and results of operations is included below. Some of these risks are
managed in accordance with established risk management policies and procedures, most of which are
described in the Risk Management section under the heading "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations" included in the 2007 Annual Report and the Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q of ML&Co.

.

Unless the context otherwise reqixirds, the term "Merrill Lynch" means ML&Co. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

28



Market Risk

Merrill Lynch's business may be adversely impacted by global market and economic conditions that may
cause fluctuations in interest rates, exchange rates, equity and commodity prices and credit spreads.

Merrill Lynch is exposed to potential changes in the value of financial instruments caused by fluctuations in
interest rates, currency exchange rates, equity and commodity prices, credit spreads, and/or other risks.
These fluctuations may result from changes in economic conditions, investor sentiment, monetary and fiscal
policies, the liquidity of global markets, availability and cost of capital, the actions of credit rating agencies,
international and regional political events and acts of war or terrorism. Merrill Lynch has large proprietary
trading and investment positions, which include positions in fixed income, currency, commodities and equity
securities, as well as in real estate, private equity and other investments. Merrill Lynch has incurred losses
and may incur additional losses as a result of increased market volatility or decreased market liquidity, as
these fluctuations may adversely impact the valuation of its trading and investment positions. Conversely, a
decline in volatility may adversely affect the results in Merrill Lynch's trading businesses, which depend on
market volatility to create client and proprietary trading opportunities.

Merrill Lynch may incur additional material losses in future periods due to write-downs in the value of
financial instruments.

Merrill Lynch recorded significant net write-downs in the 2007 fiscal year, primarily related to U.S.
collateralised debt obligations comprising of asset-backed securities ("U.S. ABS CDOs"), sub-prime
residential mortgages, and credit valuation adjustments related to hedging transactions with financial
guarantors on U.S. ABS CDOs. The markets for U.S. ABS CDOs and other sub-prime residential mortgage
exposures remain extremely illiquid and as a result, valuation of these exposures is complex and involves a
comprehensive process including the use of quantitative modelling and management judgment. Valuation of
these exposures will also continue to be impacted by external market factors including default rates, a decline
in the value of the underlying property, such as residential or commercial real estate, rating agency actions,
the prices at which observable market transactions occur and the financial strength of counterparties, such as
financial guarantors, with whom Merrill Lynch has economically hedged some of its exposure to these
assets. Merrill Lynch's ability to mitigate its risk by selling or hedging its exposures is also limited by the
market environment.

Merrill Lynch's business has been and may be adversely impacted by significant holdings of financial assets
or significant loans or commitmenits to extend loans.

In the course of Merrill Lynch's business, Merrill Lynch often commits substantial amounts of capital to
certain types of businesses or asset classes, including Merrill Lynch's trading, structured credit, residential
and commercial real estate-related activities, investment banking, private equity and leveraged finance
businesses. This commitment of capital exposes Merrill Lynch to a number of risks, including market risk, in
the case of Merrill Lynch's holdings of concentrated or illiquid positions in a particular asset class as part of
its trading, structured credit, residential and commercial real estate-related activities, and credit risk, in the
case of its leveraged lending businesses. Any decline in the value of such assets may reduce Merrill Lynch's
revenues or result in losses.

Credit Risk

Merrill Lynch’s business may be adversely impacted by an increase in its credit exposure related to trading,
lending, and other business activities.

Merrill Lynch is exposed to potential credit-related losses that can occur as a result of an individual,
counterparty or issuer being unable or unwilling to honour its contractual obligations. These credit
exposures exist within lending relationships, commitments, letters of credit, derivatives, including
transactions Merrill Lynch may enter into to hedge its exposure to various assets, foreign exchange and other
transactions. These exposures may arise, for example, from a decline in the financial condition of a
counterparty, from entering into swap or other derivative contracts under which counterparties have
obligations to make payments to Merrill Lynch, from a decrease in the value of securities of third parties held
- by Merrill Lynch as collateral or from extending credit to clients through loans or other arrangements. As
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Merrill Lynch's credit exposure increases, it could have an adverse effect on its business and profitability if
material unexpected credit losses occur.

Risks Related to Merrill Lynch's Commodities Business

Merrill Lynch is exposed to environmental, reputational and regulatory risk as a result of its commodities
related activities.

Through Merrill Lynch's commodities business, Merrill Lynch enters into exchange-traded contracts,
financially settled over-the-counter derivatives, contracts for physical delivery and contracts providing for
the transportation, transmission and/or storage rights on or in vessels, barges, pipelines, transmission lines or
storage facilities. Contracts relating to physical ownership, delivery and/or related activities can expose
Merrill Lynch to numerous risks, including performance, environmental and reputational risks. For example,
Merrill Lynch may incur civil or criminal liability under certain environmental laws and Merrill Lynch's
business and reputation may be adversely affected. In addition, regulatory authorities have recently
intensified scrutiny of certain energy markets, which has resulted in increased regulatory and legal
enforcement, litigation and remedial proceedings involving companies engaged in the activities in which
Merrill Lynch is engaged. '

International Risk

Merrill Lynch has an increasing international presence and as a result, Merrill Lynch is mcreasmgly subject
to a number of risks in various jurisdictions.

In the past years, Merrill Lynch has expanded its international operations and expects to continue to do so in
the future. This expansion, however, gives Merrill Lynch a greater exposure to a number of risks, including
economic, market, reputational, litigation and regulatory risks. For example, in many emerging markets, the
regulatory regime governing financial services firms is still developing, and the regulatory authorities may
adopt restrictive regulation or policies, such as exchange, price or capital controls, that could have an adverse
effect on Merrill Lynch's businesses. In addition, in virtually all markets, Merrill Lynch is competing with a
number of established competitors that in some cases may have significant competitive advantages over
Merrill Lynch in those markets.

Liquidity Risk

Merrill Lynch's business and financial condition may be adversely impacted by an inability to borrow funds
or sell assets to meet its obligations.

Financial services firms, including Merrill Lynch, are exposed to liquidity risk, which is the potential
inability to repay short-term borrowings with new borrowings or liquid assets that can be quickly converted
into cash while meeting other obligations and continuing to operate as a going concern. Merrill Lynch's
liquidity may be impaired due to circumstances that it may be unable to control, such as general market
disruptions, disruptions in the markets for any specific class of assets, including any disruption that would
require Merrill Lynch to honour commitments to provide liquidity to certain off-balance sheet vehicles, or an
operational problem that affects its trading clients or itself. Merrill Lynch's ability to sell assets may also be
impaired if other market participants are seeking to sell similar assets at the same time. The inability of
Merrill Lynch to borrow funds or sell assets to meet obligations, a negative change in its credit ratings that
would have an adverse effect on its ability to borrow funds, increases in the amount of collateral required by
counterparties, or regulatory capital restrictions imposed on the free flows of funds between Merrill Lynch
and its affiliates, may have a negative effect on its business and financial condition.

Operational Risk

Merrill Lynch may incur losses due to the Jailure of people, internal processes and systems or from external
events.

Merrill Lynch's business may be adversely impacted by operational failures or from unfavourable external
events. Such operational risks may include exposure to theft and fraud, improper business practices, client
suitability and servicing risks, product complexity and pricing risk or from improper recording, evaluating or
accounting for transactions. Merrill Lynch could suffer financial loss, disruption of its business, liability to
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clients, regulatory intervention or reputational damage from such events, which would affect its business and
financial condition.

Litigation Risk

Legal proceedings could adversely affect Merrill Lynch's operating results Jor a particular pertod and
impact its credit ratings.

Merrill Lynch has been named as a defendant in various legal actions, including arbitrations, class actions,
and other litigation arising in connection with its activities as a global diversified financial services
institution. Some of the legal actions against Merrill Lynch include claims for substantial compensatory
and/or punitive damages or claims for indeterminate amounts of damages. Any prolonged decline in
securities prices may lead to increased actions against many firms, including Merrill Lynch, and may lead to
increased legal expenses and potential liability. In some cases, the issuers who would otherwise be the
primary defendants are bankrupt or otherwise in financial distress. Given the number of these matters, some
are likely to result in adverse judgments, penalties, injunctions, fines, or other relief. Merrill Lynch is also
involved in investigations and/or proceedings by governmental and self-regulatory agencies.

Merrill Lynch may explore potential settlements before a case is taken through trial because of uncertainty,
risks and costs inherent in the litigation process. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies ("SFAS No.5"), Merrill Lynch will accrue a liability when it
is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In
many lawsuits, arbitrations and investigations, including almost all of the class action lawsuits disclosed
under "General Information — Litigation", it is not possible to determine whether a liability has been incurred
or to estimate the ultimate or minimum amount of that liability until the matter is close to resolution, in
which case no accrual is made until that time. In view of the inherent difficulty of predicting the outcome pf
such matters, particularly in matters in which claimants seek substantial or indeterminate damages, Merrill
Lynch cannot predict what the eventual loss or range of loss related to such matters will be. Potential losses
may be material to Merrill Lynch's operating results for any particular period and may impact ML&Co.'s
credit ratings. For further information about Merrill Lynch's legal and regulatory investigations and
proceedings, see "General Information — Litigation".

Regulatory and Legislative Risks

Many of Merrill Lynch's businesses are highly regulated and could be impacted, and in some instances
adversely impacted, by regulatory and legislative initiatives around the world.

Merrill Lynch's businesses may be affected by various U.S. and non-U.S. legislative bodies and regulatory
and exchange authorities, such as federal and state securities and bank regulators including the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Office of Thrift
Supervision, and the Utah Department of Finance Institutions; and self-regulatory organisations including the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, The Commodity Futures Trading Commission, the Financial
Services Authority, the Japan Financial Services Agency and the Irish Financial Regulator; and industry
participants that continue to review and, in many cases, adopt changes to their established rules and policies.
New laws or regulations or changes in the enforcement of existing laws and regulations may also adversely
affect Merrill Lynch's businesses. As Merrill Lynch expands globally, Merrill Lynch will encounter new
laws, regulations and requirements that could impact its ability to operate in new local markets.

Competitive Environment

Competitive pressures in the fi nanc:al services industry could adversely affect Merrill Lynch's business and
results of operations. »

Merrill Lynch competes globally for clients on the basis of price, the range of products that it offers, the
quality of its services, its financial resources, and product and service innovation. The financial services
industry continues to be affected by an intensely competitive environment, as demonstrated by the
introduction of new technology platforms, consolidation through mergers, increased competition from new
and established industry participants and diminishing margins in many mature products and services. Merrill
Lynch competes with U.S. and non-U.S. commercial banks and other broker-dealers in brokerag'e,
underwriting, trading, financing and advisory businesses. For example, the financial services industry in
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general, including Merrill Lynch, has experienced intense price competition in brokerage, as the ability to
execute trades electronically, through the internet and through other alternative trading systems has pressured
trading commissions and spreads. Many of Merrill Lynch's non-U.S. competitors may have competitive
advantages in their home markets. In addition, Merrill Lynch's business is substantially dependent on its
continuing ability to compete effectively to attract and retain qualified employees, including successful
financial advisers, investment bankers, trading and risk management professionals and other revenue-
producing or support personnel.

Factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with Securities
issued under the Programme

Effect of Credit Rating Reduction

The value of the Securities is expected to be affected, in part, by investors' general appraisal of ML&Co.'s
creditworthiness. Such perceptions are generally influenced by the ratings accorded to ML&Co.'s
outstanding securities by standard statistical rating services, such as Moody's Investors Service Inc. and
Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. A reduction in the rating, if any,
accorded to outstanding debt securities of ML&Co., by one of these rating agencies could result in a
reduction in the trading value of the Securities.

Current Market

Investors should be aware of the prevailing and widely reported global credit market conditions (which
continue at the date of this Base Prospectus), whereby there is a general lack of liquidity in the secondary
market for instruments similar to the Securities. Such lack of liquidity may result in investors suffering losses
on the Securities in secondary resales even if there is no decline in the performance of the assets of Merrill
Lynch. Merrill Lynch cannot predict when these circumstances will change and whether, if and when they do
change, there will be a more liquid market for the Securities at that time.

The Securities may not be a suitable investment for all investors

Each potential investor in the Securities must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own
circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

@) have sufficient knowledge and experience to evaluate the Securities, the merits and risks of investing
in the Securities and the information contained or incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus
or any applicable supplement and all the information contained in the applicable Final Terms;

(i)  have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation, an investment in the Securities and the impact the Securities will have
on its overall investment portfolio;

(iii)  have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the
Securities, including Securities with amounts payable in one or more currencies, or where the
Settlement Currency or Specified Currency of the Securities is different from the potential investor's
currency; :

(iv)  understand thoroughly the terms of the Securities and be familiar with any relevant indices and
financial markets; and '

) be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the
applicable risks.

In addition, an investment in Index Linked Securities, Share Linked Securities, Debt Linked Securities,
GDR/ADR Linked Securities, FX Linked Securities, Commodity Linked Securities, Fund Linked Securities,
Inflation Linked Securities, Credit Linked Notes and Certificates or other Securities linked to other
Reference Item(s) ("Reference Item Linked Securities"), may entail significant risks not associated with
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investments in conventional securities such as debt or equity securities, including, but not limited to, the risks
set out in "Risks related to the structure of a particular issue of Securities" set out below. .

Some Securities are complex financial instruments. Sophisticated institutional investors generally do not
purchase complex financial instruments as stand-alone investments. They purchase complex financial
instruments as a way to reduce risk or enhance yield with an understood, measured, appropriate addition of
risk to their overall portfolios. A potential investor should not invest in Securities which are complex
financial instruments unless it has the expertise (either alone or with a financial adviser) to evaluate how
such Securities will perform under changing conditions, the resulting effects on the value of those Securities
and the impact this investment will have on the potential investor's overall investment portfolio.

Risks related to the structure of a particular issue of Securities

A wide range of Securities may be issued under the Programme. A number of these Securities may have
features which contain particular risks for potential investors. Set out below is a description of the most
common features.

General risks and risks relating to Reference Item Linked Securities

Reference Item Linked Securities involve a high degree of risk, which may include, among others, interest
rate, foreign exchange, time value and political risks. Purchasers should be prepared to sustain a total loss of
the purchase price of the Securities. This risk reflects the nature of such a Security as an asset which, other
factors held constant, tends to decline in value over time and which may become worthless. See "Certain
Factors Affecting the Value and Trading Price of Securities" below. Prospective purchasers of Securities
should understand the risks of transactions involving the relevant Securities and should reach an investment
decision only after careful consideration, with their advisers, of the suitability of such Securities in light of
their particular financial circumstances, the information set forth herein and the information regarding the
relevant Securities and the particular Reference Item to which the value of, or payments or deliveries in
respect of, the relevant Securities may relate, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. "

Reference Item Linked Securities will represent an investment linked to the economic performance of the
relevant Reference Item(s) and prospective investors should note that the return (if any) on their investment
in such Securities will depend upon the performance of such Reference Item(s). Potential investors should
also note that whilst the market value of such Securities is linked to such Reference Item(s) and will be
influenced (positively or negatively) by such Reference Item(s), any change may not be comparable and may
be disproportionate. It is impossible to predict how the level of the relevant Reference Item(s) will vary over
time. In contrast to a direct investment in the relevant Reference Item(s), Securities represent the right to
receive payment or delivery, as the case may be, of the Cash Settlement Amount(s), the Final Redemption
Amount(s) or the Entitlement, as the case may be, as well as periodic payments of interest (if specified in the
applicable Final Terms in respect of Notes), all or some of which and the value of which will be determined
by reference to the performance of the relevant Reference Item(s). :

As the amounts payable and/or deliverable in respect of Reference Item Linked Securities are linked to the
performance of the relevant Reference Item(s), a purchaser of such a Security must generally be correct
about the direction, timing and magnitude of an anticipated change in the value of the relevant Reference
Item(s). Assuming all other factors are held constant, the lower the value of such a Security and the shorter
the remaining term to expiration (in the case of a Warrant), exercise (in the case of a Certificate) or
redemption (in the case of a Note), the greater the risk that purchasers of such Security will lose all or part of
their investment. '

Reference Item Linked Notes may be principal protected or non-principal protected. Investors in Reference
Item Linked Notes that are non-principal protected may risk losing their entire investment if the value of the
relevant Reference Item(s) does not move in the anticipated direction.

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MUST REVIEW THE APPLICABLE FINAL TERMS TO
ASCERTAIN WHAT THE RELEVANT REFERENCE ITEM(S) ARE AND TO SEE HOW THE
CASH SETTLEMENT AMOUNT, FINAL REDEMPTION AMOUNT OR THE ENTITLEMENT, AS
THE CASE MAY BE, AND ANY PERIODIC INTEREST PAYMENTS (IN THE CASE OF NOTES)
OR ANY PERIODIC ADDITIONAL AMOUNT PAYMENTS (IN THE CASE OF W&C
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SECURITIES) ARE DETERMINED AND WHEN SUCH AMOUNTS ARE PAYABLE AND/OR
DELIVERABLE, AS THE CASE MAY BE, BEFORE MAKING ANY DECISION TO PURCHASE
ANY SECURITIES.

Fluctuations in the value and/or volatility of the relevant Reference Item(s) will affect the value of the
relevant Securities. Other factors which may influence the market value of Securities include interest rates,
potential dividend or interest payments (as applicable) in respect of the relevant Reference Item(s), changes
in the method of calculating the relevant Reference Item(s) from time to time and market expectations
regarding the future performance of the relevant Reference Item(s), its composition and such Securities.

Each Issuer may issue several issues of Securities relating to a particular Reference Item. However, no
assurance can be given that either Issuer will issue any such Securities other than the Securities to which
particular Final Terms relate. At any given time, the number of Securities outstanding may be substantial.
Securities provide opportunities for investment and pose risks to investors as a result of fluctuations in the
value of the relevant Reference Item(s).

Risks relating to Index Linked Securities

Each Issuer may issue Index Linked Securities where the Final Redemption Amount, Cash Settlement
Amount or interest payable is dependent upon the level of an index or indices. The index or indices may
comprise of reference equities, bonds, other securities, property, currency exchange rate or other assets or
bases of reference, and may be a well known and widely published index or indices or an index or indices
established by Merrill Lynch or another entity which may not be widely published or available. An
investment in Index Linked Securities will entail significant risks not associated with a conventional fixed
rate or floating rate debt security. :

Index Linked Redemption Notes may be redeemable by the Issuer by payment of the par value amoutxt
and/or by payment of an amount determined by reference to the value of the index/indices. Interest payable
on Index Linked Interest Notes may be calculated by reference to the value of one or more indices.

Index Linked W&C Securities will be settled by payment of an amount determined by reference to the value
of the index/indices.

Potential investors in Index Linked Securities should be aware that depending on the terms of the Index
Linked Securities (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payments may occur at a
different time than expected and (iii) except in the case of principally protected securities, they may lose all
or a substantial portion of their investment if the value of the index/indices do not move in the anticipated
direction.

In addition, the movements in the level of the index or indices may be subject to significant fluctuations that
may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the timing of changes in the
relevant level of the index or indices may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average level is
consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the level of an index or result of a
formula, the greater the effect on yield.

If the Final Redemption Amount, Cash Settlement Amount or interest payable are determined in conjunction
with a multiplier greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the
level of the index or the indices on the Final Redemption Amount, Cash Settlement Amount or interest .
payable will be magnified.

If the Calculation Agent determines that an event giving rise to a Disrupted Day has occurred at any relevant
time, such determination may have an effect on the timing of valuation and consequently the value of the
Securities and/or may delay settlement in respect of the Securities. Prospective purchasers should review the
relevant Terms and Conditions of the Securities and the applicable Final Terms to ascertain whether and how
such provisions apply to the Securities.

The market price of Index Linked Securities may be volatile and may depend on the time remaining to the
redemption date or exercise date (as applicable) and the volatility of the level of the index or indices. The
level of the index or indices may be affected by the economic, financial and political events in one or more
jurisdictions, including the stock exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which any securities comprising the
index or indices may be traded.



Risks relating to Share Linked Securities

Each Issuer may issue Share Linked Securities where the Final Redemption Amount, Cash Settlement
Amount, or interest payable are dependent upon the price of or changes in the price of shares or a basket of
shares or where, depending on the price or change in the price of the shares or basket of shares, the relevant
Issuer has an obligation to deliver specified assets. Accordingly, an investment in Share Linked Securities
may bear similar market risks to a direct equity investment and investors should take advice accordingly. An
investment in Share Linked Securities will entail significant risks not associated with a conventional debt
security.

Share Linked Redemption Notes may be redeemable by the Issuer by payment of the par value amount
and/or by the physical delivery of a given number of share(s) and/or by payment of an amount determined by
reference to the value of the share(s).

Share Linked W&C Securities may be settled by the physical delivery of a given number of share(s) and/or
by payment of an amount determined by reference to the value of the share(s).

Potential investors in Share Linked Securities should be aware that depending on the terms of the Share
Linked Securities (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payments or delivery of any
specified assets may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) except in the case of principally
protected Securities, they may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment if the value of the share(s)
do not move in the anticipated direction.

In addition, the movements in the price of the share or basket of shares may be subject to significant
fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the timing of
changes in the relevant price of the share or shares may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the
average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the price of the share
or shares, the greater the effect on yield.

If the Final Redemptxon Amount, Cash Settlement Amount or interest payable, or Entitlement deliverable,
are determined in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or by reference to some other leverage
factor, the effect of changes in the price of the share or shares on the Final Redemption Amount, Cash
Settlement Amount or interest payable, or Entitlement deliverable, will be magnified.

If the Calculation Agent determines that an event giving rise to a Disrupted Day has occurred at any relevant
time any such determination may have an effect on the timing of valuation and consequently the value of the
Securities and/or may delay settlement in respect of the Securities. Prospective purchasers should review the
relevant Terms and Conditions and the applicable Final Terms to ascertain whether and how such provisions
apply to the Securities.

In the case of Share Linked Securities following the declaration by the Share Company of the terms of any
Potential Adjustment Event, the Calculation Agent will, in its sole and absolute discretion, determine whether
such Potential Adjustment Event has a diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the Shares
and, if so, will (i) make the corresponding adjustment, if any, to any of the terms of the relevant Conditions
and/or the applicable Final Terms as the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion determines
appropriate to account for that diluting or concentrative effect (provided that no adjustments will be made to
account solely for changes in volatility, expected dividends, stock loan rate or liquidity relative to the
relevant Share) and (ii) determine the effective date of that adjustment. Such adjustment may have an
adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the affected Share Linked Securities.

In addition, in the case of Share Linked Securities, if a Merger Event, Tender Offer, De-listing,
Nationalisation or Insolvency occurs in relation to any Share, the relevant Issuer in its sole and absolute
discretion may take the action described in (i) or (ii) below:

(i) require the Calculation Agent to determine in its sole and absolute discretion the appropriate
adjustment, if any, to be made to any of the relevant Conditions and/or the applicable Final Terms to
account for the Merger Event, Tender Offer, De-listing, Nationalisation or Insolvency and determine
the effective date of that adjustment. Such adjustment may have an adverse effect on the value and
liquidity of the affected Share Linked Securities; and
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(ii) redeem or cancel, as applicable, part (in the case of Share Linked Securities relating to a basket of
Shares) or all (in any other case) of the Securities. Following such redemption or cancellation an
investor generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at an effective interest rate
as high as the interest rate on the relevant Securities being redeemed or cancelled and may only be
able to do so at a significantly lower rate. Prospective investors should consider reinvestment risk in
light of other investments available at that time.

The market price of Share Linked Securities may be volatile and may be affected by the time remaining to
the redemption date or exercise date (as applicable), the volatility of the share or shares, the dividend rate (if
any) and the financial results and prospects of the issuer or issuers of the relevant share or shares as well as
economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions, including factors affecting the stock
exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which any such shares may be traded.

No issuer of the relevant share(s) will have participated in the preparation of the relevant Final Terms or in
establishing the terms of the Share Linked Securities and none of the relevant Issuer, ML&Co. or any Dealer
will make any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with respect to any information
concerning any such issuer of shares contained in such Final Terms or in the documents from which such
information was extracted. Consequently, there can be no assurance that all events occurring prior to the
relevant issue date (including events that would affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available
information described in this paragraph or in any relevant Final Terms) that would affect the trading price of
the share will have been publicly disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the disclosure of or
failure to disclose material future events concerning such an issuer of shares could affect the trading price of
the share and therefore the trading price of the Securities.

Except as provided in the relevant Conditions in relation to Physical Delivery Securities, Holders of Share
Linked Securities will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or distributions or any other rights
with respect to the relevant shares to which such Securities relate. : :

Risks relating to Debt Linked Securities

Each Issuer may issue Debt Linked Securities where the Final Redemption Amount, Cash Settlement
Amount or interest payable are dependent upon the value of the underlying debt instrument(s), or where,
depending on the price of or change in the price of the underlying debt instruments, the relevant Issuer has an
obligation to deliver specified assets. Accordingly, an investment in Debt Linked Securities may bear similar
market risks to a direct debt instrument investment and investors should take advice accordingly. An
investment in Debt Linked Securities will entail significant risks not associated with a conventional fixed
rate or floating rate debt security.

Debt Linked Redemption Notes may be redeemable by the Issuer by payment of the par value amount and/or
by the physical delivery of a given number of debt instrument(s) and/or by payment of an amount determined
" by reference to the value of the debt instrument(s). Interest payable on Debt Linked Interest Notes may be
calculated by reference to the value of one or more debt instrument(s).

Debt Linked W&C Securities may be settled by the physical delivery of a given number of debt
instrument(s) and/or by payment of an amount determined by reference to the value of the debt
instrument(s).

Potential investors in Debt Linked Securities should be aware that depending on the terms of the Debt
Linked Securities (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payments or delivery of any-
specified assets may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) except in the case of principally
protected Securities, they may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment if the value of the debt
instrument(s) do not move in the anticipated direction.

In addition, the movements in the price of the debt instrument(s) may be subject to significant fluctuations
that may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the timing of changes in
the relevant price of the debt instrument(s) may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average level
is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the price of the debt instrument(s),
the greater the effect on yield.
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If the Final Redemption Amount, Cash Settlement Amount or interest payable, or Entitlement deliverable,
are determined in con_]unctlon with a multiplier greater than one or by reference to some other leverage
factor, the effect of changes in the price of the debt instrument(s) on the Final Redemption Amount, Cash
Settlement Amount or interest payable, or Entitlement deliverable, will be magnified.

The market price of Debt Linked Securities may be volatile and may be affected by the time remaining to the
redemption date or exercise date (as applicable), the volatility of the debt instrument(s) and the financial
results and prospects of the issuer or issuers of the relevant debt instrument(s) as well as economic, financial
and political events in one or more jurisdictions, including factors affecting the stock exchange(s) or
quotation system(s) on which any such debt instrument(s) may be traded.

Risks relating to GDR/ADR Linked Securities

Each Issuer may issue GDR/ADR Linked Securities where the Final Redemption Amount, Cash Settlement
Amount or interest payable are dependent upon the value of GDRs or ADRs, or where, depending on the
price of or change in the price of the GDRs or ADRs, the relevant Issuer has an obligation to deliver
specified assets. Accordingly, an investment in GDR/ADR Linked Securities may bear similar market risks
to a direct GDR/ADR investment and investors should take advice accordingly. An investment in
GDR/ADR Linked Securities will entail significant risks not associated with a conventional debt security.

GDR/ADR Linked Redemption Notes may be redeemable by the Issuer by payment of the par value amount
and/or by the physical delivery of a given number of GDRs and/or ADRs and/or by payment of an amount
determined by reference to the value of the GDRs and/or ADRs. Interest payable on GDR/ADR Interest
Notes may be calculated by reference to the value of the GDRs and/or ADRs.

GDR/ADR Linked W&C Securities may be settled by the physical delivery of a given number of GDRs
and/or ADRs and/or by payment of an amount determined by reference to the value of the GDRs and/or
ADRs.

Potential investors in GDR/ADR Linked Securities should be aware that depending on the terms of the
GDR/ADR Linked Securities (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payments or
delivery of any specified assets may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) except in the case of
principally protected Securities, they may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment if the value of
the GDRs and/or ADRs does not move in the anticipated direction.

In addition, the movements in the price of the GDRs and/or ADRs may be subject to significant fluctuations
that may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the timing of changes in
the relevant price of the GDRs and/or ADRs may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average level
is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the price of the GDRs and/or
ADRs, the greater the effect on yield.

If the Final Redemption Amount, Cash Settlement Amount or interest payable, or Entitlement deliverable,
are determined in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or by reference to some other leverage
factor, the effect of changes in the price of the GDRs and/or ADRs on the Final Redemption Amount, Cash
Settlement Amount or interest payable, or Entitlement deliverable, will be magnified.

The market price of GDR/ADR Linked Securities may be volatile and may be affected by the time remaining
to the redemption date or exercise date (as applicable), the volatility of the GDRs and/or ADRs and the
financial results and prospects of the issuer or issuers of the GDRs and/or ADRs as well as economic,
financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions, including factors affecting the stock exchange(s)
or quotation system(s) on which any such GDRs and/or ADRs may be traded.

Risks relating to FX Linked Securities

Each Issuer may issue FX Linked Securities where the Final Redemption Amount, Cash Settlement Amount
or interest payable are dependent upon movements in currency exchange rates or are payable in one or more
currencies which may be different from the currency in which the Securities are denominated. Accordingly,
an investment in FX Linked Securities may bear similar market risks to a direct foreign exchange investment
and investors should take advice accordingly. An investment in FX Linked Securities will entail significant
risks not associated with a conventional debt security.
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FX Linked Redemption Notes'may be redeemable by the Issuer by payment of the par value amount and/or
by the physical delivery of specified amount of one or more currencies and/or by payment of an amount
determined by reference to the value of the currency/currencies. Interest payable on FX Lmked Interest
Notes may be calculated by reference to the value of one or more currencies.

FX Linked W&C Securities may be settled by the physical delivery of a specified amount of one or more
currencies and/or by payment of an amount determined by reference to the value of the currency/currenciés.

Potential investors in any FX Linked Securities should be aware that depending on the terms of the FX
Linked Securities (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payments or delivery of any
specified assets may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) except in the case of principally
protected Securities, they may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment if the currency exchange
rates do not move in the anticipated direction.

In addition, the movements in currency exchange rates may be subject to significant fluctuations that may
not correlate with changes in interest rates or other indices and the timing of changes in the exchange rates
may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In
general, the earlier the change in the price of the currency exchange rates, the greater the effect on yield.

If the Final Redemption Amount, Cash Settlement Amount or interest payable, or Entitlement deliverable,
are determined in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or by reference to some other leverage
factor, the effect of changes in the currency exchange rates on the Final Redemption Amount, Cash
Settlement Amount or interest payable, or Entitlement deliverable, will be magnified.

Fluctuations in exchange rates of the relevant currency (or basket of currencies) will affect the value of FX
Linked Securities. Furthermore, investors who intend to convert gains or losses from the exercise,
redemption or sale of FX Linked Securities into their home currency may be affected by fluctuations in
exchange rates between their home currency and Settled Currency (as defined below) of the Securities.
Currency values may be affected by complex political and economic factors, including governmental action
to fix or support the value of a currency/currencies, regardless of other market forces (see "Exchange rate
risks and exchange controls" below). :

Risks relating to Commodity Linked Securities

Each Issuer may issue Commodity Linked Securities where the Final Redemption Amount, Cash Settlement
Amount or interest payable are dependent upon the price or changes in the price of commodities, basket of
commodities, a commodity index or basket of commodity indices or where, depending on the price or
change in the price of the commodities, basket of commodities, commodity index or basket of commodity
indices, the relevant Issuer has an obligation to deliver specified assets. Accordingly, an investment in
Commodity Linked Securities may bear similar market risks to a direct commodity investment and investors
should take advice accordingly. An investment in Commodity Linked Securities will entail significant risks
not associated with a conventional debt security.

Commodity Linked Redemption Notes may be redeemable by the Issuer by payment of the par value amount
and/or by the physical delivery of specified amount of one or more commodities and/or by payment of an
amount determined by reference to the value of the commodity, commodity index, commodities and/or
commodity indices. Interest payable on Commodity Linked Interest Notes may be calculated by reference to
the value of one or more commodity, commodity mdex, commodities and/or commodity indices.

Commodity Linked W&C Securities may be settled by the physical delivery of a specified amount of one or
more commodities and/or by payment of an amount determined by reference to the value of the commodity,
commodity index, commodities and/or commodity indices.

Potential investors in Commodity Linked Securities should be aware that depending on the terms of the
Commodity Linked Securities (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payments or
delivery of any specified assets may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) except in the case of
principally protected Securities, they may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment if the value of
the commodity(ies) or commodity index(ices) do not move in the anticipated direction.

In addition, the movements in the price of the commodity(ies) or commodity index(ices) may be subject to
significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and
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the timing of changes in the relevant price of the commodity(ies) or commodity index(ices) may affect t'he
actual yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier
the change in the price or level of the commodity(ies) or commodity index(ices), the greater the effect on
yield.

If the Final Redemptlon Amount, Cash Settlement Amount or interest payable, or Entitlement deliverable,
are determined in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or by reference to some other leverage
factor, the effect of changes in the price or level of the commodity(ies) or commodity index(ices) on the
Final Redemption Amount, Cash Settlement Amount or interest payable, or Entitlement deliverable, will be
magnified.

The market price of Commodity Linked Securities may be volatile and may be affected by the time
remaining to the redemption date or exercise date, as applicable, the volatility of the commodity(ies) or
commodity index(ices) as well as economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions,
including factors affecting the stock exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which any such commodity(ies)
may be traded.

Risks relating to Fund Linked Securities

Each Issuer may issue Fund Linked Securities where the Final Redemption Amount, Cash Settlement
Amount or interest payable are dependent upon the price or changes in the price of fund share(s) or unit(s) or
where, depending on the price or changes in the price of fund share(s) or unit(s), the relevant Issuer has an
obligation to deliver specified assets. Accordingly, an investment in Fund Linked Securities may bear similar
market risks to a direct fund investment and investors should take advice accordingly. An investment in Fund
Linked Securities will entail significant risks not associated with a conventional debt security.

Fund Linked Redemption Notes may be redeemable by the Issuer by payment of the par value amount and/or
by the physical delivery of specified amount of one or more fund shares or units and/or by payment of an
amount determined by reference to the value of the fund share(s) or unit(s). Interest payable on Fund Linked
Interest Notes may be calculated by reference to the value of one or more fund shares or units.

Fund Linked W&C Securities may be settled by the physical delivery of a specified amount of one or more
fund shares or units and/or by payment of an amount determined by reference to the value of the fund
share(s) or unit(s).

Potential investors in Fund Linked Securities should be aware that depending on the terms of the Fund
Linked Securities (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest (ii) payments or delivery of any
specified assets may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) except in the case of principally
protected Securities, they may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment if the value of the fund
share(s) or unit(s) do not move in the anticipated direction.

In addition, the movements in the price of fund share(s) or unit(s) may be subject to significant fluctuations
that may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the timing of changes in
the relevant price of the fund share(s) or unit(s) may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average
level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the price or prices of the fund
share(s) or unit(s), the greater the effect on yield.

If the Final Redemption Amount, Cash Settlement Amount or interest payable, or Entitlement deliverable,
are determined in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or by reference to some other leverage
factor, the effect of changes in the price of the fund share(s) or unit(s) on the Final Redemption Amount,
Cash Settlement Amount or interest payable, or Entitlement deliverable, will be magnified.

The price of unit(s) or fund share(s) may be affected by the performance of the fund service providers, and in
particular the investment adviser.

In the case of Fund Linked Securities linked to Exchange Traded Funds, if the Calculation Agent determines
that an event giving rise to a Disrupted Day has occurred at any relevant time any such determination may
have an effect on the timing of valuation and consequently the value of the Securities and/or may delay
settlement in respect of the Securities. Prospective purchasers should review the relevant Terms and
Conditions and the applicable Final Terms to ascertain whether and how such prov1s1ons apply to the
Securities.
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.In the case of Fund Linked Securities linked to Exchange Traded Funds following the declaration by the ETF

of the occurrence of any Potential Adjustment Event, the Calculation Agent will, in its sole and absolute
discretion, determine whether such Potential Adjustment Event has a diluting or concentrative effect on the
theoretical relevant Fund Shares and, if so, will (i) make the corresponding adjustment, if any, to any of the
terms of the relevant Conditions and/or the applicable Final Terms as the Calculation Agent in its sole and
absolute discretion determines appropriate to account for that diluting or concentrative effect and (ii)
determine the effective date of that adjustment. Such adjustment may have an adverse effect on the value and
liquidity of the affected Fund Linked Securities.

In addition, in the case of Fund Linked Securities linked to Exchange Traded Funds, if a Merger Event,
Tender Offer, De-Listing, Material Underlying Event, Nationalisation or Insolvency occurs in relation to any
Fund Share, the relevant Issuer in its sole and absolute dlscretlon may take the action described in (i) or (ii)
below:

@) require the Calculation Agent to determine in its sole and absolute discretion the appropriate
adjustment, if any, to be made to any of the relevant Conditions and/or the applicable Final Terms to
account for the Merger Event, Tender Offer, De-Listing, Material Underlying Event, Nationalisation
or Insolvency and determine the effective date of that adjustment. Such adjustment may have an
adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the affected Fund Linked Securities; and

(i) redeem or cancel, as applicable, all of the Securities. Following such redemption or cancellation an
investor generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at an effective interest rate
as high as the interest rate on the relevant Securities being redeemed or cancelled and may only be
able to do so at a significantly lower rate. Prospective investors should consider remvestment nsk in
light of other investments available at that time.

The market price of Fund Linked Securities may be volatile and may depend on the time remaining to the
redemption date or settlement date (as applicable) and the volatility of the price of fund share(s) or unit(s).
The price of fund share(s) or unit(s) may be affected by the economic, financial and political events in one or
more jurisdictions, including factors affecting the exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which any units in
the fund or funds may be traded.

Risks relating to Inflation Lmked Securities

Each Issuer may issue Inﬂatlon Lmked Securities where the Final Redemption Amount, Cash Settlement
Amount or interest payable are dependent upon the level of an inflation index or indices. An investment in
Inflation Linked Securities will entail significant risks not associated with a conventional debt security.

Inflation Linked Redemption Notes may be redeemable by the Issuer by payment of the par value amount
and/or by payment of an amount determined by reference to the value of the inflation index/indices. Interest
payable on Inflation Linked Interest Notes may be calculated by reference to the value of one or more
inflation index/indices. ‘

Inflation Linked W&C Securifies will be settled by payment of an amount determined by reference to the -
value of the inflation index/indices.

Potential investors in Inflation Linked Securities should be aware that depending on the terms of the Inflation
Linked Securities (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payments may occur at a
different time than expected and (iii) except in the case of principally protected Securities, they may lose all
or a substantial portion of thelr principal investment if the value of the inflation index does not move in the
anticipated direction.

In addition, the movements in ‘the level of the inflation index may be subject to signiﬁcant fluctuations that
may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the timing of changes in the
relevant level of the inflation index may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average level is
consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the level of an inflation index or
result of a formula, the greater the effect on yield.

If the Final Redemption Amount Cash Settlement Amount or interest payable are determined in conjunctmn
with a multiplier greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the
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level of an inflation index on the Final Redemption Amount, Cash Settlement Amount or interest payable
will be magnified.

Pursuant to the relevant Terms and Conditions, the Calculation Agent may make determinations in relation to
the inflation index or indices, and in certain circumstances, following cessation of publication of the inflation
index, the Calculation Agent may determine that there is no appropriate alternative inflation index, in which
case the relevant Issuer may redeem or cancel the Securities, as applicable. Such determinations may have an
effect on the timing of valuation and consequently the value of the Securities and/or may delay settlement in
respect of the Securities. Prospective purchasers should review the relevant Terms and Conditions of the
Securities and the applicable Final Terms to ascertain whether and how such provisions apply to the
Securities.

The market price of Inflation Linked Securities may be volatile and may depend on the time remaining to the
redemption date or exercise date (as applicable) and the volatility of the level of the inflation index. The
level of the inflation index may be affected by the economic, financial and political events in one or more
jurisdictions.

Risks relating to Credit Linked Notes and Certificates

The Issuers may issue Credit Linked Notes or Credit Linked Certificates where the amount payable is
dependent upon whether certain events ("Credit Events") have occurred in respect of one or more Reference
Entity/Entities and, if so, on the value of certain specified assets of such Reference Entity/Entities or where,
if such events have occurred, on redemption the relevant Issuer's obligation is to deliver certain specified
assets.

Prospective investors in any such Credit Linked Notes or Credit Linked Certificates should be aware that
depending on the terms of the Credit Linked Notes or Credit Linked Certificates (i) they may receive no or a
limited amount of interest, (ii) the payment of the redemption amount or interest or delivery of any specified
assets may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) they may lose all or a substantial portion of their
investment.

The market price of Credit Linked Notes or Credit Linked Certificates may be volatile and will be affected
by, amongst other things, the time remaining to the redemption date or settlement date, as applicable,
prevailing credit spreads and the creditworthiness of the reference entity which in turn may be affected by
the economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions.

Where the Credit Linked Notes or Credit Linked Certificates provide for physical delivery, the relevant
Issuer may determine that the specified assets to be delivered are either (a) assets which for any reason
(including, without limitation, failure of the relevant clearance system or due to any law, regulation, court
order or market conditions or the non-receipt of any requisite consents with respect to the delivery of assets
which are loans) it is impossible or illegal to deliver on the specified settlement date or (b) assets which the
relevant Issuer and/or any Affiliate and/or agent has not received under the terms of any transaction and/or
trading position entered into by the relevant Issuer and/or such Affiliate and/or agent to hedge the relevant
Issuer's obligations in respect of the Credit Linked Notes or Credit Linked Certificates. Any such
determination may delay settlement in respect of the Credit Linked Notes or Credit Linked Certificates
and/or cause the obligation to deliver such specified assets to be replaced by an obligation to pay a cash
amount which, in either case, may affect the value of the Credit Linked Notes or Credit Linked Certificates
and, in the case of payment of a cash amount, will affect the timing of the valuation of such Credit Linked
Notes or Credit Linked Certificates and as a result, the amount payable on redemption. Prospective investors
should review the relevant Terms and Conditions and the applicable Final Terms to ascertain whether and
how such provisions should apply to the Credit Linked Notes or Credit Linked Certificates.

The relevant Issuer, the Dealer(s) or any of their respective Affiliates may have acquired, or during the term
of the Securities may acquire, non-public information with respect to the Reference Entity/Entities that they
may not disclose. Prospective investors must therefore make an investment decision based upon their own
due diligence and purchase the Credit Linked Notes or Certificates in the knowledge that non-public
information which the relevant Issuer, the Dealer(s) or any of their respective Affiliates may have will not be
disclosed to investors. None of the relevant Issuer, the Dealer(s) or any of their respective Affiliates is under
any obligation (i) to review on the Holders' behalf, the business, financial conditions, prospects,
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creditworthiness, status or affairs of the Reference Entity/Entities or conduct any investigation or due
diligence into the Reference Entity/Entities or. (i) other than as may be required by applicable rules and
regulations relating to the Securities, to make available (a) any information relating to the Securities or (b)
any non-public information they may possess in respect of the Reference Entity/Entities.

~ In the case of Physical Delivery, where the Reference Obligation is a loan, in order for the Delivery of the
loan (or an interest in the loan) to be effected, the Reference Obligation must be capable of being transferred
to the Holder in accordance with its terms and the Holders must have the capacity to hold such loan (or loan
interest).

The relevant Issuer's obligations in respect of Credit Linked Notes or Credit Linked Certiﬁcates are
irrespective of the existence or amount of the relevant Issuer's and/or any Affiliates' credit exposure to a
Reference Entity and the Issuer and/or any Affiliate need not suffer any loss nor provide evidence of any loss
as a result of the occurrence of a Credit Event.

Risks relating to Securities generally
Securities are Unsecured Obligations

The Securities constitute direct, unsubordinated, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the relevant
Issuer and rank equally among themselves and rank equally (subject to exceptions as are from time to time
provided by applicable laws) with all other present and future direct, unsubordinated, unconditional and
unsecured indebtedness or obligations, as applicable, of the relevant Issuer.

The obligations of ML&Co. under the Guarantee, save for such exceptions as may be provided by applicable
legislation or judicial order, rank pari passu with its other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated
indebtedness. '

Since ML&Co. is a holding company, the right of ML&Co., and hence the right of creditors of ML&Co.
(including the Holders), to participate in any distribution of the assets of any subsidiary (including the
relevant Issuer) upon its liquidation or reorganization or otherwise is necessarily subject to the prior claims
of creditors of the subsidiary, except to the extent that claims of ML&Co. itself as a creditor of the subsidiary
may be recognized. In addition, dividends, loans and advances from certain subsidiaries to ML&Co. are
restricted by net capital requirements under the Exchange Act and under the rules of certain exchanges and
other regulatory bodies. :

Market Disruption Event and Disrupted Day

If an issue of Securities includes provisions dealing with the occurrence of a market disruption event or a
failure to open of an exchange or related exchange on a Valuation Date, an Averaging Date or a Pricing Date -
and the Calculation Agent determines that a market disruption event or such failure has occurred or exists on
a Valuation Date, an Averaging Date or a Pricing Date, any consequentlal postponement of the Valuation
Date, Averaging Date or a Pricing Date or any alternative provisions for valuation provided in any Securities
may have an adverse effect on the value of such Securities.

Settlement Disruption Event and Failure to Deliver due to llliquidity

In the case of Physical Delivery Securities (other than Credit Linked Notes or Credit Linked Certificates), if
a Settlement Disruption Event occurs or exists on the Maturity Delivery Date (in the case of Notes) or
Settlement Date (in the case of W&C Securities), settlement will be postponed until the next date on which
no Settlement Disruption Event occurs. The relevant Issuer in these circumstances also has the right to pay
the Disruption Cash Redemption Price in lieu of delivering the Entitlement. Such a determination may have
an adverse effect on the value of the relevant Securities. In addition if "Failure to Deliver due to Illiquidity"
is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, and in the opinion of the Calculation Agent it is
impossible or impracticable to deliver some or all of the Relevant Assets comprising the Entitlement when
due as a result of illiquidity in the market for the Relevant Assets, the relevant Issuer has the right to pay the
Failure to Deliver Settlement Price in lieu of delivering those Relevant Assets.

Expenses

Holders of Physical Delivery Securities must pay all Expenses relating to such Physical Delivery Securities.
As used in the Terms and Conditions, "Expenses" includes any applicable depositary charges, transaction or
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exercise charges, stamp duty, stamp duty reserve tax, issue, registration, securities transfer and/or other taxes
or duties arising from the redemption, exercise and settlement (as applicable) of such Securities and/or the
delivery of the Entitlement.

No claim against any Reference Item

A Security will not represent a claim against any Reference Item and, in the event of any loss, a Holder will
- not have recourse under a Security to any Reference Item.

Option to vary settlement under the Guarantee

In relation to Physical Delivery Securities, under the Guarantee the Guarantor has the right at all times to
elect not to deliver or procure delivery of the Entitlement to the holders of Physical Delivery Securities, but
in lieu thereof to pay an amount in cash equal to the Guaranteed Cash Settlement Amount specified in the
applicable Final Terms or Securities Note. Such cash payment will constitute a complete discharge of the
Guarantor's obligations in relation to such Physical Delivery Securities.

Modification and Waivers

The relevant Conditions provide that the relevant Agent and the relevant Issuer may, without the consent of
Holders, agree to (i) any modification (subject to certain specific exceptions) of the Securities or the Agency
Agreement which is not prejudicial to the interests of the Holders or (ii) any modification of the Securities or
the Agency Agreement which is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is made to correct a manifest error
or proven error or to comply with mandatory provisions of law. ;

Meetings of Holders

The Terms and Conditions contain provisions for calling meetings of Holders to consider matters affecting
their interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all Holders including Holders
who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting and Holders who voted in a manner contrary to the
majority.

Hedging and other Potential Conflicts of Interest

The relevant Issuer, ML&Co. and/or any of their respective Affiliates or agents may engage in activities that
may result in conflicts of interests between their and their respective Affiliates' or agents' financial interests
on the one hand and the interests of the Holders on the other hand. The relevant Issuer, ML&Co. and/or any
of their respective Affiliates or agents may also engage in trading activities (including hedging activities)
related to the Reference Item(s) underlying any Securities and other instruments or derivative products based
on or related to the Reference Item(s) underlying any Security for their proprietary accounts or for other
accounts under their management. The relevant Issuer, ML&Co. and/or any of ML&Co.'s Affiliates or agents
may also issue other derivative instruments in respect of the Reference Item(s) underlying Securities. The
relevant Issuer, ML&Co. and/or any of ML&Co.'s Affiliates or agents may also act as underwriter in
connection with future offerings of shares or other securities related to an issue of Securities or may act as
financial adviser to certain companies, companies whose shares are included in a basket of shares, a
company which is a reference entity, or in a commercial banking capacity for any such companies. Such
activities could present certain conflicts of interest, could influence the prices of such shares or other
securities and could adversely affect the value of such Securities. The relevant Issuer also may enter into
arrangements with Affiliates or agents to hedge market risks associated with its obligations under the
Securities. Any such Affiliate or agent would expect to make a profit in connection with such arrangements.
The relevant Issuer would not seek competitive bids for such arrangements from unaffiliated parties.

Where the Securities are offered to the public, as the Dealer(s) and any distributors act pursuant to a mandate
granted by the relevant Issuer and they receive fees on the basis of the services performed and the outcome
of the placement of the Securities, potential conflicts of interest could arise.

Any additional risk factors relating to additional conflicts of interest with respect to such Securities will be
specified in the applicable Final Terms. »

In addition, unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Calculation Agent is an Affiliate of
the relevant Issuer and ML&Co. and in such capacity may make certain determinations and calculate
amounts payable or deliverable to Holders. Under certain circumstances, the Calculation Agent as an
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Affiliate of the relevant Issuer or ML&Co. and its responsibilities as Calculation Agent for the Securities
could give rise to potential conflicts of interest between the Calculation Agent and the Holders. As ML&Co
controls the Affiliate, potential conflicts of interest could arise.

Distributor(s) Fees

Investors should note that, in certain circumstances immediately following the issue of the Securities, the -
secondary market price of the Securities may be less than the Issue Price and/or the Offer Price in the event
that the Issue Price and/or the Offer Price included the fees to be paid to distributor(s).

Physical Delivery Requirements and Settlement Risk

In order to receive the Entitlement in respect of a Physical Delivery Note, the holder of such Note must
(1) duly deliver a duly completed Asset Transfer Notice on or prior to the relevant time on the Cut-Off Date
and (2) pay the relevant Expenses.

In order to receive the Entitlement in respect of a Physical Delivery W&C Security, the holder of such W&C
Security must (1) deliver or send to the relevant Agent (a) a duly completed Exercise Notice on or prior to
the relevant time on the Expiration Date (in the case of a Warrant) or (b) a duly completed Collection Notice
on or prior to the relevant time on the Cut-off Date (in the case of a Certificate) and (2) pay the relevant
Expenses.

If so indicated in the applicable Final Terms, the relevant Issuer has an option to vary settlement in respect of
the Securities. If exercised by the Issuer, this option will lead to Physical Delivery Securities being cash
settled or Cash Settled Securities being physically settled. Exercise of such option may affect the value of
the Securities.

lllegality of Securities

If the relevant Issuer determines that the performance of either its obligations under the Secuntles or the
obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee has or will become illegal in whole or in part for any ‘
reason, the relevant Issuer may redeem or cancel the Securities, as applicable.

If, in the case of illegality and to the extent permitted by applicable law, the relevant Issuer redeems or
cancels the Securities, then the relevant Issuer will, in the case of Notes, redeem each Note at the Early
Redemption Amount together (if appropriate) with interest accrued to (but excluding) the date of redemption,
or in the case of W&C Securities, pay an amount to each Holder determined by reference to the fair market
value of each Security less hedge costs, which may be less than the purchase price of the Securities and may
in certain circumstances be zero.

Additional Risk Factors

Additional risk factors in relation to specific issues of Securities may be included in the applicable Final
Terms.

Notes
Partly-paid Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the issue price is payable in more than one instalment. Failure to pay any
subsequent instalment could result in an investor losing all of his investment.

Notes subject to optional redemption by the Issuer

An optional redemption feature of Notes is likely to limit their market value. Durmg any period when the
Issuer may elect to redeem Notes, the market value of those Notes generally will not rise substantially above
the price at which they can be redeemed. This also may be true prior to any redemption period.

The Issuer may be expected to redeem Notes when its cost of borrowing is lower than the interest rate on the
Notes. At those times, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at an
effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Notes being redeemed and may only be able to do so
at a significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other
investments available at that time. :



Risks relating to W& C Securities
Certain Factors Afffecting the Value and Trading Price of W&C Securities

Either (1) the Cash Settlement Amount (in the case of Cash Settled W&C Securities) or (2) the value of the
Entitlement less (in the case of Warrants) the Exercise Price (the "Physical Settlement Value") (in the case
of Physical Delivery W&C Securities) at any time prior to expiration (in the case of a Warrant) or exercise
(in the case of a Certificate) is typically expected to be less than the trading price of such W&C Securities at
that time. The difference between the trading price and the Cash Settlement Amount or the Physical
Settlement Value, as the case may be, will reflect, among other things, the "time value" of the W&C
Securities. The "time value" of the W&C Securities will depend partly upon the length of the period
remaining to expiration (in the case of a Warrant) or exercise (in the case of a Certificate) and expectations
concerning the price or level of the Reference Item(s). W&C Securities offer hedging and investment
diversification opportunities but also pose some additional risks with regard to interim value. The interim
value of the W&C Securities varies with the price or level of the Reference Item(s), as well as by a number
of other interrelated factors, including those specified herein.

Before exercising W&C Securities, Holders should carefully consider, among other things, (i) the trading
price of the W&C Securities, (ii) the price or level and volatility of the Reference Item(s), (iii) the time
remaining to expiration (in the case of a Warrant) or exercise (in the case of a Certificate), (iv) in the case of
Cash Settled W&C Securities, the probable range of Cash Settlement Amounts, (v) any change(s) in interim
interest rates and dividend yields if applicable, (vi) any change(s) in currency exchange rates and (vii) any
related transaction costs.

An optional exercise or mandatory early exercise feature in W&C Securities is likely to limit their market
value. In the case of an optional exercise feature, during any period when the relevant Issuer may elect to
exercise W&C Securities, the market value of those W&C Securities generally will not rise substantially
above the price at which they can be exercised. This also may be true prior to any exercise period. In the
case of a mandatory exercise feature, if the relevant Mandatory Early Exercise Event occurs the W&C
Securities will be exercised prior to their originally designated exercise or expiry date. Potential investors
should be aware that in certain circumstances, an optional exercise or mandatory early exercise of the W&C
Securities by the relevant Issuer may result in a loss of all or a substantial portion of their investment.

Risks related to Warrants only
Time Lag after Exercise

In the case of any exercise of Warrants, there will be a time lag between the time a Holder gives instructions
to exercise and the time the applicable Cash Settlement Amount (in the case of Cash Settled Warrants)
relating to such exercise is determined. Any such delay between the time of exercise and the determination of
the Cash Settlement Amount will be specified in the Terms and Conditions of the W&C Securities. However,
such delay could be significantly longer, particularly in the case of a delay in exercise of Warrants arising
from any daily maximum exercise limitation (in the case of American Style Warrants), the occurrence of a
market disruption event or failure to open of an exchange or related exchange (if applicable) or following the
imposition of any exchange controls or other similar regulations affecting the ability to obtain or exchange
any relevant currency (or basket of currencies) in the case of FX Linked Warrants. The applicable Cash
Settlement Amount may change significantly during any such period, and such movement or movements
could decrease the Cash Settlement Amount of the Warrants being exercised and may result in such Cash
Settlement Amount being zero.

Minimum Exerc:se Amount

If so indicated in the applicable Final Terms, a Holder must tender or hold a specified number of Warrants at
any one time in order to exercise. Thus, Holders with fewer than the specified minimum number of Warrants
will either have to sell their Warrants or purchase additional Warrants, incurring transaction costs in each
case, in order to realise their investment. Furthermore, holders of such Warrants incur the risk that there may
be differences between the trading price of such Warrants and the Cash Settlement Amount (in the case of
Cash Settled Warrants) or the Physical Settlement Value (in the case of Physical Dellvery Warrants) of such
Warrants.
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Limitations on Exercise

In the case of American Style Warrants, if so indicated in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer will have the
option to limit the number of American Style Warrants exercisable on any date (other than the Expiration
Date) to the maximum number specified in the applicable Final Terms and, in conjunction with such
limitation, to limit the number of American Style Warrants exercisable by any person or group of persons
(whether or not acting in concert) on such date. In the event that the total number of American Style Warrants
being exercised on any date (other than the Expiration Date) exceeds such maximum number and the Issuer
elects to limit the number of American Style Warrants exercisable on such date, a Holder may not be able to
exercise on such date all American Style Warrants that such holder desires to exercise. In any such case, the
number of American Style Warrants to be exercised on such date will be reduced until the total number of
American Style Warrants exercised on such date no longer exceeds such maximum, such American Style
Warrants being selected at the discretion of the Issuer or in any other manner specified in the applicable Final
Terms. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, the American Style Warrants tendered for
exercise but not exercised on such date will be automatically exercised on the next date on which American
Style Warrants may be exercised, subject to the same daily maximum limitation and delayed exercise
provisions.

Rule 1444 Warrant Transfer Restrictions

Issue and transfers of Warrants to purchasers that intend to hold their Warrants through a Rule 144A Global
Warrant may be made only to or through MLICo. to purchasers (i) that have executed and delivered to the
Issuer an Investor Representation Letter pursuant to which such purchaser must certify, among other things,
that such purchaser is a QIB who is also a QP and (ii) that will hold their Warrants through DTC direct
participants that have executed and delivered to the Issuer a Custodian Letter and that have thereby become
"Authorised Custodians" with- ‘'respect to the Warrants. A transfer or attempted transfer of any Rule 144A
Warrant which does not comply with the applicable transfer restrictions shall be absolutely null and void ab
initio and shall vest no rights in the purported transferee.

Risks related to Certificates
Swedish Dematerialised Certificates - U.S. Certifications

The initial beneficial owner of a Swedish Dematerialised Certificate is required on the Issue Date to provide
certification to the relevant Issuer that such owner is not a U.S. person or persons who have purchased for
resale to any U.S. person. Before buying any Swedish Dematerialised Certificates on the secondary market,
investors should duly investigate as to whether such U.S. certification was properly provided in respect of
the issue of such Swedish Dematerialised Certificates. Investors will not receive any payments in respect of
any Swedish Dematerialised Certificates in respect of which such U.S. certification was not duly provided.

Risks related to the market generally

Set out below is a brief description of the principal market risks, including liquidity risk, exchange rate risk,
interest rate risk and credit risk.

Possible Illiquidity of the Securities in the Secondary Market

It is not possible to predict the price at which Securities will trade in the secondary market or whether such
market will be liquid or illiquid. Each Issuer may, but is not obliged to, list or admit to trading Securities on a
stock exchange or market. If the Securities are not listed or admitted to trading on any stock exchange or
market, pricing information for the Securities may be more difficult to obtain and the liquidity of the
Securities may be adversely affected. If the relevant Issuer does list or admit to trading an issue of
Securities, there can be no assurance that at a later date, the Securities will not be delisted or that trading on
such stock exchange or market will not be suspended. In the event of a delisting or suspension of listing or
trading on a stock exchange or market, the relevant Issuer will use its reasonable efforts to list or admit to
trading the Securities on another stock exchange or market. Also, (in the case of American Style Warrants)
to the extent Warrants of a particular issue are exercised, the number of Warrants of such issue outstanding
will decrease, resulting in a diminished liquidity for the remaining Warrants of such issue. A decrease in the
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liquidity of an issue of Warrants may cause, in turn, an increase in the volatility associated with the price of
such issue of Warrants.

The relevant Issuer cannot assure holders of the Securities that a trading market for their Securities will ever
develop or be maintained. Many factors independent of the creditworthiness of the relevant Issuer or
ML&Co. affect the trading market of the Securities. These factors include:

(a) the complexity and volatility of the Reference Item or formula or other basis of reference applicable
to the Securities,

(b) the method of calculating amounts payable and/or deliverable, or other consideration, if any, in
respect of the Securities,

(c) the time remaining to the expiration (in the case of Warrants), exercise (in the case of Certificates) or
redemption (in the case of Notes) of the Securities,

(d) the number of Securities outstanding,
(e) the settlement features of the Securities,

® the amount of other securities linked to the Reference Item or formula or other basis of reference
applicable to the Securities, and

(g) the level, direction and volatility of market interest rate generally.

In addition, certain Securities may be designed for specific investment objectives or strategies and, therefore,
may have a more limited secondary market and experience more price volatility. Holders may not be able to
sell such Securities readily or at prices that will enable them to realise their anticipated yield. No investor
should purchase Securities unless such investor understands and is able to bear the risk that such Securities
may not be readily saleable, that the value of such Securities will fluctuate over time, that such fluctuations
may be significant and that such investor may lose all or a substantial portion of the purchase price of the
Securities.

The relevant Issuer, ML&Co., or any of ML&Co.'s Affiliates may, but is not obliged to, at any time purchase
Securities at any price in the open market or by tender or private treaty for their own account for business
reasons or in connection with their hedging arrangements. Any Securities so purchased may be held or resold
or surrendered for cancellation. The relevant Issuer, ML&Co., or any of ML&Co.'s Affiliates may, but is not
obliged to, be a market-maker for an issue of Securities. Even if the relevant Issuer or such other entity is a
market-maker for an issue of Securities, the secondary market for such Securities may be limited. To the
extent that an issue of Securities becomes illiquid, an investor may have to exercise such Securities (in the
case of American Style Warrants) or wait until the Exercise Date (in the case of European Style Warrants or
Certificates) or the Maturity Date (in the case of Notes) of such Securities to realise value. These activities
may affect the price of such obligations or securities in a manner that would be adverse to a Holder's
investment in the Securities. The relevant Issuer and ML&Co. and its Affiliates have not considered, and are
not required to consider, the interest of investors as Holders in connection with entering into any of the above
mentioned transactions.

There may be less liquidity in the market for Securities if the Securities are exclusively offered to retail
investors without any offer to institutional investors.

If the Certificates are Italian Listed Certificates, the relevant Issuer (or an entity on behalf of the relevant
Issuer) will display continuous "bid" and "offer" prices for the Certificates, in accordance with the rules of
the SeDex.

Exchange rate risks and exchange controls

In the case of Cash Settled Securities the relevant Issuer will pay the Cash Settlement Amount (in the case of
W&C Securities) or Final Redemption Amount (in the case of the Notes) in respect of the Securities in the
Settlement Currency specified in the applicable Final Terms. This presents certain risks relating to currency
conversions if an investor's financial activities are denominated principally in a currency or currency unit
(the "Investor's Currency") other than the Settlement Currency or Specified Currency, as applicable (the
"Settled Currency"). These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly change (including
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changes due to devaluation of the Settled Currency or revaluation of the Investor's Currency) and the risk
that authorities with jurisdiction over the Investor's Currency may impose or modify exchange controls. An
appreciation in the value of the Investor's Currency relative to the Settled Currency would decrease (i) the
Investor's Currency-equivalent yield on the Securities, (ii) the Investor's Currency equivalent value of the
Cash Settlement Amount or Final Redemption Amount (as applicable) in respect of the Securities and (111)
the Investor's Currency equivalent market value of the Securities.

Government and monetary authorities may impose (as some have done in the past) exchange controls that
could adversely affect an applicable exchange rate. As a result, the Cash Settlement Amount (in the case of
Cash Settled Securities) or the Final Redemption Amount (in the case of Notes) that investors may receive
may be less than expected or zero.

Exchange Listing

When the relevant Issuer specifies in the applicable Final Terms that a Series of Securities is to be admitted
to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated market and admitted to listing on the Official List
of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and/or listed on or admitted to trading by any other relevant stock
exchange or market within the European Union ("EU"), which qualifies as a regulated market within the
meaning of Article 4(14) of the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (Directive 2004/39/EC) (each an
"EU Exchange"), the relevant Issuer expects, but is not obligated to Holders, to maintain such listing of the
Securities on such EU Exchange(s). Changed circumstances, including changes in listing requirements, could
result in a suspension or removal of any such listing, or cause the relevant Issuer to conclude that contmued
listing of the Securities on such EU Exchange(s) is unduly burdensome.

For example, Directive 2004/109/EC (the "Transparency Directive”) was adopted in December 2004 and
relates to information about issuers and guarantors of such issuers whose securities are admitted to trading on .
a regulated market in the EU. The Transparency Directive was requlred to be unplemented in EU Member
States by 20th January, 2007. It will have the effect of requiring U.S. companies (such as ML&Co.).
preparing their financial statements in accordance with United States Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("U.S. GAAP") to prepare financial statements in respect of any financial year starting on or after
1st January, 2009 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU
("IFRS"), in order for Securities issued or guaranteed by such entities to remain listed on such EU
Exchange(s), unless it is determined that U.S. law imposes "equivalent" requirements. The European
Commission is required to determine equivalence of GAAP of third countries, including the United States,
by six months before 1st January, 2009. It is unknown as of the date of this Base Prospectus whether the
requirement to prepare financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP will be determined to be
"equivalent" in all respects to the requirements of the Transparency Directive.

Because the proposed Transparency Directive may be implemented in a manner which could be unduly
burdensome for ML&Co., the relevant Issuer is under no obligation to maintain any listing or admission to
trading of the Securities. Accordingly, Holders should be aware that, in circumstances where a listing or
admission to trading on any EU Exchange(s) would require preparation of financial statements in accordance
with standards other than U.S. GAAP or require ML&Co. to provide additional information and/or a report
from its auditors as a result of differences between U.S. GAAP and IFRS, or in any other circumstances
where the EU Financial Services Action Plan is implemented in a manner that, in the opinion of ML&Co., is
unduly burdensome, Securities issued under the Programme may be de-listed. The relevant Issuer may, but is
not obliged to, seek an alternative listing for such Securities. However, if such an alternative listing is not
available to the relevant Issuer or is, in the opinion of the relevant Issuer, unduly burdensome, an alternative
listing for such Securities may not be obtained. Although no assurance is made as to the liquidity of such
Securities as a result of a listing on any EU Exchange(s), de-listing of Securities from any EU Exchange(s)
may have a material affect on the ability of Holders to resell such Securities in the secondary market.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and regulatlons, or review
or regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal advisers to determine
whether and to what extent (1) Securities are legal investments for it, (2) Securities can be used as collateral
for various types of borrowing and (3) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of any Securities.
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Financial institutions should ¢onsult their legal advisors or the appropriate regulators to determine the
appropriate treatment of Securities under any applicable risk-based capital or similar rules. '

49



COMMONLY ASKED QUESTIONS ABOUT THE PROGRAMME

This description is intended to give you an overview of the Issuers and the types of Securztzes that may be
issued under the programme. Any decision to invest in any Securities should only be made after you have
carefully read and understood all of the information set out or incorporated by reference in this document
and the applicable Final Terms or the Registration Document and applicable Securities Note and Summary

(if any).
What is Merrill Lynch S.A. and Merrill Lynch International & Co. C.V.?

MLSA is a Luxembourg publlc limited liability company. MLSA was incorporated on 18th December, 1991
as a société anonyme for an unlimited period.

MLICo. is a Netherlands Antilles limited partnership of unlimited duration which commenced operation on
1st August, 1975 under registered number 11705 in the Commercial Registry of the Chamber of Commerce
in Curagao

What do the Issuers do?

The Issuers are finance vehicles whose principal purposes are to raise debt or enter into financial contracts to
assist the financing activities of the relevant Issuer's affiliates.

What types of product will be issued under the Programme?

MLSA may issue Notes and Certificates and MLICo. may issue Certificates and Warrants (together with the
Notes, the "Securities"). The Securities are unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by ML&Co. The
Issuers may issue conventional debt securities including fixed or floating rate notes as well as Securities with
returns linked to one or more underlying asset or basis of reference ("Linked Securities"). The returns on
Securities may be received by investors in interest (in the case of Notes) or additional amounts (in the case of
W&C Securities) and/or on redemption (in the case of Notes) or exercise (in the case of Warrants or
Certificates).

The return on Linked Securities may be linked to the performance of one or a combination of a wide range of
reference bases which may include, but will not be limited to, indices (including equity, bond or commodity
indices), currency exchange rates, shares (including GDRs and/or ADRs), fund shares or units, commodities,
inflation indices or the credit of one or more underlying entities. The composition of the relevant reference
basis or bases may be designed to change over time in accordance with the relevant terms and conditions.

The relevant terms and conditions of a particular issue of Secuntles will specify the applicable returns, when
such returns are payable or deliverable (see below) and the terms on which they are payable (including
whether capital is at risk) or deliverable (see below). Any return will normally be paid by the relevant Issuer
at maturity (in the case of Notes) or settlement (in the case.of Warrants and Certificates) as part of the
applicable Final Redemption Amount (in the case of Notes) or the Cash Settlement Amount (in the case of
Warrants and Certificates). Any interest or-additional amounts, as the case may be, will normally be paid by
the relevant Issuer on specified dates. In certain circumstances the return on redemption or settlement of
Securities may be the physical delivery of certain specified assets (the Entitlement) after payment by the
investor of certain cash sums to the Issuer such as Expenses or, in the case of Warrants, the relevant Exercise
Price. :

The relevant terms and conditions of a particular issue of Securities will be the terms and conditions for the
Securities set out in this Base Prospectus as completed, amended and supplemented in the applicable Final
Terms or applicable Securities Note. : .

How much of my investment is at risk?

Some of the Notes will guarantee a minimum Final Redemption Amount on the Maturity Date for such
Notes. Other Securities will put the investor's investment at risk in whole or in part so that they may receive
an amount or assets with a value less than their original investment or lose their entire investment. The
product terms and conditions will make it clear whether, and in what circumstances, an investor's investment
is at risk. If the terms and conditions of a particular product provide that an investor's entire investment could
be lost, an investor should only invest in the Securities if they are willing to accept that risk.
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Each potential investor should also note that any return received on the Securities could be lower than the
interest that the investor could have earned by investing in a simple fixed rate product (like a bank or
building society account) paying the prevailing market rate.

Therefore some Securities may not be suitable for a potential investor who would prefer a lower risk
investment.

What should I read before investing?

You should carefully read and understand this Base Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms or applicable
Securities Note and Summary (if any) prior to investing in any Securities.

This Base Prospectus contains information about the Issuers and Guarantor, the general terms and conditions
of Securities and general information about the offer and issue of Securities. The applicable Final Terms or
applicable Securities Note will contain the specific terms and conditions of such Securities together with
information about how investors can purchase them (if applicable), product specific risk factors and other
product specific information.

It is important that you obtain, carefully read and understand the applicable Final Terms or applicable
Securities Note and Summary (if any) for Securities in which you are considering to invest.

Who is Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc?

Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc. is a holding company and together with its subsidiaries, provides investment,
financing, insurance and related services to individuals and institutions on a global basis through its broker,
dealer, banking and other financial services subsidiaries. A description of Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc. is set
out on pages 324 to 330 of this Base Prospectus.

What will the Issuer do with my money?

MLSA intends to use the net proceeds from the sale of the Notes for general corporate purposes, including
making loans to ML&Co. and its subsidiaries. ML&Co. intends to use the proceeds of such loans for general
corporate purposes. Such general corporate purposes may include the funding of investments in, or
extensions of credit to, its subsidiaries, the funding of assets of ML&Co. and its subsidiaries, the lengthening
of the average maturity of ML&Co.'s borrowings, and the financing of acquisitions. Pending such
application, the net proceeds will be applied to the reduction of short term indebtedness or temporarily
invested. Management of ML&Co. expects that it will, on a recurrent basis, engage in additional financings
as the need arises to finance the growth of ML&Co., through acquisitions or otherwise, or to lengthen the
average maturity of its borrowings. To the extent that Notes being purchased for resale by Merrill Lynch
International, Merrill Lynch Capital Markets AG or Merrill Lynch (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. are not resold, the
aggregate proceeds available to ML&Co. and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis would be reduced.

Each Issuer intends to use the net proceeds from each issue of W&C Securities issued by it for its general
corporate purposes. A substantial portion of the proceeds from the issue of W&C Securities may be used to
hedge market risk with respect to such W&C Securities. If in respect of any particular issue of
W&C Securities, there is a particular identified use of proceeds, this will be stated in the applicable Final
Terms.

What are the risks of investing in any Securities?

Before making an investment in any Securities, you should carefully consider all of the information set out in
the Base Prospectus relating to the relevant Securities as well as your own personal circumstances. You
should have particular regard to, among other matters, the considérations described under the heading "Risk
Factors" on pages 28 to 49 of this document and in the applicable Final Terms or applicable Securities Note.

In order to offer the possibility of higher returns, some Securities will carry higher risks. The applicable .Final
Terms or applicable Securities Note for a series of Securities will state whether your investment is designed
to be at risk and set out the terms on which your investment will be repaid.

What fees and expenses are payable in connection with my Securities?

The Issuers have incurred and will continue to incur fees and expenses which do not directly relate to one or
more specific series of Securities. These expenses include (without limitation) fees and expenses incurred or
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to be incurred by or on behalf of the Issuers in connection with the preparation of this document, the
preparation and publication of financial statements and reports, and the general administration of the Issuers.
Certain of these expenses will be reimbursed or paid on behalf of the Issuers by Merrill Lynch International.

The fees and expenses which relate to a particular series of Securities will be described and funded as set out
in the applicable Final Terms or applicable Securities Note.

What tax will I have to pay?

General information relating to United States, Luxembourg, Netherlands Antilles and France taxation, is set
out under the heading "Taxation" on pages 332 to 348 of this Base Prospectus. If you are unsure of the tax
implications of making an investment in any Securities you should obtain professional tax advice.

Will my Securities be listed on a Stock Exchange?

Application has been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange for Securities issued under the Programme to
be admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated market and to be listed on the Official
List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Application has also been made to the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange for Securities issued under the Programme to be admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange's alternative market — Euro MTF - and to be listed on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange. The relevant Issuer may seek a listing for such Securities on the regulated market of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange, the Euro MTF or other stock exchanges, as applicable. The Issuers may also
issue Securities which are not listed. It will be. disclosed in the applicable Final Terms or applicable
Securities Note whether the relevant Securities are intended to be listed and, if so, on which stock exchange.

What are the terms on which Securities will be offered?

If applicable, details of the offer, including details of the Offer Period, Issue Price, minimum or maximum
subscription amounts, settlement arrangements and any other conditions applicable in relation to an offer of a
particular series of Securities and the relevant Issuer will be set out in the applicable Final Terms or
applicable Securities Note.

How can I hold my Securities?

The Issuers intend that the Securities will at all times be represented by a Global Note or a Global W&C
~ Security (a "Global Security"), except in the case of Swedish Securities, which will be in dematerialised

form. In relation to Securities represented by a Global Security or dematerialised securities, Securities will
normally be held by investors through custodial arrangements with their bank or broker.” Banks and brokers
will themselves hold such Securities through a Clearing System such as Euroclear, Clearstream Luxembourg,
Clearstream, Frankfurt, Euroclear France or VPC. In these circumstances the investors will have no direct
rights against the relevant Issuer and will only receive any Final Redemption Amount (in the case of Notes)
or Cash Settlement Amount (in the case of Warrants and Certificates) and/or interest (in the case of Notes) or
additional amounts (in the case of W&C Securities), if applicable, attributable to such Securities on the basis
of the arrangements entered into with their banks or brokers. Furthermore, the Clearing System register will
only show, and the relevant Issuer will only recognise, the nominee of such Clearing System as a Holder in
respect of such Securities. In certain limited circumstances a Global Security or dematerialised securities
may be exchangeable for definitive Securities. If this happens Holders will be notified.

Will 1 be able to sell my Securities?

Merrill Lynch or one of its affiliates may to use its reasonable endeavours in normal market conditions to
provide indicative bid and offer prices for the sale and purchase of Securities unless otherwise stated in the
applicable Final Terms or Securities Note. However, it is not obliged to do so and may cease such activities
at any time,

What do I have to do to exercise my rights in respect of the Securities?

Investors' rights relating to the Securities represented by a Global Security are governed by the procedures of
the relevant Clearing Systems and the terms and conditions of the Securities, as completed, amended and
supplemented in the applicable Final Terms. Investors should note that rights pertaining to certain Securities
may expire if the Securities are not duly exercised prior to the specified cut-off date. An investor wanting
rights in respect of Securities to be exercised on their behalf should contact their bank or broker.
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It is important that you obtain, carefully read and understand the general terms and conditions and
applicable Final Terms or applicable Securities Note for the Securities in which you are considering to
invest. :

Is there a limit on the amount of Securities the relevant Issuer will issue for each series?

Under the Programme, MLSA may issue Notes up to a total aggregate nominal value of
EUR15,000,000,000. There is no limit on the number or total amount of Warrants and Certificates the Issuers
can issue under the Programme. In respect of an issue of Securities, subject to the first sentence of this
paragraph, there is no limit to the amount or number of Securities that the Issuer may issue. The Issuers can
issue a series of Securities at any time without giving investors notice or obtaining their consent. Any
additional Securities issued by the relevant Issuer will rank equally with all existing Securities issued by the
relevant Issuer.

How are payments made?

In the case of Securities represented by a Global Security, the relevant Issuer will make payments by paying
the total amount payable to the Clearing System(s) in accordance with the rules and policies of the Clearing
Systems(s) or in the case of Warrants to the account specified by the Holder in the relevant Exercise Notice.

The Clearing System will credit the appropriate amount to the account of each Holder (which may include
intermediaries such as banks or brokers), in accordance with its rules or policies.

Neither the relevant Issuers nor the Guarantor has an obligation to make payments directly to investors in the
Securities. Each investor in the Securities must look to the Clearing System or its bank or broker for
payments on such investor's Securities.

If the date specified for payment is not a business day, the relevant Issuer will make the relevant payment on
the first following day that is a business day. On these occasions, the payment will be treated as if it were
made on the original specified date for payment and will not be considered a late payment. Accordingly, the
relevant Issuer will not be obliged to compensate the investor for the postponement. The term "Business
Day" is defined within the terms and conditions of the Securities.

In the case of Physical Delivery Securities, delivery of the Entitlement will be made directly to the Holder in
accordance with the delivery method specified in the terms and conditions.
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Issuers:

Guarantor:
Description:
Guarantee:
Calculation Agent:

Arranger:

Securities

Status of the Securities:

Status of the Guarantee:

" Approval, listing and
admission to trading;

Governing law:

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME

Merrill Lynch S.A.

Merrill Lynch International & Co C.V.

Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc.

Note, Warrant and Certificate Programme

The Securities are uncondiﬁonally and irrevocably guaranteed by ML&Co.

Merrill Lynch International or such other calculation agent specified in,fhé
applicable Final Terms.

Merrill Lynch International

Securities of any kind may be issued, including, but not limited to Index
Linked Securities, Share Linked Securities, Debt Linked Securities,
GDR/ADR Linked Securities, FX Linked Securities, Commodity Linked
Securities, Fund Linked Securities, Inflation Linked Securities and Credit
Linked Notes and Certificates.

Securities constitute direct, unsubordinated, unconditional and unsecured
obligations of the relevant Issuer and rank equally among themselves and
rank equally (subject to such exceptions as are from time to time provided
by applicable laws) with all other present and future direct, unsubordinated,
unconditional and unsecured indebtedness (in the case of Notes) or
obligations (in the case of W&C Securities) of the relevant Issuer.

The obligations of ML&Co. under the Guarantee, save for such exceptlons
as may be provided by applicable legislation or judicial order, rank pari
passu with its other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated
contractual obligations. :

Application has been made to the CSSF to approve this document as a base
prospectus. Application has also been made to the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange for Securities issued under the Programme to be admitted to

. trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's regulated market and to be

listed on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Application
has also been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange for Securities
issued under the Programme during the 12 months from the date of this
Base Prospectus to be admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange's alternative market — Euro MTF — and to be listed on the
Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

Securities may be listed or admitted to trading, as the case may be, on such
other or further stock exchange(s) or market(s) as determined by the
relevant Issuer. Securities which are neither listed nor admitted to trading
on any market may also be issued.

The Securities and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in
connection with them will be governed by, and construed in accordance
with, English law. The Guarantee will be governed by, and construed in
accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.
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FORM OF THE SECURITIES

Words and expressions defined in the "Terms and Conditions of the Notes" or "Terms and Conditions of the
W&C Securities”, as applicable, shall have the same meanings in this Form of the Securities.

Form of the Notes

Each Tranche of Notes will be in bearer form and will be initially issued in the form of a temporary global
note (a "Temporary Global Note") or, if so specified in the applicable Final Terms, a permanent global note
(a "Permanent Global Note") which, in either case, will:

@) if the Global Notes are intended to be issued in new global note ("NGN") form, as stated in the
applicable Final Terms, be delivered on or prior to the original issue date of the Tranche to a
common safekeeper (the "Commeon Safekeeper") for Euroclear Bank SA/NV ("Euroclear") and
Clearstream Banking, société anonyme ("Clearstream, Luxembourg"); and

(ii) if the Global Notes are not intended to be issued in NGN Form, be delivered on or prior to the
original issue date of the Tranche to a common depositary (the "Common Depositary") for,
Euroclear Bank S.A/N.V. ("Euroclear") and Clearstream Banking, sociét¢ anonyme
("Clearstream, Luxembourg”).

Whilst any Note is represented by a Temporary Global Note, payments of principal, interest (if any) and any
other amount payable in respect of the Notes due prior to the Exchange Date (as defined below) will be made
(against presentation of the Temporary Global Note if the Temporary Global Note is not intended to be
issued in NGN form) only to the extent that certification (in a form to be provided) to the effect that the
beneficial owners of interests in such Note are not U.S. persons or persons who have purchased for resale to
any U.S. person, as required by U.S. Treasury regulations, has been received by Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as applicable, has given a like
certification (based on the certifications it has received) to the Principal Paying Agent.

On and after the date (the "Exchange Date") which is 40 days after a Temporary Global Note is issued,
interests in such Temporary Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge) upon a request as described
therein either for (a) interests in a Permanent Global Note of the same Series or (b) for definitive Notes of the
same Series with, where applicable, receipts, interest coupons and talons attached (as indicated in the
- applicable Final Terms and subject, in the case of definitive Notes, to such notice period as is specified in the
applicable Final Terms), in each case against certification of beneficial ownership as described above unless
such certification has already been given. The holder of a Temporary Global Note will not be entitled to
collect any payment of interest, principal or other amount due on or after the Exchange Date unless, upon
due certification, exchange of the Temporary Global Note for an interest in a Permanent Global Note or for
definitive Notes is improperly withheld or refused.

Payments of principal, interest (if any) or any other amounts on a Permanent Global Note will be made
through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (against presentation or surrender (as the case may be)
of the Permanent Global Note if the Permanent Global Note is not intended to be issued in NGN form)
without any requirement for certification.

The applicable Final Terms will specify that a Permanent Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge),
in whole but not in part, for definitive Notes with, where applicable, receipts, interest coupons and talons
attached upon either (a) not less than 60 days' written notice expiring at least 30 days after the Exchange
Date from Euroclear and/or.Clearstream, Luxembourg (acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest
in such Permanent Global Note) to the Principal Paying Agent as described therein or (b) if"" the Issuer has
been notified that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have been closed for business for a
continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or otherwise) or have announced an
intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done so and no successor clearing system is available
(an "Exchange Event").The Issuer will promptly give notice to Noteholders in accordance with Note
Condition 13 if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event, Euroclear
and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest in such Permanent
Global Note) may give notice to the Principal Paying Agent requesting exchange. Any such exchange shall
occur not later than 45 days after the date of receipt of the first relevant notice by the Principal Paying Agent.
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‘No definitive Note delivered in exchange for a Temporary Global Note or a Permanent Global Note, as the -
case may be, will be mailed or otherwise delivered to any location in the United States or its possessions
during the restricted period (as such term is defined in U.S. Treasury Regulation Section 1.163-

S())HDMDXT))-

The following legend will appear on all Notes, definitive Notes, Receipts, and Coupons where such Notes
have an original maturity of more than 183 days and on all receipts and interest coupons relating to such
Notes:

"ANY UNITED STATES PERSON WHO HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO
LIMITATIONS UNDER THE UNITED STATES INCOME TAX LAWS, INCLUDING THE
LIMITATIONS PROVIDED IN SECTIONS 165(j) AND 1287(a) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE."

The sections of the Code referred to provide that United States holders, with certain exceptions, will not be
entitled to deduct any loss on Notes, Receipts or Coupons and will not be entitled to capital gains treatment
of any gain on any sale, disposition or payment of principal with respect to Notes, Receipts or Coupons.

Notes with maturities of 183 days or less are required to be issued in minimum denominations of
US$500,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies).

The following legend will appear on all global Notes, definitive Notes, Receipts and Coupons where such
Notes have maturities of 183 days or less and have denominations of US$500,000 or more (or its equivalent
in other currencies):

"BY ACCEPTING THIS OBLIGATION, THE HOLDER REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS THAT IT IS
NOT A UNITED STATES PERSON (OTHER THAN AN EXEMPT RECIPIENT DESCRIBED IN
SECTION 6049(b)(4) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE AND THE REGULATIONS
THEREUNDER) AND THAT IT IS NOT ACTING FOR OR ON BEHALF OF A UNITED STATES
PERSON (OTHER THAN AN EXEMPT RECIPIENT DESCRIBED IN SECTION 6049(b)(4) OF THE
INTERNAL REVENUE CODE AND THE REGULATIONS THEREUNDER)."

Form of Warrants

If the applicable Final Terms specify that Warrants are eligible for sale exclusively in the United States or to,
or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of
the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), the Warrants sold (a) in the
United States to qualified institutional buyers within the meaning of Rule 144A ("Rule 144A") under the
Securities Act ("QIBs") who are also each a qualified purchaser (each a "QP") within the meaning of Section
3(c)(7) and as defined in Section 2(a)(51) of the United States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended
(the "1940 Act") and the rules thereunder or (b) to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons who are
QIBs and also QPs will be represented by a Rule 144A Global Warrant (the "Rule 144A Global Warrant")
either:

(i)  deposited with the New York Warrant Agent as a custodian for, and registered in the name of a
nominee of, DTC (subject to the execution by the relevant investor's DTC direct participant of a
Custodian Letter in the form set out in the Agency Agreement); or :

(iv)  deposited with a Common Depository for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Warrants may be sold (a) in the United States to QIBs who are
also QPs or (b) to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons who are QIBs and also QPs and, in either
case, concurrently outside the United States to non-U.S. persons and will be represented by a Regulation
S/Rule 144A Global Warrant (the "Regulation S/Rule 144A Global Warrant") which will be deposited with
the Common Depository for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

If the applicable Final Terms indicate that the Warrants are not eligible for sale in the United States or to, or
for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons and are to be issued into and transferred through accounts at
Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, such series of Warrants will on issue be constituted by a permanent
global warrant, which will be deposited with the Common Depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg. :



If the applicable Final Terms indicate that the Warrants are not eligible for sale in the United States or to, or
for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons and are to be issued into and transferred through accounts at
Clearstream Banking AG, Frankfurt am Main ("Clearstream, Frankfurt"), such series of Warrants will on
issue be constituted by a permanent global warrant, which will be deposited with Clearstream, Frankfurt.

If the applicable Final Terms indicate that such Warrants are not eligible for sale in the United States or to, or
for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons and are to be issued into and transferred through accounts at
Euroclear France S.A. ("Euroclear France"), such series of Warrants will on issue be constituted by a
permanent global warrant, which will be deposited with Euroclear France.

If the applicable Final Terms indicate that such Warrants are not eligible for sale in the United States or to, or
for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons and are to be issued into and cleared through the Swedish CSD,
such series of Warrants will be issued in dematerialised and uncertificated book entry form in accordance
with the Swedish Financial Instruments Accounts Act (in Swedish: lag (1998: 1479) om kontoforing av
finansiella instrument).

Except in the limited circumstances specified in the W&C Securities Conditions, definitive Warrants will not
be issued.

Form of Certificates

If the applicable Final Terms indicate that the Certificates are to be issued into and transferred through
accounts at Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, such series of Certificates will on issue be constituted
by either a temporary global certificate in bearer form or a permanent global certificate in bearer form as
indicated in the applicable Final Terms which, in either case, will be deposited with the Common Depositary
for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

If the applicable Final Terms indicate that the Certificates are to be issued into and transferred through
accounts at Clearstream, Frankfurt, such series of Certificates will on issue be constituted by either a
temporary global certificate in bearer form or a permanent global certificate in bearer form as indicated in the
applicable Final Terms which, in either case, will be deposited with Clearstream, Frankfurt.

If the applicable Final Terms indicate that the Certificates are to be issued into and transferred through
accounts at Euroclear France, such series of Certificates will on issue be constituted by either a temporary
global certificate in bearer form or a permanent global certificate in bearer form as indicated in the applicable
Final Terms which, in either case, will be deposited with Euroclear France.

If the applicable Final Terms indicate that the Certificates ("Swedish Dematerialised Certificates") are to
be issued into and cleared through the Swedish CSD, such series of Certtificates will be issued in
dematerialised and uncertificated book entry form in accordance with the Swedish Financial Instruments
Accounts Act (in Swedish: lag (1998: 1479) om kontoforing av finansiella instrument) only to the extent that
certification (in a form to be provided) to the effect that the beneficial owners of interest in such series of
Swedish Dematerialised Certificates are not U.S. persons or persons who have purchased for resale to any
U.S. person, as required by U.S. Treasury Regulations, has been received by the Swedish CSD.

Definitive Certificates will only be issued in the circumstances specified below and in the W&C Securities
Conditions.

On or after the 40th day following the Issue Date of the Certificates, the temporary global certificate will be
exchangeable (a) for a permanent global certificate or (b) for definitive Certificates in bearer form
("Definitive Certificates" and each a "Definitive Certificate"), in each case only to the extent that
certification (in a form to be provided) to the effect that the beneficial owners of interests in such temporary
global certificate are not U.S. persons or persons who have purchased for resale to any U.S. person, as
required by U.S. Treasury Regulations, has been received by Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg,
Clearstream, Frankfurt or Euroclear France, as applicable, and Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg,
Clearstream, Frankfurt or Euroclear France, as applicable, has given a like certification (based on the
certification received) to the Principal Certificate Agent. A permanent global certificate will be exchangeable
(free of charge), in whole but not in part, for Definitive Certificates upon not less than 60 days' notice
expiring at least 30 days after the Exchange Date from Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg, Clearstream,
Frankfurt or Euroclear France, as applicable (acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest in such
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permanent global certificate). No Definitive Certificate delivered in exchange for a temporary global
certificate or a permanent global certificate, as the case may be, will be mailed or otherwise delivered to any
location in the United States or its possessions during the restricted period (as such term is defined in U.S.
Treasury Regulation Section 1.163-5(c)(2)())(D)(7)).

On or after the Issue Date of Swedish Dematerialised Certificates, a Certificateholder may request that all
(but not some only) of its Certificates (each such Certificate an "Exchanged Certificate") be cancelled and
exchanged (the date of such exchange the "Swedish Certificate Exchange Date") for Swedish Definitive
Certificates of a separate Series, upon giving not less than 45 and not more than 90 days' notice to the
relevant Issuer (such notice a "Swedish Certificate Exchange Notice"), subject to the delivery of
certification (in a form to be provided) to the effect that the beneficial owner of interest in the Exchanged
Certificate is not a U.S. person or a person who has purchased for resale to any U.S. person, as required by
U.S. Treasury Regulations, on the Issue Date. Except in relation to the Issue Date and the Issue Price and as
specified otherwise herein, a Swedish Definitive Certificate shall be issued on the same Terms and
Conditions as the relevant Exchanged Certificate. No transfer of any Exchanged Certificate shall be
permitted on or after the date of delivery of the Swedish Certificate Exchange Notice in respect of such
Certificate. In the event that a Swedish Dematerialised Certificate is to be cancelled and exchanged as
described herein, the relevant Issuer will notify the Swedish CSD and the Swedish Security Agent of such
cancellation and exchange and the Swedish Security Agent will make available at its specified office on the
Swedish Certificate Exchange Date a Swedish Definitive Certificate to the person registered as Holder in
respect of the relevant Exchanged Certificate on the fifteenth Business Day prior to the Swedish Certificate
Exchange Date. With effect from the Swedish Certificate Exchange Date the relevant Exchanged Certificate
shall be cancelled with no amounts due to the Holder in respect of such cancellation. No amounts (including
printing fees or other charges or expenses) shall be due and payable by the Holder in respect of the exchange
of its Swedish Dematerialised Certificate(s) for Swedish Definitive Certificate(s). The provisions related to
exercise and settlement in respect of Swedish Definitive Certificates shall be agreed between the relevant
Issuer and the Swedish Security Agent prior to the Issue Date of such Certificates and shall be set out in the
applicable Final Terms. No Swedish Definitive Certificate delivered in exchange for a Swedish
Dematerialised Certificate will be mailed or otherwise delivered to any location in the United States or its
possessions.

The following legend will appear on all Certificates in bearer form which have an original maturity of more
than 183 days:

"ANY UNITED STATES PERSON WHO HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO
LIMITATIONS UNDER THE UNITED STATES INCOME TAX LAWS, INCLUDING THE
LIMITATIONS PROVIDED IN SECTIONS 165(j) AND 1287(a) OF THE UNITED STATES INTERNAL
REVENUE CODE ".

Definitive Certificates with maturities of 183 days or less are required to be issued in minimum
denominations of US$500,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies).

The following legend will appear on all Definitive Certificates which have maturities of 183 days or less and
have denominations of US$500,000 or more (or its equivalent in other currencies):

"BY ACCEPTING THIS OBLIGATION, THE HOLDER REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS THAT IT IS
NOT A UNITED STATES PERSON (OTHER THAN AN EXEMPT RECIPIENT DESCRIBED IN
SECTION 6049(b)4) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE AND THE REGULATIONS
THEREUNDER) AND THAT IT IS NOT ACTING FOR OR ON BEHALF OF A UNITED STATES
PERSON (OTHER THAN AN EXEMPT RECIPIENT DESCRIBED IN SECTION 6049(b)(4) OF THE
INTERNAL REVENUE CODE AND THE REGULATIONS THEREUNDER). "
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FORM OF FINAL TERMS OF THE NOTES
[Date]

MERRILL LYNCH S.A.

Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Notes]
under the Merrill Lynch S.A. and Merrill Lynch International & Co. C.V.
Note, Warrant and Certificate Programme
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed as to payment and delivery obligations
by Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc.

[The Base Prospectus referred to below (as completed by these Final Terms) has been prepared on the basis
that, except as provided in sub-paragraph (ii) below, any offer of Notes in any Member State of the European
Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (2003/71/EC) (each, a "Relevant Member
State") will be made pursuant to an exemption under the Prospectus Directive, as implemented in that
Relevant Member State, from the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of the Notes. Accordingly
any person making or intending to make an offer of the Notes may only do so: '

(i) in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to publish a prospectus
pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 16
of the Prospectus Directive, in each case, in relation to such offer; or

(ii) in those Public Offer Jurisdictions mentioned in Paragraph 56 of Part A below, provided such person
is one of the persons mentioned in Paragraph 56 of Part A below and that such offer is made during
the Offer Period specified for such purpose therein. '

Neither the Issuer nor any Dealer has authorised, nor do they authorise, the making of any offer of Notes in
any other circumstances).!

The Notes, the Guarantee and, in certain cases, the Entitlement have not been and will not be registered
under the Securities Act or under any state securities laws and the Notes may not be offered, sold,
transferred, pledged, delivered, redeemed, directly or indirectly, at any time within the United States or to, or
for the account or benefit of, any U.S. person (as defined herein) except pursuant to an exemption from, or in
a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act. For the purposes hereof, "U.S.
person" means (i) an individual who is a citizen or resident of the United States; (ii) a corporation,
partnership or other entity treated as a corporation or partnership for United States federal income tax
purposes, created or organised in or under the laws of the United States, any State thereof or the District of
Columbia, or which has its principal place of business in the United States; (iii) any estate or trust which is
subject to United States federal income taxation regardless of the source of its income; (iv) any trust if a
court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of the trust and
if one or more United States trustees have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust (or any
trust which elected to be treated as a United States person prior to 20th August, 1996); (v) a pension plan for
the employees, officers or principals of a corporation, partnership or other entity described in (ii) above; or
(vi) any other "U.S. person" as such term may be defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act.

[The Base Prospectus referred to below (as completed by these Final Terms) has been prepared on the basis
that any offer of Notes in any Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the
Prospectus Directive (2003/71/EC) (each, a "Relevant Member State") will be made pursuant to an
exemption under the Prospectus Directive, as implemented in that Relevant Member State, from the
requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of the Notes. Accordingly any person making or intending to
make an offer in that Relevant Member State of the Notes may only do so in circumstances in which no
‘obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus
Directive or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive, in each case, in

! Consider including this legend where a non-exempt offer of Notes is anticipated (N.B. Not relevant for an issue of a Tranche of Notes with a

denomination equal to or greater than EUR 50,000 (or its equivalent in another currency).)
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relation to such offer. Neither the Issuer nor any Dealer has authorised, nor do they authorise, the making of
any offer of Notes in any other circumstances)].

PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Terms and Conditions set
forth in the Base Prospectus dated 16th September, 2008 [and the supplement to the Base Prospectus dated
®] which [together] constitute[s] a base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive (Directive
2003/71/EC) (the "Prospectus Directive"). This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes
described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction
with the Base Prospectus [as supplemented]. Full information on the Issuer, the Guarantor and the offer of
the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Base Prospectus [as
supplemented]. The Base Prospectus [and the supplement to the Base Prospectus] is [are] available for
viewing during normal business hours at the registered office of the Issuer and at the specified office of the
Paying Agents for the time being in London and Luxembourg and copies may be obtained from Merrill
Lynch Financial Centre, 2 King Edward Street, London, EC1A 1HQ. .

[The following alternative language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was
issued under a base prospectus/offering circular with an earlier date.

Terms used herein shall be deémed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Terms and Conditions (the
"Conditions") set forth in the [Base Prospectus/Offering Circular] dated {original date] [and the supplement
to the [Base Prospectus/Offermg Circular] dated ®] [and incorporated by reference into the Base Prospectus
dated 16th September, 2008] This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for
the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC) (the "Prospectus Directive")
and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated 16th September, 2008 [and the supplement
to the Base Prospectus dated ®] which [together] constitute[s] a base prospectus for the purposes of the
Prospectus - Directive[, save  in respect of the Conditions which are extracted from the [Base
Prospectus/Offering Circular] dated [original date] and are attached hereto. Full information on the Issuer,
the Guarantor and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final
Terms, the Base Prospectus dated 16th September, 2008 [,the supplement to the Base Prospectus dated @]
and the [Base Prospectus/Offering Circular] dated [orzgmal date]].* Copies of [such/the] [Base
Prospectus/[es] [and Offering Circular] are available for viewing during normal business hours at the
registered office of the Issuer and at the specified office of the Paying Agents at for the time being in London
and Luxembourg and copies may be obtained from Merrill Lynch Financial Centre, 2 King Edward Street,
London, EC1A 1HQ.

References herein to numbered Conditions are to the terms and conditions of the Notes and words and -
expressions defined in such terms and conditions shall bear the same meaning in these Final Terms, save as
where otherwise expressly provided.

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as "Not Applicable” (N/A) or delete relevant provision]

[When adding any other final terms or information consideration should be given as to whether such terms
or information constitute "significant new factors" and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to the
Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive or the use of a Securities Note or "unitary"
Prospectus.)

[The purchase of Notes involves substantial risks and is suitable only for investors who have the knowledge
and experience in financial and business matters necessary to enable them to evaluate the risks and the
merits of an investment in the Notes. Before making an investment decision, prospective purchasers of Notes
should ensure that they understand the nature of the Notes and the extent of their exposure to risks and that
they consider carefully, in the light of their own financial circumstances, financial condition and investment
objectives, all the information set forth in the Base Prospectus (including "Risk Factors " on pages 28 to 49
thereof) and these Final Terms.] ’

2 Consider including this legend where only an exempt offer of Notes is anticipated (N.B. Not relevant for an issue of a Tranche of Notes with a

denomination equal to or greater than EUR 50,000 (or its equivalent in another currency).)
3 Include where listing on London Stock Exchange.
4 Delete where listing on London Stock Exchange.
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[Prospective investors should note that, notwithstanding that the Terms and Conditions of the Notes set out in
this Base Prospectus are governed by English law, the Notes, Receipts and Coupons are governed by, and
construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.)*

[Insert any specific additional risk factors)

[No person has been authorised to give any information or make any representation not contained in or not
consistent with these Final Terms, or any other information supplied in connection with the Notes and, if
given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the
Issuer, the Guarantor or any Dealer.) '

[By investing in the Notes each investor represents that:

(a) Non-Reliance. 1t is acting for its own account, and it has made its own independent decisions to
invest in the Notes and as to whether the investment in the Notes is appropriate or proper for it
based upon its own judgement and upon advice from such advisers as it has deemed necessary. It is
not relying on any communication (written or oral) of the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Dealer as
investment advice or as a recommendation to invest in the Notes, it being understood that
information and explanations related to the terms and conditions of the Notes shall not be
considered to be investment advice or a recommendation to invest in the Notes. No communication
(written or oral) received from the Issuer, the Guarantor or any Dealer shall be deemed to be an
assurance or guarantee as to the expected results of the investment in the Notes.

@) Assessment and Understanding. It is capable of assessing the merits of and understanding (on its
own behalf or through independent professional advice), and understands and accepts the terms and
conditions and the risks of the investment in the Notes. It is also capable of assuming, and assumes,
the risks of the investment in the Notes.

(©) Status of Parties. None of the Issuer, the Guarantor and any Dealer is acting as fiduciary for or
adviser to it in respect of the investment in the Notes.]

Issuer: Merrill Lynch S.A.

2. Guarantor: Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc.
(i) Series Number: [ ]
(ii) Tranche Number: [ ]

If fungible with an existing Series, include details of that Series,
including the date on which the Notes become fungible

4, Specified Currency or Currencies: [ ]
Aggregate Nominal Amount:
(i) [Series:] [ ]
(i)  [Tranche: [ 1
. 6. Issue Price: [ ] per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount [plus

accrued interest from [insert date] (in the case of fungible issues
only, if applicable)]

7. @) Specified Denominations: [ ]

[ ]

[(Notes (including Notes denominated in Sterling) in respect of
which the [issue proceeds] are to be accepted by the Issuer in
the United Kingdom, or whose issue otherwise constitutes a
contravention of section 19 FSMA and which have a maturity of

s Include in the case of a tap issue where the Notes to be increased are issued pursuant to the previous MLSA EMTN Program terms and

conditions incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus which are governed by New York law.
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10.

11,

(ii) Calculation Amount:

[()] Issue Date [and Interest
Commencement Date]:

(ii) [Interest Commencement
Date (if different from the
Issue Date):

Maturity Date:

Interest Basis:

Redemption/Payment Basis:

less than one year must have a [redemption value] of £100,000
(or its equivalent in other Specified Currencies))) :

[If the Notes have a maturity of 183 days or less from their date
of issue, the minimum denomination must be at
leastUS$500,000 or its equivalent in any other currency.]

[ ]

(If only one Specified Denomination, insert the Specified
Denomination

If more than one Specified Denomination, insert the highest
common factor. Note: There must be a common factor in the
case of two or more Specified Denominations.)

[ ]

[ 1

[Fixed Rate Note - specify date/

Floating Rate Note - Interest Payment Date falling on or nearest
to [specify month]] [(the "Scheduled Maturity Date")] [subject
as provided in Credit Linked Condition 6 [,/and] [Credit Linked
Condition 7 [and] [Credit Linked Condition 8] (include for
Credit Linked Notes))

[[ ] per cent. Fixed Rate] }
[[LIBOR/EURIBOR] +/- [ ] per cent. Floating Rate]
[Zero Coupon] ‘

[Index Linked Interest]

[Share Linked Interest]

[Debt Linked Interest]

[GDR/ADR Linked Interest]

[FX Linked Interest]

[Commodity Linked Interest]

[Fund Linked Interest]

[Inflation Linked Interest]
[Non-Interest bearing]

[specify other]
[(further particulars specified below)]

[Redemption at par]

[Index Linked Redemption]
[Share Linked Redemption]

[Debt Linked Redemption]
[GDR/ADR Linked Redemption]
[FX Linked Redemption] .
[Commodity Linked Redemption]

[Fund Linked Redemption]
[Inflation Linked Redemption]

[Credit Linked Redemption]

[Partly Paid]
[Instalment]
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12. Change of Interest Basis or
Redemption/ Payment Basis:

13. Put/Call Options:

14. @)
(i)

Status of the Notes:
Status of the Guarantee:

[specify other]

(N.B. If the Final Redemption Amount is other than 100 per
cent. of the nominal value the Notes will be derivative securities
fJor the purposes of the Prospectus Directive and the
requirements of Annex XII to the Prospectus Directive

Regulation will apply.) '

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Specify details of any provision for change of Notes into
another Interest Basis or Redemption/ Payment Basis]

[Investor Put]
[Issuer Call]
[(further particulars specified below)]

Senior

Senior

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY)IPAYABLE
15. Fixed Rate Notes

®

(i)

(iii)

@iv)

™

Rate(s) of Interest:

Interest Payment Date(s):

Fixed Coupon
Amount(s):

Broken Amount(s):

Day Count Fraction:

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[ ] per cent. per annum [payable [annually/semi-
annually/quarterly] in arrear)

(If payable other than annually, consider amending
Condition 4) :

(Not applicable in the case of a flat coupon amount; in which
case consider disapplying interest accrual provisions in relation
to any Early Redemption Amount.)

([ ] in each year up to and including the Maturity
Date)/[specify other]

(NB: This will need to be amended in the case of long or short
coupons)

[ ] per Calculation Amount

[[ ] per Calculation Amount payable on the Interest Payment
Date falling on[ ]/Not Applicable]

[Insert particulars of any initial or final broken interest
amounts which do not correspond with the Fixed Coupon
Amount(s))

[Actual/Actual (ICMA)
Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)
Actual/365 (Sterling)
Actual/360

30/360 (ICMA)

30/360

30E/360

30E/360 (ISDA)
Other)
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16.

(vi)

(vid)

Determination Date(s):

Other terms relating to
the method of calculating
interest for Fixed Rate
Notes:

Floating Rate Notes

®

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Specified
Period(s)/Specified
Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day
Convention:

Additional Business
Centre(s): '

Manner in which the
Rate of Interest and
Interest Amount is to be
determined:

[(NB: Actual/Actual (ICMA) is normally only appropriate for
Fixed Rate Notes denominated in euros)]

[ ] in each year

[Insert regular interest payment dates, ignoring issue date or
maturity date in the case of a long or short first or last coupon .
(NB: This will need to be amended in the case of regular
interest payment dates which are not of equal duration))

(NB: Only relevant where Day Count Fraction is Actual/Actual
(ICMA)) :

[None/Give details]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[ ]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day :
Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/[specify
other]]

[ ]
[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination/Range -
Accrual/specify other] .

[If Range Accrual insert following language:

The Rate of Interest for each Interest Period shall be determined
by the Calculation Agent in accordance with the following
formula:

Coupon x (/N)
Where:

"Coupon" means| ]

"n" means the total number of calendar days in the relevant
Interest Period on which the Reference Rate (as defined below)
is within the Range.

"N" means the actual number of calendar days in the relevant
Interest Period.

"Range" means for each Interest Period in the period from (and
including) [ ] to (but excluding) [ ~ ], equal to or greater
than zero but less than or equalto[ ] per cent.

"Reference Rate" means, in respect of a calendar day, the rate
for deposits in [ ] for a period of [ ] months which
appears on [insert page reference] (or such successor page or
service as may in the determination of the [Calculation Agent]
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)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Party responsible for
calculating the Rate of
Interest and Interest
Amount (if not the

Principal Paying Agent):

Screen Rate
Determination:

- Reference Rate:

- Interest _
Determination
Date(s):

- Relevant Screen
Page:

- Rate Multiplier

ISDA Determination:

- Floating Rate
Option:

- Designated
Maturity:

- Reset Date:
Margin(s):
Minimum Rate of

replace such page or service) (the "Screen Page") as of [insert
time] on such calendar day or if the Screen Page is not available
or the relevant rate is not quoted and it is impossible or
otherwise impracticable to obtain the relevant rate, the rate
determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole discretion from
such source(s) and at such time as it may select,

Provided That if a calendar day is not a Business Day the
Reference Rate for such calendar day shall be the Reference
Rate for the immediately preceding Business Day,

Provided Further That for each calendar day in an Interest
Period falling after the seventh (7) Business Day prior to the
[end of such Interest Period)], the Reference Rate shall be the
Reference Rate on such seventh (7) Business Day.

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(if not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph) ‘ .

[ ]

(Either LIBOR, EURIBOR or other, although additional
information is required if other - including fallback provisions
in the Agency Agreement)

[ ]

(Second London business day prior to the start of each Interest
Period if LIBOR (other than Sterling or euro LIBOR), first day
of each Interest Period if Sterling LIBOR and the second day on
which the TARGET2 System is open prior to the start of each
Interest Period if EURIBOR or euro LIBOR)

[ ]

(In the case of EURIBOR, if not Reuters EURIBORO! ensure it
is a page which shows a composite rate or amend the fallback
provisions appropriately)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(specify formula)
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]

[+/-1[ ] per cent. per annum

[ ] per cent. per annum
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17.

18.

Interest:

(x) Maximum Rate of
Interest:

(xi)  Day Count Fraction:

(xii)  Fall back provisions,

rounding provisions and
any other terms relating
to the method of
calculating interest on
Floating Rate Notes, if
different from those set
out in the Terms and
Conditions:

Zero Coupon Notes

@) Accrual Yield:
(ii) Reference Price:
(iii)  Any other formula/basis

of determining amount
payable:

(iv)  Day Count Fraction in
v relation to Early
Redemption Amounts
and late payment:

Index Linked Interest Notes

@) Index/Basket of

Indices/Index Sponsor(s):

(ii) Formula for calculating
interest rate including

[ ] per cent. per annum

[Actual/Actual (ICMA)
30/360

Actual/Actual (ISDA)
Actual/365 (Fixed)
Actual/365 (Sterling)
Actual/360

30/360 (ICMA)

30/360

30E/360

30E/360 (ISDA)
Other]

(See Condition 4 for alternatives)

[ ]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)
[ ] per cent. per annum

[ ]

[ ]

[Conditions [6(E)(c)] and [6(L)] apply/specify other)
(Consider applicable day count fraction if not US$
denominated)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[The provisions of Annex 1 of the Terms and Conditions —
Additional Terms and Conditions for Index Linked Securities
shall apply.]

[ ]
[The [
[The Index Currency for the [

L1

] Index is a Multi-Exchange Index]
JIndexis[ 1]
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~ back up provisions:

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

(ix)
x)

(xi)
(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)
(xv)

(xvi)
(xvii)

(xviii)

(xx)

(xxi)

(xxii)

Calculation Agent
responsible for making

calculations in respect of

the Notes: -

| Specified

Period(s)/Specified
Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day
Convention:

Additional Business
Centre(s):

Minimum Rate of
Interest:

Maximum Rate of
Interest:

Day Count Fraction:

Averaging:

Index Performance:
Exchange Rate:

Weighting:

Exchange(s):
Related Exchange:
Valuation Date(s):
Valuation Time:
Observation Date(s):
Observation Period:
Disrupted Day:

Trade Date:

Additional Disruption
Events:

[

[

[ 1
N

[

[ 1

[ ]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day

- Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/specify other]

[ ]

[ ] per cent. per annum
[ ] per cent. per annum
| ]

[The Averaging Dates are [ 11

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day,
[Omission/ Postponement/ Modified Postponement] will apply.]

(1]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[insert details)

The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the Basket
to ascertain the Index Performanceis[ = ]. (N.B. Only
applicable in relation to Index Linked Notes relating to a
Basket)

[ 1
J/[All Exchanges]

]

]
]

If a Valuation Date, an Averaging Date or an Observation Date,
as the case may be, is a Disrupted Day, the relevant level or
price will be calculated [insert calculation method)

(N.B. Only applicable where provisions in Index Linked
Conditions are not appropriate)

( ]
The following Additional Disruption Events apply to the Notes:

[Change of Law]

67



19.

(xxiii) Other terms or special
conditions: '

Share Linked Interest Notes

@) Share(s)/Basket of

Share(s):

(ii) Formula for calculating
interest rate including
back up provisions:

(iii)  Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations in respect of
the Notes:

(iv)  Specified
Period(s)/Specified
Interest Payment Dates:

(%) Business Day
Convention:

(vi)  Additional Business
Centre(s):

(vii) Minimum Rate of
Interest:

(viii) Maximum Rate of
Interest:

(ix)  Day Count Fraction:
(x) Averaging:

(xi)  Share Performance:
(xii)  Exchange Rate:

(xiii) Weighting:

(xiv) Exchange(s):
(xv)  Related Exchange:

[Hedging Disruption]
[Increased Cost of Hedging]

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph) '

[The provisions of Annex 2 of the Terms and Conditions —
Additional Terms and Conditions for Share Linked Securities
shall apply.]

[ ]

[ ]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/specify other]

[ - ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]

[The Averaging Dates are [ 1]

[In the event that an Averaging Dateisa Disrupted Day,
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] will apply.]

[ 1]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[insert details]

The weighting to be applied to each iter comprising the Basket
to ascertain the Share Performance is [ ). (N.B. Only
applicable in relation to Share Linked Notes relating to a
Basket)

[ ]
[ - VAl Exchanges]
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20.

(xvi) Valuation Date(s):

(xvii) Valuation Time:

(xviii) Observation Date(s):

(xix)  Observation Period:

(xx)  Disrupted Day:

(xxi) Tender Offer: ,

(xxii) Share Substitution:

(xxiii) Local Tax Adjustment:

(xxiv) Trade Date:

(xxv) Additional Disruption
Events:

(xxvi) Other terms or special
conditions:

Debt Linked Interest Note

Provisions

(i) Debt Instruments/Basket
of Debt Instruments:

(i) Debt Instrument Price:

(iii)  Formula for calculating

interest rate including
back up provisions:

~ e e e

[If a Valuation Date, an Averaging Date or an Observation
Date, as the case may be, is a Disrupted Day, the relevant price
will be calculated [insert calculation method]

(N.B. Only applicable where provisions in Share Linked
Conditions are not appropriate)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[If Applicable: Share Substitution Criteria is [ 1]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
Local Jurisdiction: [ ]
[ 1
The following ,Additional Disruption Events apply to the Notes:
[Change of Law]
[Hedging Disruption]
[Increased Cost of Hedging]
[Increased Cost of Stock Borrow]
[Initial Stock Loan Rate: | 1
[Insolvency Filing]
[Loss of Stock Borrow]
[Maximum Stock Loan Rate: [ 1]

[ ] ,
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this
paragraph)

[The provisions of Annex 3 of the Terms and
Conditions - Additional Terms and Conditions for Debt Linked
Securities shall apply.]

[ 1

[ 1]

(N.B. Complete only if different from definition contained in
Annex 3 of the Terms and Conditions - Additional Terms and
Conditions for Debt Linked Securities)
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21. -

22.

(iv)  Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations in respect of
the Notes:

) Specified
Period(s)/Specified
Interest Payment Dates:

(vi)  Business Day .
Convention:

(vii)  Additional Business

, Centre(s):

(viii) Minimum Rate of
Interest:

(ik) Maximum Rate of
Interest:

(x)  Day Count Fraction:

(xi)  Averaging:

(xii)  Valuation Date(s):
(xiii) * Valuation Time:
(xiv)  Observation Period:
(xv)  Weighting:

(xvi) Scheduled Trading Day:

~ (xvii) Relevant Screen Page:

(xviii) Redemption of Debt
Instruments:

(xix)  Other terms or special

conditions:
GDR/ADR Linked Interest Notes

FX Linked Interest Notes:

[ ]

[ 1

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/specify other]

[ ]
[ ]
| 1

[ ]

Averagiﬂg [applies/does not apply] to the Notes. [The
Averaging Dates are [ 1]

[ 1
[ 1

[ 1]

The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the Basket
to ascertain the Debt Instrument Priceis[ ]. (V.B. Only
applicable in relation to Debt Linked Notes relating to a Basket)

[ 1
[ ]

Where one or more of the relevant Debt Instruments is
redeemed (or otherwise ceases to exist) before the redemption
of the Notes, [insert appropriate fallback provisions).

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[The provisions of Annex 4 of the Terms and
Conditions - Additional Terms and Conditions for GDR/ADR
Linked Securities apply.]

(For GDR/ADR Linked Interest Notes complete sections for
Share Linked Interest Notes (paragraph 19 above) (completed
and amended as appropriate) and this section)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this

‘ paragraph)
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(i) Base Currency/Subject
Currency:

(ii) Currency Price:

(iii)  FX Market Disruption
Event(s):

@iv) FX Price Source(s):

\2) Specified Financial
Centre(s):

(vi)  Formula for calculating
interest rate including
back up provisions:

(vii)  Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations in respect of
the Notes:

(viii)  Specified
Period(s)/Specified
Interest Period:

(ix)  Business Day
Convention:

(x) Additional Business
Centre(s):

(xi)  Minimum Rate of
Interest:

(xii)) Maximum Rate of
Interest:

(xiii) Day Count Fraction:

(xiv)  Averaging:

(xv)  Valuation Date(s):
(xvi) Valuation Time:
(xvii) Weighting:

[The provisions of Annex 5 of the Terms and
Conditions - Additional Terms and Conditions for FX Linked
Securities shall apply.]

[ ]

[ ]

(N.B. Complete only if different from definition contained in
Annex 5 of the Terms and Conditions - Additional Terms and
Conditions for FX Linked Securities)

Inconvertibility Event: [Applicable/Not Applicable]
[other]

(N.B. Only complete if Inconvertibility Event and/or other
disruption events should be included as FX Market Disruption
Events)

[ ]

[ ]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day Convention/
Preceding Business Day Convention/specify other]

[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]

Averaging [applies/does not apply] to the Notes. [The
Averaging Dates are [ 11

[ ]

| ]

The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the Basket
to ascertain the Currency Price is [ ]

(N.B. Only applicable in relation to FX Linked Notes relating to
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23.

(xviii) Other terms or special

®

conditions:

Commodity Linked Interest

Notes

(i) Commodity/Commoditie
s/Commodity -
Index/Basket of
Commodity Indices:

(ii) Formula for calculating
interest rate including
back up provisions:

(iii)  Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations in respect of
the Notes:

(iv)  Specified

. Period(s)/Specified

Interest Payment Dates:

) Business Day
Convention:

(vi)  Additional Business
Centre(s):

(vi))  Minimum Rate of
Interest:

(viii) Maximum Rate of
-Interest:

(ix)  Day Count Fraction:
Commodity Reference
Price:

(xi)  Price Source:

(xii)  Exchange:

(xiii) Delivery Date:

(xiv)  Pricing Date:

(xv) Common Pricing:

(xvi) Additional Commodity
Market Disruption
Events:

a Basket)

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

ur not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[The provisions of Annex 6 of the Terms and
Conditions - Additional Terms and Conditions for Commodity
Linked Securities shall apply.)

| ]
[ ]
[ ]
[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day

Convention/Modified Following Business Day Convention/
Preceding Business Day Convention/specify other)

[ ]

( ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable] (N.B. Only applicable in relation
to Commodity Linked Notes relating to a Basket)

[specify any applicable additional Commodity Market

- Disruption Events}]
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24,

Additional provisions for
Commodity Trading
Disruption:
Disruption Fallback(s):

(xvii) Commodity Business
Day:

~ (xviii) Trade Date:

(xix) Weighting:

(xx)  Specified Price:

(xxi)  Other terms or special
conditions:

Fund Linked Interest Notes

) Fund/Basket of Funds:

(ii) Fund Interests:

(iii)  Formula for calculating

interest rate including

[Not Applicable]

[If Trading Disruption applies, specify any additional futures
contracts, options contracts or commodities and the related
exchange to which Trading Disruption relates]

[As set out in Commodity Linked Conditions}/[ ]
Commodity Index Cut-Off Date: [ ]

[ ]

[ ]

The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the Basket
is [ ] ‘

~ (N.B. Only applicable in relation to Commodity Linked Notes

relating to a Basket)

[high price]

[low price]

[average of the high price and the low price]
[closing price]

[opening price]

[bid price]

[asked price]

[average of the bid price and the asked price]
[settlement price]

[official settlement price]

[official price]

[morning fixing]

[afternoon fixing]

[spot price]

[other}

[ ]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph) .

[The provisions of Annex 7 of the Terms and Conditions —
Additional Terms and Conditions for Fund Linked Securities
shall apply.]

[ IThe[ ] Fund is an ETF.]
[[The Exchange for each Fund Share: [  ]]
[Related Exchange for each Fund Share: [ /All Exchanges]]

[Underlying Index foreach ETF:[ ]]
(N.B. Include for ETFs)

[ ]
[ ]
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25.

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)
(viii)
(ix)

(x)
(xi)

(xii)

(xii)
(xiv)

back up provisions:

Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations in respect of
the Notes:

Specified
Period(s)/Specified
Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day
Convention:

Additional Business
Centre(s):

Minimum Rate of
Interest:

Maximum Rate of
Interest:

Day Count Fraction:
Trade Date:

Valuation Date(s):
Valuation Time:

Other terms or special
conditions:

Inflation Linked Interest Notes:

@)

(ii)

(i)

@(iv)

v)

Inflation Inde)élBasket of
Inflation Indices/Inflation
Index Sponsor(s):

Formula for calculating
interest rate including
back up provisions:

Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations in respect of
the Notes:

Specified
Period(s)/Specified

" Interest Payment Dates:

Business Day
Convention:

[ ]

[ ]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/specify other]

[ ]

[ ] per cent. per annum
[ ] per cent. per annum
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]

[ ]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)
[The provisions of Annex 8 of the Terms and Conditions —

, Additional Terms and Conditions for Inflation Linked Securities

shall apply.]

[ ]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/specify other]
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(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

(ix)
(x)

(xi)
(xii)

(xiii)

Additional Business
Centre(s):

Minimum Rate of
Interest:

Maximum Rate of
Interest:

Day Count Fraction:
Related Bond:

Determination Date(s):

Cut-Off Date:

Other terms or special
conditions:

[ ]
[ ] per cent. per annum
[ ] per cent. per annum
[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

The Related Bond is: [ ] [Fallback Bond]
The End Date is: [ ]

[ ]

[ ]

[ ]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

26.

27.

Issuer Call:

®

(i)

(i)

(i)

Optional Redemption
Date(s):

Optional Redemption

Amount(s) of each Note

and method, if any, of
calculation of such
amount(s):

If redeemable in part:

(a) Minimum
Redemption
Amount:

(b) Maximum
Redemption
Amount:

Notice period (if other
than as set out in the
Conditions):

Investor Put:

®

(i)

Optional Redemption
Date(s):

Optional Redemption

Amount(s) of each Note

and method, if any, of
calculation of such

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[ ] per Calculation Amount

| ]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[ ] per Calculation Amount
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28.

29.

30.

amount(s):

(iii) . Notice period (if other
than as set out in the
Conditions):

Automatic Early Redemption:

() Automatic Early

Redemption Event:

(ii) Automatic Early
Redemption Amount:

(iii)y  Automatic Early
. Redemption Date:

Final Redemption Amount of each
Note:

Early Redemption Amount(s) of
each Note payable on redemption
for taxation reasons or on an event
of default or on an illegality (or, in
the case of Index Linked Notes,
following an Index Adjustment
Event or Additional Disruption
Event in accordance with the
Index Linked Conditions or, in the
case of Share Linked Notes and/or
GDR/ADR Linked Notes
following certain corporate events
or Additional Disruption Event in
accordance with the Share Linked
Conditions and/or the GDR/ADR
Linked Conditions, as applicable,
or in the case of Fund Linked
Notes, following a Fund Event or,
in the case of Inflation Linked
Notes, following the Cessation in
Publication of an Inflation Index
in accordance with the Inflation
Linked Conditions and/or the
method of calculating the same (if
required or if different from that
set out in Condition 6(E)):

[ ]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph) '

[ ] per Calculation Amount

[ ]

([ ] per Calculation Amount/specify other/Not Applicable
(For Index Linked, Share Linked, Debt Linked, GDR/ADR
Linked, FX Linked, Commodity Linked, Fund Linked and
Inflation Linked Redemption Notes and Credit Linked Notes
state "Not Applicable" and complete relevant section in
paragraphs [31] — [39] below)]

(N.B. If the Final Redemption Amount is other than 100 per
cent. of the nominal value the Notes will be derivative
Securities for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive and the
requirements of Annex XII to the Prospectus Directive
Regulation will apply.)

[ /Market Value less Associated Costs /Other] per.
Calculation Amount

(N.B. In the case of Index Linked, Share Linked, Debt Linked,
GDR/ADR Linked, FX Linked, Commodity Linked, Fund
Linked and Inflation Linked Redemption Notes and Credit
Linked Notes, consider deducting the cost to the Issuer and/or
its affiliates of unwinding or adjusting any underlying or
related funding and/or hedging arrangements in respect of the
Notes)
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31

Index Linked Redemption Notes:

(i)

(iif)

(i)

™
(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
(ix)
)
(xi)
(xii)
(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Index/Basket of Indices/
Index Sponsor(s):

Calculation Agent
responsible for making

calculations in respect of

the Notes:

Final Redemption
Amount:

Averaging:

Index Performance:
Exchange Rate:

Weighting:

Exchange(s):
Related Exchange:
Valuation Date(s):
Valuation Time:
Observation Date(s):
Observation Period:
Disrupted Day:

Trade Date:
Additional Disruption

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)
[The provisions of Annex 1 of the Terms and Conditions —

Additional Terms and Conditions for Index Linked Securities
shall apply.]

[ ]

[The [ ] Index is a Multi-Exchange Index]
[The Index Currency forthe[ ]Indexis[ 1]
[ ]

1 ] per Calculation Amount

(N.B. If the Final Redemption Amount is other than 100 per
cent. of the nominal value the Notes will be derivative
securities for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive and the
requirements of Annex XII to the Prospectus Directive
Regulation will apply.)

[The Averaging Dates are [ 1]

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day,
[Omission/ Postponement/ Modified Postponement] will
apply.]

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[insert details)

The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the Basket
to ascertain the Index Performance is [ J. N.B. Only
applicable in relation to Index Linked Notes relating to a
Basket)

[ ]
[ J/[All Exchanges]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]

If a Valuation Date, an Averaging Date or an Observation Date,
as the case may be, is a Disrupted Day, the relevant level or
price will be calculated [insert calculation method)

(N.B. Only applicable where provisions in Index Linked
Conditions are not appropriate)

[ ]
The following Additional Disruption Events apply to the Notes:
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32.

Events:

(xvii) Other terms or special

conditions:

Share Linked Redemption Notes:

®

(i)

(iii)

@iv)

™
(vi)

(vii)

(viid)
(ix)
(x)
(xi)
(xii)
(xiii)

(xiv)

Share(s) / Basket of
Shares:

Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations in respect of
the Notes:

Final Redemption
Amount:

Averaging:

Share Performénce:

Exchange Rate:

Weighting:

Exchange(s):
Related Exchange:
Valuation Date(s):
Valuation Time:
Observation Date(s):
Observation Period:

Disrupted Day:

[Change of Law]
[Hedging Disruption]
[Increased Cost of Hedging]

[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[The provisions of Annex 2 of the Terms and Conditions —
Additional Terms and Conditions for Share Linked Securities
shall apply.]

( ]
[ ] per Calculation Amount

(N.B. If the Final Redemption Amount is other than 100 per
cent. of the nominal value the Notes will be derivative
Securities for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive and the
requirements of Annex XII to the Prospectus Directive
Regulation will apply.) '

[The Averaging Dates are [ 1]

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day,
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] will apply.]

[ ]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[insert details)

The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the Basket -
to ascertain the Share Performance is [ ]. (N.B. Only
applicable in relation to Share Linked Notes relating to a

Basket)

| ]
[ J/[All Exchanges]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]

[If a Valuation Date, an Averaging Date or an Observation
Date, as the case may be, is a Disrupted Day, the relevant price
will be calculated [insert calculation method).

(N.B. Only applicable where provisions in Share Linked
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33.

(xv)  Tender Offer:
(xvi) Share Substitution:

(xvii) Local Tax Adjustment:

(xviii) Trade Date:

(xix) Additional Disruption
Events:

(xx)  Other terms or special
conditions:

Debt Linked Redemption Notes:

@) Debt Instruments/Basket
of Debt Instruments:

(ii) Debt Instrument Price:

(iii)  Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations in respect of
the Notes: '

(iv)  Final Redemption
Amount:

) Averaging:

Conditions are not appropriate)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Applicable/Not Applicable] ,

[If Applicable: Share Substitution Criteria is [ 1]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

Local Jurisdiction[ ]

1]

The following Additional Disruption Events apply to the Notes:
[Change of Law]
[Hedging Disruption]
[Increased Cost of Hedging]
[Increased Cost of Stock Borrow]
[Initial Stock Loan Rate: [ ]]
[Insolvency Filing]
[Loss of Stock Borrow]
[Maximum Stock Loan Rate: [ ]]

[ ]

[Not Applicable/Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph) '

[The provisions of Annex 3 of the Terms and
Conditions - Additional Terms and Conditions for Debt Linked
Securities shall apply.]

[ ]

[ ]

(N.B. Complete only if different from definition contained in
Annex 3 of the Terms and Conditions - Additional Terms and
Conditions for Debt Linked Securities)

[ ]
[ ] per Calculation Amount

(N.B. If the Final Redemption Amount is other than 100 per
cent. of the nominal value the Notes will be derivative
Securities for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive and the
requirements of Annex XII to the Prospectus Directive
Regulation will apply.)

Averaging [applies/does not apply] to the Notes. ffhe
Averaging Dates are [ 1]
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34,

35.

(vi)  Valuation Date(s):

(vi))  Valuation Time:

(viii) Observation Period:

(ix)  Weighting:

(x) Scheduled Trading Day:

(xi)  Relevant Screen Page:

(xii)  Redemption of Debt
Instruments:

(xiii) Other terms or special
conditions:

GDR/ADR Linked Redemption

Notes:

FX Linked Redemption Notes:

®

(i)

(iif)

(i)
7

Base Cunency/Subjecf
Currency:

Currency Price:

FX Market Disruption
Event(s):

FX Price Source(s):

Specified Financial
Centre(s):

[ ]
[ ]

[ ]

Weighting to be applied to each item comprising the Basket to
ascertain the Debt Instrument Priceis [ ). (N.B. Only
applicable in relation to Debt Linked Notes relating to a
Basket)

[ ]
[ ]

Where one or more of the relevant Debt Instruments is
redeemed (or otherwise ceases to exist) before the redemption
of the Notes, [insert appropriate fallback provisions).

[ ] |

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[The provisions of Annex 4 of the Terms and Conditions —
Additional Terms and Conditions for GDR/ADR Linked
Securities shall apply.]

(For GDR/ADR Linked Redemption Notes complete sections
Jor Share Linked Redemption Notes (paragraph 32 above)
(completed and amended as appropriate) and this section)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[The provisions of Aﬁnex 5 of the Terms and Conditions —
Additional Terms and Conditions for FX Linked Securities shall

apply.]

[ 1
[ ]

(N.B. Complete only if different from definition contained in
Annex 5 of the Terms and Conditions - Additional Terms and
Conditions for FX Linked Securities)

Inconvertibility Event: [Applicable/Not Applicable]
[other]

(N.B. Only complete if Inconvertibility Event and/or other
disruption events should be included as FX Market Disruption
Events) :

[ 1]
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36.

(v

Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations in respect of
the Notes:

(vii))  Final Redemption
Amount:

(viii)  Averaging:

(ix)  Valuation Date(s):

(x) Valuation Time:

(xi)  Weighting:

(xii)  Other terms or special
conditions:

Commodity Linked Redemption

Notes:

(i) Commodity/Basket of
Commodities/Commodity
Index/Basket of
Commodity Indices:

(ii) Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations in respect of
the Notes:

@iii)  Final Redemption
Amount:

(iv)  Commodity Reference
Price:

W) Price Source:

(vi)  Exchange:

(vii))  Delivery Date:

[ ]
[ ] per Calculation Amount

(N.B. If the Final Redemption Amount is other than 100 per
cent. of the nominal value the Notes will be derivative securities
Jor the purposes of the Prospectus Directive and the
requirements of Annex XII to the Prospectus Directive
Regulation will apply.)

Averaging [applies/does not apply] to the Notes. [The
Averaging Dates are [ 1]

[ ]

[ ]

The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the Basket
to ascertain the Currency Price is [ ]-

(N.B. Only applicable in relation to FX Linked Notes relating
to a Basker)

[ ]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)
[The provisions of Annex 6 of the Terms and Conditions —

Additional Terms and Conditions for Commodity Linked
Securities shall apply.]

[ 1
[ ] per Calculation Amount

(N.B. If the Final Redemption Amount is other than 100 per
cent. of the nominal value the Notes will be derivative securities
Jor the purposes of the Prospectus Directive and the
requirements of Annex XII to the Prospectus Directive
Regulation will apply.)

~—
d Cvd ] d
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(viii)

(ix)

()

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

Pricing Date:

Common Pricing:

Additional Commodity
Market Disruption
Events:

Additional provisions for
Commodity Trading
Disruption:

Disruption Fallback(s):

Commodity Business
Day:

Trade Date:
Weighting:

Specified Price:

“Other terms or special
conditions:

Fund Linked Redemption Notes:

@

Fund/Basket of Funds:

[ ]

[Applicable] [Not Applicable] (NV.B. Only applicable in relation
to Commodity Linked Notes relating to a Basket)

[specify any additional Commodity Market Disruption Events]
[Not Applicable]

[If Trading Disruption applies, specify any additional futures
contracts, options contracts or commodities and the related
exchange to which Trading Disruption relates)

[As set out in Commodity Linked Conditions}/[ ]
[Commodity Index Cut-Off Date: [ 1]

[ ]

[ ]

The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the Basket
is [ ]

(N.B. Only applicable in relation to Commodity Linked Notes
relating to a Basket)

[high price]

[low price]

[average of the high price and the low price]
[closing price]

[opening price]

[bid price]

[asked price]

[average of the bid price and the asked price]
[settlement price]

[official settlement price]

[official price]

[morning fixing]

[afternoon fixing]

[spot price]

[other]

[ ] ,

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[The provisions of Annex 7 of the Terms and Conditions —
Additional Terms and Conditions for Fund Linked Securities
shall apply.] -

[ ]

[[The [ ] Fund is an ETF]

[Exchange for each Fund Share: [ ]]
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38.

(ii) Fund Interest(s):

(iii)  Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculation in respect of
the Notes:

(iv)  Final Redemption
Amount:

W) Trade Date:

(vi)  Valuation Date(s):

(vil)  Valuation Time:

(viii)  Other terms or special
conditions:

Inflation Linked Redemption

Notes:

(i)  Inflation Index/Basket of
Inflation Indices/Inflation
Index Sponsor(s):

(ii) Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations in respect of
the Notes:

(iii)  Final Redemption
Amount:

(iv) Related Bond:

) Determination Date(s):

(vi)  Cut-Off Date:

[Related Exchange for each Fund Share: [  /All Exchanges]]

[Underlying Index: [ 1]]
(N.B. Include for ETFs)

[ ]

[ " 1]
[ ] per Calculation Amount

(N.B. If the Final Redemption Amount is other than 100 per
cent. of the nominal value the Notes will be derivative securities
for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive and the
requirements of Annex XII to the Prospectus Directive
Regulation will apply.)

[ ]

[ ]
[ ]

[ ]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[The provisions of Annex 8 of the Terms and Conditions —~
Additional Terms and Conditions for Inflation Linked Securities
shall apply.]

[ ]
[ ] per Calculation Amount

(N.B. If the Final Redemption Amount is other than 100 per
cent. of the nominal value the Notes will be derivative securities
Jor the purposes of the Prospectus Directive and the
requirements of Annex XII to the Prospectus Directive
Regulation will apply.)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
‘The Related Bond is: [ ] [Fallback Bond]
The End Dateis:[ ]

[ ]
[ ]
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39.

(vii)  Other terms or special
conditions:

Credit Linked Notes:

)] Final Redemption
Amount:

(ii) Trade Date:

(iii)) = Calculation Agent
responsible for making
calculations and
determinations in respect
of the Notes: -

(iv)  Reference Entity(ies):
) Reference Obligation(s):

[The obligation[s] identified as
follows:

Primary Obligor:
Guarantor:
Maturity:
Coupon:
CUSIP/ISIN:

(vi) All Guarantees:

(vii)  Credit Events:

[ ]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[The provisions of Annex 9 - Additional Terms and Conditions
Jor Credit Linked Notes and Certificates shall apply.]

[ ] per Calculation Amount

(N.B. If the Final Redemption Amount is other than 100 per
cent. of the nominal value the Notes will be derivative securities
for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive and the
requirements of Annex XII to the Prospectus Directive
Regulation will apply.)

[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
( ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
( ]
[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

- Provisions relating to Qualifying Guarantee and
Underlying Obligation: Credit Linked Condition 15
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Bankruptcy]

[Failure to Pay]
[Grace Period Extension [Applicable/Not Applicable]
[If Applicable:
Grace Period: [ ]

[Obligation Default]

[Obligation Acceleration]

[Repudiation/Moratorium)

[Restructuring]

- Provisions relating to Restructuring Credit Event:
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Credit Linked Condition 12 [Applicable/Not
Applicable]

- Provisions relating to Multiple Holder Obligation:
Credit Linked Condition 13 [Applicable/Not
Applicable]

- [Restructuring Maturity Limitation and Fully
Transferable Obligation [Applicable/Not Applicable]]

- [Modified Restructuring Maturity Limitation and
Conditionally Transferable Obligation [Applicable/Not
Applicable]]

[other]
Default Requirement: [ ]
Payment Requirement: [ ]

(viii)  Conditions to Settlement:  Notice of Publicly Available Information [Applicable/Not
Applicable]

[If Applicable:

Public Source(s): [ 1

Specified Number: [ 1]
(ix)  Obligation(s):

Obligation Category [Payment]

[select one only]: [Borrowed Money]
[Reference Obligations Only]
[Bond]
[Loan]
[Bond or Loan]

Obligation Characteristics

[select all of which apply]: [Not Subordinated]

[Credit Linked Specified Currency:
[specify currency] [Standard Specified Currencies]

[Not Sovereign Lender]
[Not Domestic Currency:]
[Domestic Currency means: [specify currency]]
[Not Domestic Law]
[Listed]
[Not Domestic Issuance]
Additional Obligation(s) [ ]
(x) Excluded Obligation(s): [ ]
(xi)  [Whether on satisfaction ~ Conditions to Settlement - [Cash Settlement/Physical

of Conditions to Delivery]]
Settlement during the . PR
Notice Delivery Period L1 Fpysical Delivery:

The provisions of Annex 10 of the Terms and Conditions —
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

redemption of the Notes
will be by (a) Cash
Settlement or (b) Physical
Delivery:

Accrual of Interest upon
Credit Event:

Merger Event:

Unwind Costs:

Provisions relating to
Monoline Insurer as
Reference Entity:

Provisions relating to
LPN Reference Entities:

Provisions relating to
Deliverable Obligations
Portfolio Valuation:

[If applicable:

Benchmark Obligation:

Terms relating to Cash Settlement

(xviii)
(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)
(xxii)
(xxiii)

(xxiv)

(xxv)

Credit Event Redemption
Amount:

Credit Event Redemption
Date:

Valuation Date:

Valuation Time:
Quotation Method:
Quotation Amount:

[(Minimum Quotation
Amount:

Quotation Dealers:

Additional Terms and Conditions for Physical Delivery Notes
shall apply]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

Credit Linked Condition 11 [Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If Applicable)

[Merger Event Redemption Amount: [ 1

b[Merger Event Redemption Date:[ | 1

[Standard Unwind Costs/other/Not Applicable]

Credit Linked Condition 14 [Applicable/Not Applicable]

Credit Linked Condition 16 [Applicable/Not Applicable]

Credit Linked Condition 17 [Applicable/Not Applicable]

[ ]

[ 1

(NB. If Deliverable Obligation Category and Deliverable
Obligation Characteristics should also be completed if Credit
Linked Condition 17 applies)

[ ] per Calculation Amount

[ ] Business Days
[Single Valuation Date:

[ ] Business Days]
[Multiple Valuation Dates:

[ ] Business Days; and each [ ] Business Days
thereafter

Number of Valuation Dates: [ 1

[ ]

[Bid/Offer/Mid-market]

([ )/Representative Amount]

[ 1

[ ]
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(xxvi) Quotations:
(xxvii) Valuation Method:

(xxviii) Other terms or special
conditions:

Terms relating to Physical
Delivery

(xxix) Physical Settlement
Period:

Accrued Interest on
Entitlement:

(xxx)

(xxxi) Settlement Currency:
(xxxii) Deliverable Obligations:
Deliverable Obligation Category

[select one only):

Deliverable Obligation
Characteristics

[select all of which apply]:

[Include Accrued Interest/Exclude Accruéd Interest]
[Market/Highest] |

[Average Market/Highest/Average Highest]
[Blended Market/Blended Highest])

[Average Blended Market/Average Blended Highest]

[ ] Business Days

[Include Accrued Interest/Exclude Accrued Interest]
| ]

" [Payment]

[Borrowed Money]
[Reference Obligations Only]
[Bond]

[Loan]

[Bond or Loan]

[Not Subordinated]

[Credit Linked Specified Currency: [specify currency]

[Standard Specified Currencies]
[Not Sovereign Lender]
[Not Domestic Currency]

[Domestic Currency means: [specify currency]]
[Not Domestic Law]
[Listed]
[Not Contingent]
[Not Domestic Issuance]
[Assignable Loan]
[Consent Required Loan]
[Direct Loan Participation]

[Qualifying Participation Seller: [insert details])

[Transferable]
[Maximum Maturity: [ 1]
[Accelerated or Matured)
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40.

Additional Deliverable
Obligation(s):

(xxxiii) Excluded Deliverable |
Obligation(s):

(xxxiv) Indicative Quotations:
(xxxv) Cut-Off Date:

(xxxvi) Guaranteed Cash
Settlement Amount:

(xxxvii)Delivery provisions for
Entitlement if different
from Physical Delivery
Note Conditions:

(xxxviii) Other terms or
special conditions:

Physical Delivery Notes:

>i) Relevant Asset(s):
(ii) Entitlement:
(iii)  Cut-Off Date:

(iv)  Guaranteed Cash
Settlement Amount:

) Failure to Deliver due to

liquidity:
(vi)  Delivery provisions for
Entitlement if different

from Physical Delivery
Note Conditions:

(vii)  Settlement Business Day:

(viii) Issuer's optionb to vary
Settlement:

(ix)  Other terms or special
Conditions:

[Not Bearer]

[ ]
[ ]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]
[ ]
[ ]
[

[ ]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)
(N.B. Not applicable to Credit Linked Notes)

[Cash Settlement/Physical Delivery/Cash Settlement and/or
Physical Delivery] (If Cash Settlement and/or Physical
Delivery specified, specify details for determining in what
circumstances Cash Settlement or Physical Delivery will apply)

[The provisions’of Annex 10 of the Terms and
Conditions - Additional Terms and Conditions for Physical
Delivery Notes shall apply.]

[ ]
[ ]
( ]
[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[ ]
[ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[ ]
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GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

41.

42,
43.

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

Form of Notes:

New Global Note:
Payment Day:

Additional Financial Centre(s) or
other special provisions relating
to Payment Dates:

Talons for future Coupons or
Receipts to be attached to
Definitive Notes (and dates on
which such Talons mature):

Details relating to Partly Paid
Notes: amount of each payment
comprising the Issue Price and
date on which each payment is to
be made and consequences of
failure to pay, including any right
of the Issuer to forfeit the Notes
and interest due on late payment:

Details relating to Instalment
Notes:

@A) Instalment Amount(s):
(i1) Instalment Date(s):

Redenomination applicable:

Other final terms;

[Temporary Global Note exchangeable for a Permanent Global
Note which is exchangeable for Definitive Notes [on 60 days'
notice expiring at least 30 days after the Exchange Date or upon
an Exchange Event]

[Temporary Global Note exchangeable for Definitive Notes on
and after the Exchange Date] '

[Permanent Global Note exchangeable for Definitive Notes [on
60 days' notice expiring at least 30 days after the Exchange
Date or upon an Exchange Event]

(Ensure that this is consistent with the wording in the "Form of
the Securities” section in the Base Prospectus and the Notes
themselves.)

[Yes][No]
[Following/Modified Following]
[Not Applicable/give details)

(Note that this item relates to the place of payment and not
Interest Period end dates to which items 16(iii), 18(vi), 19(vi),
20(vii), 22(xi), 23(vi), 24(vii) and 25(vi) relate)

[Yes/No][f yes, give details]

[Not Applicable/give details]

(NB: a new form of Temporary Global Note and/or Permanent
Global Note may be required for Partly Paid issues)

[Not Applicable/give details]
[Not Applicable/give details]

Redenomination [not] applicable
[(If Redenomination is applicable, specify the terms of
Redenomination in the Final Terms)]

[Not Applicable/give details]

(When adding any other final terms consideration should be
given as to whether such amendments would be acceptable as
Final Terms or whether such terms constitute "significant new
Jactors" and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to
the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus
Directive or the use of a Securities Note or "unitary"
Prospectus.) [(Consider including a term providing for tax
certification if required to enable interest to be paid gross by
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DISTRIBUTION
50. Method of distribution:
51. i) If syndicated, [names and

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

addresses]”" of Managers
[and underwrltlng
comxmtments]

(ii) Date of Subscnptlon
Agreement”

(iii)  Stabilising Manager(s) (if
any):

If non-syndxcated name [and
address]”" of relevant Dealer:

Total commission and
N s
concession:

U.S. Selling Restrictions:
Additional U.S. Tax

considerations

Non exempt Offer:"

Additional selling restrictions:

issuers.)]

[Syndicated/Non-syndicated]

[Not Apphcable/gzve names, [and addresses and underwriting
commitments]” ] v

(Including names and addresses of entities agreeing to
underwrite the issue on a firm commitment basis and names and
addresses of the entities agreeing to place the issue without a
firm commitment or on a "best gﬁorts " basis if such entities are
not the same as the Managers)"

[Not Applicable/give name)
[Not Applicable/give Name [and address]™"

[ ] per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount™

[Reg. S Compliance Category [®]; TEFRA D/TEFRA not
applicable]

[Not Applicable/give details)

[Not Applicable] [An offer of the Notes may be made by the
Managers [and [specify names [and addresses] of other
financial intermediaries making non-exempt offers, to the extent
known OR consider a generic description of other parties
involved in non-exempt offers (e.g. "other parties authorised by
the Managers") or (if relevant) note that other parties may
make non-exempt offers in the Public Offer Jurisdictions during
the Offer Period, if not known]] (together with the Managers,
the "Financial Intermediaries") other than pursuant to Article
3(2) of the Prospectus Directive in [specify relevant Member
State(s) - which must be jurisdictions where the Base
Prospectus and any supplements have been passported (in
addition to the jurisdiction where approved and published))
("Public Offer Jurisdictions") during the period from [specify
date] until [specify date or a formula such as "the Issue Date"
or "the date which falls [ ®] Business Days thereafter"] ("Offer
Period"). See further Paragraph 17 of Part B below.

(N.B. Consider any local regulatory requirements necessary to
be fulfilled so as to be able to make a non-exempt offer in
relevant jurisdictions. No such offer should be made in any
relevant jurisdiction until those requirements have been met.
Non-exempt offers may only be made into jurisdictions in which
the base prospectus (and any supplement) has been
notified/passported.)

[Not Applicable/give details]
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PURPOSE OF FINAL TERMS

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required for issue [and] [public offer in the Public Offer
Jurisdictions] [and] [admission to the Official List and [trading on the regulated market of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange] [trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's alternative market - Euro MTF] of the Not_es
described herein pursuant to the Note, Warrant and Certificate Programme of Merrill Lynch S.A. and Merrill
Lynch International & Co. C.V.

RESPONSIBILITY

[[Subject as provided below,] the Issuer and the Guarantor accept responsibility for the information
contained in these Final Terms.] [The information relating to ® [and @] contained herein has been accurately
extracted from [insert information source(s)]. The Issuer and the Guarantor accept responsibility for the
accuracy of such extraction but accept no further or other responsibility in respect of such information.]

Signed on behalf of the Issuer:

Duly authorised
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PART B - OTHER INFORMATION
LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING

@i) Listing and Admissionto  [Application [has been]/[will be] made by the Issuer (or on its
trading: behalf) for the Notes to be admitted to trading on, [the
regulated market of/the alternative market — Euro MTF - of],
and listed on the Official List of, the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange [with effect from [  ].] [Application is expected to
. be made by the Issuer (or on its behalf) for the Notes to be
admitted to trading on, [the regulated market of/the alternative
market — Euro MTF - of,] and listed on the Official List of, the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange with effect from [ ].] [Not
Applicable.]

(N.B. Notes issued by MLSA should be listed on a "recognised
stock exchange".)

(Where documenting a fungible issue need to ir‘zfi.icate that
original securities are already admitted to trading)

(ii) Estimate of total expenses [ ]

related t‘o‘z.lgmission to
trading: /
RATINGS
Ratings: The Notes to be issued have been rated:
[S&P: [ 1l
[Ratings and Investment Information Inc.: [ 1
[Moody's: [ 1]
[Fitch: [ 1]
[[Other]: [ 1]

[Need to include a brief explanation of the meaning of
the ratings if this has previously been published by the
rating provider.]

(The above disclosure should reflect the rating allocated
to Notes of the type being issued under the Programme
generally or, where the issue has been specifically rated,
that rating.) ‘

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE ISSUE

[Save for any fees payable to the [Managers/Dealers], so far as the Issuer is aware, no person
involved in the issue of the Notes has an interest material to the offer — amend as appropriate if there
are other interests)

[(When adding any other description, consideration should be given as to whether such matters
described constitute "significant new factors" and consequently trigger the need for a supplement to
the Base Prospectus under Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive or the use of a Securities Note or
"unitary" prospectus.)] '

REASONS FOR THE OFFER, ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES"™
@) [Reasons for offer [ ]

(See "Use of Proceeds" wording in Base Prospectus — if
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reasons for offer different from making profit and/or hedging
certain risks will need to include those reasons here)

(i)  Estimated net proceeds: [ ]

(If proceeds are intended for more than one use will need to
split out and present in order or priority. If proceeds
insufficient to fund all proposed uses state amount and sources
of other funding)

(iii)  Estimated total expenses: [ ] (Expenses are required to be broken down into each
principal intended to "use" and presented in order of priority
of such "uses")

(N.B.: If the Notes are derivative securities to which Annex
XII of the Prospectus Directive Regulation applies (i) above is
required where the reasons for the offer are different from
making profit and/or hedging certain risks regardless of the
minimum denomination of the securities and where this is the
case disclosure of net proceeds and total expenses at (ii) and
(iii) above are also required.)

YIELD (Fixed Rate Notes only)""
Indication of yield: [ ]

[Calculated as [include details oj:.method of calculation in
summary form] on the Issue Date.]

The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis of the
Issue Price. It is not an indication of future yield.

HISTORIC INTEREST RATES (Floating Rate Notes only)™
Details of historic [EURIBOR / LIBOR /other] rates can be obtained from [Reuters].

PERFORMANCE OF [INDEX/BASKET OF INDICES], EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON
VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS [AND OTHER INFORMATION
CONCERNING THE [INDEX/BASKET OF INDICES] (INDEX LINKED NOTES ONLY)

[Need to include details of where past and future performance and volatility of [the/each] index can
be obtained, the relevant weighting of each index within a basket of indices and where pricing
information is available]. [Need to include a clear and comprehensive explanation of how the value
of the investment is affected by the underlying and the circumstances when the risks are most
evident.]™

[Need to include the name of [the/each] index, the name of [the/each] index sponsor and a
description if composed by the Issuer and if the index is not composed by the Issuer need to include
details of where the information about [the/each] index can be obtained.]”

PERFORMANCE OF [THE SHARE/BASKET OF SHARES], EXPLANATION OF EFFECT
ON - VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS [AND OTHER
INFORMATION CONCERNING [THE SHARE/BASKET OF SHARES]] (SHARE LINKED
NOTES ONLY)

[Need to include details of the name of [the/each] share company, any security identification number
of the shares, where pricing information about the shares is available, the relevant weighting of each
share within a basket of shares (if relevant) and where past and future performance and volatility of
the [share/basket of shares] can be obtained.] [Need to include a clear and comprehensive
explanation of how the value of the investment is affected by the underlying and the circumstances
when the risks are most evident.]”
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10.

11,

12.

13.

INFORMATION IN RELATION TO THE DEBT INSTRUMENT/INSTRUMENTS,
EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS
[AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING THE DEBT
INSTRUMENT/INSTRUMENTS] (DEBT LINKED NOTES ONLY)

[Need to include details of the name of the issuer, the ISIN (International Securities Identification
Number) of the debt instrument(s), the relevant weighting of each debt instrument in a basket of debt
instruments (if relevant) and where pricing information on and where past and future performance

~and volatility of the debt instrument(s) can be obtained] [Need to include a clear and

comprehensive explanation of how the value of the investment is affected by the underlying and the
circumstances when the risks are most evident.]’

PERFORMANCE OF [THE GDR/ADRS], EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF
INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS |[AND OTHER INFORMATION

- CONCERNING [THE GDR/ADRS]] (GDR/ADR LINKED NOTES ONLY)

[Need to include details of the name of [the/each] GDR and/or ADR, any security identification
number of the GDRs and/or ADRs, where pricing information about the GDRs and/or ADRs is
available, and where past and future performance and volatility of the GDRs and/or ADRs can be
obtained.] [Need to include a clear and comprehensive explanation of how the value of the
investment is affected by the GDRs and/or ADRs and the circumstances when the risks are most
evident.]”

PERFORMANCE OF [RATE[S] OF EXCHANGE/CURRENCIES], EXPLANATION OF
EFFECT ON VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS [AND OTHER
INFORMATION CONCERNING [THE [RATE[S] OF
EXCHANGE/FORMULA/CURRENCIES]] (FX LINKED NOTES ONLY)

[Need to include details of [the/each] currency, where past and future performance and volatility of
the [relevant rates/currencies] can be obtained.] [Need to include a clear and comprehensive
explanation of how the value of the investment is aﬁ’ected by the underlying and the circumstances
when the risks are most evident.]”

PERFORMANCE OF [THE COMMODITY/BASKET OF COMMODITIES/COMMODITY
INDEX/BASKET OF COMMODITY INDICES)}, EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE
OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS [AND OTHER INFORMATION
CONCERNING [THE COMMODITY/BASKET OF COMMODITIES/COMMODITY

- INDEX/BASKET OF COMMODITY INDICES]] (COMMODITY LINKED NOTES ONLY)

[Need to include details of [the/each] [commodity/commodity index], where pricing information
about [the/each] [commodity/commodity index] is available, the relevant weighting of each
[commodity/commodity index] within a basket of [commodities/commodity indices] and where past
and future performance and volatility of [the commodity/basket of commodities/commodity
index/basket of commodity indices] can be obtained.] [Need to include a clear and comprehensive
explanation of how the value of the investment is affected by the underlying and the circumstances
when the risks are most evident.]”

PERFORMANCE OF [THE FUND/BASKET OF FUNDS], EXPLANATION OF EFFECT
ON VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS [AND OTHER
INFORMATION CONCERNING [THE FUND/BASKET OF FUNDS]] (FUND LINKED
NOTES ONLY)

[Need to include details of [the/each] fund, the relevant weighting of each fund within a basket of
Junds and where past and future performance and volatility of [the/each] [ﬁmd/basket of funds] can
be obtained.] [Need to include a clear and comprehensive explanation of how the value of the
investment is affected by the underlying and the circumstances when the risks are most evident.]”
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14.

15.

16.

PERFORMANCE OF |[INFLATION INDEX/BASKET OF INFLATION INDICES]),
EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS
[AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING [INFLATION INDEX/BASKET OF
INFLATION INDICES]] @INFLATION LINKED NOTES ONLY)

[Need to include details of where past and future performance and volatility of [the/each] inflation
index can be obtained, the relevant weighting of each inflation index within a basket of indices and
where pricing information is available]. [Need to include a clear and comprehensive explanation of
how the value of the investment is affected by the underlying and the circumstances when the risks
are most evident.]”

[Need to include the name of [the/each] inflation index, the name of [the/each] inflation index
sponsor and a description if composed by the Issuer and if the inflation index is not composed by the
Issuer need to include details of where the information about [the/each] inflation index can be
obtained.])”

PERFORMANCE OF [THE/EACH] REFERENCE ENTITY, EXPLANATION OF EFFECT
ON VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS [AND OTHER
INFORMATION CONCERNING [THE/EACH] REFERENCE ENTITY] (CREDIT LINKED
NOTES ONLY)

[Need to include details of [the/each] reference entity and where information on [the/each] reference
entity can be obtained.] [Need to include a clear and comprehensive explanation of how the value of
the investment is affected by the underlying and the circumstances when the risks are most
evident.]”

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION
(i)  ISIN Code: [ ]
(ii) Common Code: [ ]

(iii)  Any clearing system(s) other than [Not Applicable/give name(s) and number(s)]
Euroclear Bank S.A/N.V,,
Clearstream  Banking, société
anonyme and the relevant
identification number(s):]

(iv)  Delivery: Delivery [against/free of] payment
\2) Names and addresses of initial

Paying Agents:
(vi)  Names and addresses of additional [ ]

Paying Agent(s) (if any):

(vi)) Intended to be held in a manner [Yes][No]
g?;f; I tv;'ould allow Eurosystem [Note that the designation "yes" simply means that the

' Notes are intended upon issue to be deposited with

one of the ICSDs as common safekeeper and does not
necessarily mean that the Notes will be recognised as
eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and
intra-day credit operations by the Eurosystem either
upon issue or at any or all times during their life.
Such recognition will depend upon satisfaction of the
Eurosystem eligibility criteria.] [include this text if
"ves" selected in which case the Notes must be issued

in NGN form)
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17. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER (Public Offer only)**
Offer Price: [Issue Price/Not Applicable/specify]
\ [Conditions to which the offer is subject:] [Not Applicable/give details)
[Description of the application process:] [Not Applicable/give details]

[Details of the minimum and/or maximum [Not Applicable/give details]
amount of application:]

[Description of possibility to reduce [NotApplicable/give details]
subscriptions and manner for refunding
excess amount paid by applicants:]

[Details of the method and time limits for [Not Applicable/give details)
paying up and delivering the Notes:] ,

[Manner and date in which results of the [Not Applicable/give details)
offer are to be made public:] '

[Procedure for exercise of any right of pre- [Not Applicable/give details]
emption, negotiability of subscription :
rights and treatment of subscription rights

not exercised:] '

[Categories of potential investors to which [Not Applicable/give details]
the Notes are offered and whether

tranche(s) have been reserved for certain

countries:]

[Process for notification to applicants of [Not Applicable/give details]
the amount allotted and indication whether

* dealing may begin before notification is
made:] '

[Amount of any expenses and taxes [Not Applicable/give details]
specifically charged to the subscriber or
purchaser:]

[Name(s) and address(es), to the extent [None/give details)
known to the Issuer, of the placers in the
various countries where the offer takes

place.]
* Delete if minimum denomination is less than €50,000 (or its equiva]ent in the relevant currency as at the date of issue)
i Delete if minimum denomination is €50,000 (or its equivalent in the relevant currency as at the date of issue)
ok Delete if minimum denomination is €50,000 (or its equivalent in the relevant currency as at the date of issue) and if the

securities are not Derivative Securities

ol Delete if the securities are Derivative Securities

- 96



TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES

The following are the Terms and Conditions of the Notes which will be incorporated by reference into
each Global Note (as defined below) and each definitive Note, in the latter case only if permitted by the
relevant stock exchange or other relevant authority (if any) and agreed by the Issuer and the relevant
Dealer at the time of issue but, if not so permitted and agreed, such definitive Note will have endorsed
thereon or attached thereto such Terms and Conditions. The applicable Final Terms in relation to any
Tranche of Notes may specify other terms and conditions (including the Additional Terms and Conditions
described below) which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with the following
Terms and Conditions, replace or modify the following Terms and Conditions for the purpose of such
Notes. The Registration Document (the "Registration Document") relating to the Programme and
applicable Summary (if applicable) and Securities Note (the "Securities Note") relating to a particular
series of Notes may also be used in connection with the issue of Notes under the Programme and such
applicable Securities Note may specify other terms and conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or
to the extent inconsistent with the following Terms and Conditions, replace or modify the following Terms
and Conditions for the purpose of such Notes. To the extent that Notes are issued pursuant to a Securities
Note, references in the following Terms and Conditions to the "Final Terms" shall be read as references
to the "Securities Note" in respect of such series of Notes, and all such references shall be construed
accordingly. The applicable Final Terms (or the relevant provisions thereof) will be endorsed upon, or
attached to, each Global Note and definitive Note. Reference should be made to "Form of the Notes" for
a description of the content of Final Terms which will specify whzch of such terms are to apply in relation
to the relevant Notes.

The Additional Terms and Conditions contained in Annex 1 in the case of Index Linked Notes, Annex 2 in
the case of Share Linked Notes, Annex 3 in the case of Debt Linked Notes, Annex 4 in the case of
GDR/ADR Linked Notes, Annex 5 in the case of FX Linked Notes, Annex 6 in the case of Commodity
Linked Notes, Annex 7 in the case of Fund Linked Notes, Annex 8 in the case of Inflation Linked Notes,
Annex 9 in the case of Credit Linked Notes and Annex 10 in the case of Physical Delivery Notes (each as
defined below) will apply to the Notes if specified in the applicable Final Terms.

This Note is one of a Series (as defined below) of notes (the "Notes") issued by Merrill Lynch S.A.
("MLSA" or the "Issuer").

References herein to the "Notes" shall be references to the Notes of this Series and shall mean:

(a) in relation to any Notes represented by a global Note (a "Global Note"), units of each Specified
Denomination in the Specified Currency;

(b) any Global Note; and
(©) any definitive Notes issued in exchange for a Global Note.

The Notes, the Receipts (as defined below) and the Coupons (as defined below) have the benefit of an
agency agreement dated 16th September, 2008 (such agency agreement as amended and/or supplemented
and/or restated from time to time, the "Agency Agreement") and made between MLSA, Merrill Lynch
International & Co. C.V., Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc, ("ML&Co." or the "Guarantor"), Deutsche Bank AG,
London Branch as principal paying agent (the "Principal Paying Agent") and if so specified in the
applicable Final Terms, as calculation agent (the "Calculation Agent"), Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A.
(together with the Principal Paying Agent, the "Paying Agents" which expression shall include any
additional or successor paying agents) and the other agents named therein.

Interest bearing definitive Notes have interest coupons ("Coupons") and, if indicated in the applicable Final
Terms, talons for further Coupons ("Talons") attached on issue. Any reference herein to Coupons or coupons
shall, unless the context otherwise requires, be deemed to include a reference to Talons or talons. Definitive
Notes repayable in instalments have receipts ("Receipts") for the payment of the instalments of principal
(other than the final instalment) attached on issue. Global Notes do not have Receipts, Coupons or Talons
attached on issue. :

The Final Terms for this Note (or the relevant provisions thereof) are set out in Part A of the Final Terms
attached to or endorsed on this Note which supplement these Terms and Conditions (the "Terms and
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Conditions", or the "Conditions") and may specify other terms and conditions which shall, to the extent so
specified or to the extent inconsistent with these Terms and Conditions, replace or modify these Terms and
Conditions for the purposes of this Note. References to the "applicable Final Terms" are to Part A of the
Final Terms (or the relevant provisions thereof) attached to or endorsed on this Note. '

The payment of principal, interest and all other amounts payable and/or deliverable in respect of this Note
are unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Guarantor pursuant to a guarantee (the "Guarantee")
dated 16th September, 2008 executed by the Guarantor. The original of the Guarantee is held by the Principal
Paying Agent on behalf of the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders at its specified office.

Any reference to "Noteholders" or "Holders" in relation to any Notes shall mean the holders of the Notes and
shall, in relation to any Notes represented by a Global Note, be construed as provided below. Any reference
herein to "Receiptholders" shall mean the holders of the Receipts and any reference herein to
"Couponholders" shall mean the holders of the Coupons and shall, unless the context otherwise requires,
include the holders of the Talons.

As used herein, "Tranche" means Notes which are identical in all respects (including as to listing and
admission to trading) and "Series" means a Tranche of Notes together with any further Tranche or Tranches
- of Notes which are (i) expressed to be consolidated and form a single series and (ii) identical in all respects
(including as to listing and admission to trading) except for their respective Issue Dates, Interest
Commencement Dates and/or Issue Prices. ‘

The Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders are entitled to the benefit of the Deed of

Covenant (the "Deed of Covenant") dated 16th September, 2008 and made by the Issuer. The original of the
Deed of Covenant is held by the common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg (each as
defined below). :

Copies of the Agency Agreement, the Guarantee and the Deed of Covenant are available for inspection
during normal business hours at the specified office of each of the Paying Agents. Copies of the applicable
Final Terms are available for viewing at the specified office of the Issuer or the Paying Agents and copies
may be obtained from those specified offices save that, if this Note is neither admitted to trading on a
regulated market in the European Economic Area nor offered in the European Economic Area in
circumstances where a prospectus is required to be published under the Prospectus Directive, the applicable
Final Terms will only be obtainable by a Noteholder holding one or more Notes and such Noteholder must
produce evidence satisfactory to the Issuer and the relevant Paying Agent as to its holding of such Notes and
identity. The Prospectus and, in the case of Notes admitted to trading on the regulated market of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange, the applicable Final Terms will also be published on the website of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu). The Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders
are deemed to have notice of, and are entitled to the benefit of, all the provisions of the Agency Agreement,

the Guarantee, the Deed of Covenant and the apphcable Final Terms which are applicable to them. The
statements in these Terms and Conditions include summaries of and are subject to, the detailed provisions of
the Agency Agreement.

Words and expressions defined in the Agency Agreement or used in the applicable Final Terms shall have the
same meanings where used in these Terms and Conditions unless the context otherwise requires or unless
‘otherwise stated and provided that, in the event of inconsistency between the Agency Agreement and the
applicable Final Terms, the applicable Final Terms will prevail.

1. Form, Denomination and Title

The Notes are in bearer form and, in the case of definitive Notes, serially numbered, in the Specified
- Currency and the Specified Denomination(s). Notes of one Specified Denomination may not be
exchanged for Notes of another Specified Denomination. Notes with maturities of 183 days or less
- will have a minimum denomination of US$500,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies). Unless
otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Notes will be issued in Classic Global Note
("CGN") form.

This Note may be a Fixed Rate Note, a Floating Rate Note, a Zero Coupon Note, an Index Linked
Interest Note, a Share Linked Interest Note, a Debt Linked Interest Note, a GDR/ADR Linked
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Interest Note, a FX Linked Interest Note, a Commodity Linked Interest Note, a Fund Linked Interest
Note, an Inflation Linked Interest Note or a combination of any of the foregoing depending on the
Interest Basis specified in the applicable Final Terms.

This Note may be an Instalment Note, a Partly Paid Note, an Index Linked Redemption Note
(together with Index Linked Interest Notes, "Index Linked Notes"), a Share Linked Redemption
Note (together with Share Linked Interest Notes, "Share Linked Notes"), a Debt Linked
Redemption Note (together with Debt Linked Interest Notes, "Debt Linked Notes"), a GDR/ADR
Linked Redemption Note (together with GDR/ADR Linked Interest Notes, "GDR/ADR Linked
Notes"), a FX Linked Redemption Note (together with FX Linked Interest Notes, "FX Linked
Notes"), a Commodity Linked Redemption Note (together with Commodity Linked Interest Notes,
"Commeodity Linked Notes"), a Fund Linked Redemption Note (together with Fund Linked Interest
Notes, "Fund Linked Notes"), an Inflation Linked Redemption Note (together with Inflation Linked
Interest Notes, "Inflation Linked Notes"), a Credit Linked Note, or a combination of any of the
foregoing, depending upon the Redemption/Payment Basis specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Definitive Notes are issued with Coupons attached, unless they are Zero Coupon Notes in which
case references to Coupons and Couponholders in these Terms and Conditions are not applicable.

If the applicable Final Terms specify that the Note is a Physical Delivery Note, being a Note to be
redeemed by delivery of the Entitlement, Annex 10 to the Terms and Conditions - Additional Terms
and Conditions for Physical Delivery Notes shall apply.

Subject as set out below, title to the Notes, Receipts and Coupons will pass by delivery. The Issuer,
the Guarantor and the Paying Agents will (except as otherwise required by law) deem and treat the
bearer of any Note, Receipt or Coupon as the absolute owner thereof (whether or not overdue and
notwithstanding any notice of ownership or writing thereon or notice of any previous loss or theft
thereof) for all purposes but, in the case of any Global Note, without prejudice to the provisions set
out in the next succeeding paragraph. :

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note held on behalf of Euroclear Bank
S.A/N.V. ("Euroclear") and/or Clearstream Banking, société anonyme ("Clearstream,
Luxembourg"), each person (other than Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg) who is for the time
being shown in the records of Euroclear or of Clearstream, Luxembourg as the holder of a particular
nominal amount of such Notes (in which regard any certificate or other document issued by
Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg as to the nominal amount of such Notes standing to the
account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of manifest
error) shall be treated by the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Paying Agents as the holder of such
nominal amount of such Notes for all purposes other than with respect to the payment of principal or
interest on such nominal amount of such Notes, for which purpose the bearer of the relevant Global
Note shall be treated by the Issuer, the Guarantor and any Paying Agent as the holder of such
nominal amount of such Notes in accordance with and subject to the terms of the relevant Global
Note and the expressions "Noteholder" and "holder of Notes" and related expressions shall be
construed accordingly.

Notes which are represented by a Global Note will be transferable only in accordance with the rules
and procedures for the time being of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be.

References to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg shall, whenever the context so permits be
deemed to include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing system spemﬁed in the
applicable Final Terms. :

Status of the Notes and the Guarantee
Status of the Notes and Guarantee

The Notes constitute direct, unsubordinated, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Issuer
and rank equally among themselves and rank equally (subject to exceptions as are from time to time
provided by applicable laws) with all other present and future direct, unsubordinated, unconditional
and unsecured indebtedness of the Issuer.
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The obligations of the Guarantor. under the Guarantee, save for such exceptions as may be provided
by applicable legislation or judicial order, rank pari passu with its other present and future unsecured
and unsubordinated indebtedness. :

Terms of the Guarantee

Under the Guarantee, the Guarantor has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed to the
Noteholders, (i) the due and punctual payment of any and all amounts payable by the Issuer as
obligor in respect of the Notes and (ii) subject as provided below, the due and punctual performance
of any and all obligations of the Issuer with respect to physical delivery of non-cash consideration
deliverable by the Issuer in respect of the Notes, if applicable, when and as the same shall become
due and payable or when the same shall become due for performance pursuant to the Conditions and
to the extent provided in the Guarantee. As more fully set forth in the Guarantee, the Guarantor shall
at all times have the right, at its sole and unfettered discretion, to elect not to deliver or procure
delivery of the Entitlement to the holders of such Physical Delivery Notes when the same shall
become due and deliverable, but in lieu thereof to pay an amount in cash equal to the guaranteed
cash settlement amount calculated pursuant to the terms of, or as specified in, the relevant Final
Terms or Securities Note (the "Guaranteed Cash Settlement Amount"). Any payment of the
Guaranteed Cash Settlement Amount in lieu of the Entitlement shall constitute a complete discharge
of the Guarantor's obligations in respect of such Physical Delivery Notes.

Negative Pledge and Covenants of the Guarantor

The Guarantor will not, and it will not permit any Subsidiary at any time directly or indirectly to,
create, assume or incur any indebtedness for borrowed money secured by a pledge of, lien on or

. security interest in (any pledge, lien or security interest being hereinafter in this paragraph referred to

as a "lien") the Voting Stock of any Significant Subsidiary without making effective provision
whereby the Notes and Coupons appertaining thereto, if any (and, if the Guarantor so elects, any
other indebtedness ranking on a parity with the Guarantee), shall be secured equally and rateably
with such secured indebtedness so long as such other indebtedness shall be so secured; provided,
however, that the foregoing covenant shall not be applicable to liens for taxes or assessments or
governmental charges or levies not then due and delinquent or the validity of which is being
contested in good faith or which are less than US$5,000,000 in amount, liens created by or resulting
from any litigation or legal proceeding which is currently being contested in good faith by
appropriate proceedings or which involve claims of less than US$5,000,000, or deposits to secure (or
in lieu of) surety, stay, appeal or customs bonds; provided, further, that the foregoing shall not be
applicable to indebtedness for borrowed money secured by a lien on any shares of the Voting Stock
of any Person existing at the time such Person becomes a Significant Subsidiary, including
extensions, renewals and replacements of such indebtedness without increase in the amount thereof.

As used herein:

"Consolidated Net Worth" means consolidated assets minus consolidated liabilities as calculated in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

"Person" means any indi\}idual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, limited liability
company, joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated organisation or government or any agency or
political subdivision thereof.

"Significant Subsidiary" means any Subsidiary the Consolidated Net Worth of which constituted at
least 15 per cent. of the Consolidated Net Worth of the Guarantor as of the end of the most recently
completed fiscal year.

"Subsidiary" means any corporation of which at the time of determination the Guarantor and/or one
or more subsidiaries owns or controls directly or indirectly more than 50 per cent. of the shares of
Voting Stock.

"Voting Stock" means stock of the class or classes having general voting power under ordinary
circumstances to elect at least a majority of the board of directors, managers or trustees of such
person provided that, for purposes hereof, stock which carries only the right to vote conditionally on
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the happening of an event shall not be considered voting stock whether or not such event shall have
happened.

Redenomination

Redenomination

Where redenomination is specified in the applicable Final Terms as being applicable, the Issuer may,
without the consent of the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders on giving prior
notice to the Principal Paying Agent, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and at least 30 days'
prior notice to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 13, elect that, with effect from the
Redenomination Date specified in the notice, the Notes shall be redenominated in euro.

The election will have effect as follows:

()

(®

()

@

(e)

the Notes and the Receipts shall be deemed to be redenominated in euro in the denomination
of euro 0.01 with a nominal amount for each Note and Receipt equal to the nominal amount
of that Note or Receipt in the Specified Currency, converted into euro at the Established
Rate, provided that, if the Issuer determines, with the agreement of the Principal Paying
Agent, that the then market practice in respect of the redenomination in euro of
internationally offered securities is different from the provisions specified above, such
provisions shall be deemed to be amended so as to comply with such market practice and the
Issuer shall promptly notify the Noteholders, the stock exchange (if any) on which the Notes
may be listed and the Paying Agents of such deemed amendments;

save to the extent that an Exchange Notice has been given in accordance with paragraph (d)
below, the amount of interest due in respect of the Notes will be calculated by reference to
the aggregate nominal amount of Notes presented (or, as the case may be, in respect of
which Coupons are presented) for payment by the relevant holder and the amount of such
payment shall be rounded down to the nearest euro 0.01;

if definitive Notes are required to be issued after the Redenomination Date, they shall be
issued at the expense of the Issuer (i) in the case of Relevant Notes in the denomination of
euro 50,000 and/or such higher amounts as the Agent may determine and notify to the
Noteholders and any remaining amounts less than euro 50,000 shall be redeemed by the
Issuer and paid to the Noteholders in euro in accordance with Condition 5; and (ii) in the
case of Notes which are not Relevant Notes, in the denominations of euro 1,000, euro
10,000, euro 100,000 and (but only to the extent of any remaining amounts less than euro
1,000 or such smaller denominations as the Principal Paying Agent may approve) euro 0.01
and such other denominations as the Principal Paying Agent shall determine and notify to
the Noteholders;

if issued prior to the Redenomination Date, all unmatured Coupons denominated in the
Specified Currency (whether or not attached to the Notes) will become void with effect from
the date on which the Issuer gives notice (the "Exchange Notice") that replacement euro-
denominated Notes, Receipts and Coupons are available for exchange (provided that such
securities are so available) and no payments will be made in respect of them. The payment
obligations contained in any Notes and Receipts so issued will also become void on that date
although those Notes and Receipts will continue to constitute valid exchange obligations of
the Issuer. New euro-denominated Notes, Receipts and Coupons will be issued in exchange
for Notes, Receipts and Coupons denominated in the Specified Currency in such manner as
the Principal Paying Agent may specify and as shall be notified to the Noteholders in the
Exchange Notice. No Exchange Notice may be given less than 15 days prior to any date for
payment of principal or interest on the Notes;

after the Redenomination Date, all payments in respect of the Notes, the Receipts and the
Coupons, other than payments of interest in respect of periods commencing before the
Redenomination Date, will be made solely in euro as though references in the Notes to the
Specified Currency were to euro. Payments will be made in euro by credit or transfer to a
euro account (or any other account to which euro may be credited or transferred) specified
by the payee or, at the option of the payee, by a euro cheque;
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® if the Notes are Fixed Rate Notes and interest for any period ending on or after the
Redenomination Date is required to be calculated for a period ending other than on an
Interest Payment Date, it will be calculated:

@) in the case of the Notes represented by a Global Note, by applying the Rate of
’ Interest to the aggregate outstanding nominal amount of the Notes represented by
such Global Note; and '

(ii) in the case of definitive Notes, by applying the Rate of Interest to the Calculation
Amount,

and, in each case, multiplying such sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding
the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, half of any
such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market
convention. Where the Specified Denomination of a Fixed Rate Note in definitive form is a
"multiple of the Calculation Amount, the amount of interest payable in respect of such Fixed
Rate Note shall be the product of the amount (determined in the manner provided above) for
the Calculation Amount and the amount by which the Calculation Amount is multiplied to
reach the Specified Denomination, without any further rounding;

(2 if the Notes are Floating Rate Notes, the applicable Final Terms will specify any relevant
changes to the provisions relating to interest; and

(h)' such other changes shall be made to this Condition as the Issuer may decide, after
consultation with the Paying Agents, and as may be specified in the notice, to conform it to
conventions applicable to instruments denominated in euro.

Definitions
In the Terms and Conditions, the following expressions have the following meanings:

"Established Rate" means the rate for the conversion of the Specified Currency (including
compliance with rules relating to roundings in accordance with applicable European Community
regulations) into euro established by the Council of the European Union pursuant to Article 123 of
the Treaty; :

"euro" means the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and

" monetary union pursuant to the Treaty;

"Redenomination Date" means (in the case of interest bearing Notes) any date for payment of
interest under the Notes or (in the case of Zero Coupon Notes) any date, in each case specified by the
Issuer in the notice given to the Noteholders pursuant to Condition 3(4) above and which falls on or
after the date on which the country of the Specified Currency first participates in the third stage of
European economic and monetary union;

"Relevant Notes” means all Notes where the applicable Final Terms provide for a minimum
Specified Denomination in the Specified Currency which is equivalent to at least euro 50,000 and
which are admitted to trading on a regulated market in the European Economic Area; and

"Treaty" means the Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended.
Interest
Day Count Fraction

"Day Count Fraction" means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest in accordance
with this Condition 4:

(a) if "Actual/Actual ICMA)" is specified in the applicable Final Terms:

@) in the case of Notes where the number of days in the relevant period from (and
including) the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest
Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payment date (the "Accrual
Period") is equal to or shorter than the Determination Period during which the
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Accrual Period ends, the number of days in such Accrual Period divided by the
product of (1) the number of days in such Determination Period and (2) the number
of Determination Dates (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) that would occur
in one calendar year; or

(ii) in the case of Notes where the Accrual Period is longer than the Determination
Period during which the Accrual Period ends, the sum of:

(A) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the Determination
Period in which the Accrual Period begins divided by the product of (x) the
number of days in such Determination Period and (y) the number of
Determination Dates that would occur in one calendar year; and

B) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the next Determination
Period divided by the product of (x) the number of days in such
Determination Period and (y) the number of Determination Dates that would
occur in one calendar year;

if "Actual/Actual (ISDA)" or "Actual/Actual” is specified in the applicable Final Terms,
the actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that
Interest Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (1) the actual number of days in that portion of
the Interest Period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (2) the actual number of days in
that portion of the Interest Period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365);

if "Actual/365 (Fixed)" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of days
in the Interest Period divided by 365;

if "Actual/365 (Sterling)" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of
days in the Interest Period divided by 365 or, in the case of an Interest Payment Date falling
in a leap year, 366;

if "Actual/360" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of days in the
Interest Period divided by 360;

if "30/360 (ICMA)" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of days in the
period from (and including) the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest
Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payment date (such number of days
being calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months) divided by 360.

if "30/360", "360/360" or "Bond Basis" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the
number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as
follows:

[360x (Y, - Y)]+[30x(M, -M))]+(D, -D,)]
360

Day Count Fraction =

where:
"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last day
of the Interest Period falls;

"M," is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest
Period falls;

"M," is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following
the last day of the Interest Period falls;

"D," is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Interest Period, unless such
number is 31, in which case D, will be 30; and
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"D," is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day included
in the Interest Period, unless such number would be 31 and D, is greater than 29, in which
case D, will be 30;

if "30E/360" or "Eurobond Basis" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of
days in the Interest Period divided by 360, calculated on a formulg basis as follows:

[360x (Y, - Y)]+[30x (M, ~M,)]+ (D, -D))]
360

Day Count Fraction =

where:
"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

"Y," is the yeé.r, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last day
of the Interest Period falls;

"M," is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest
Period falls;

"M," is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following
the last day of the Interest Period falls_;

"D," is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Interest Period, unless such
number would be 31, in which case D, will be 30; and

"D," is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day included
in the Interest Period, unless such number would be 31, in which case D, will be 30; or

if "30E/360 (ISDA)" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of days in the
Interest Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as follows:

[360x(Y, ~Y1)]+[3Ox(M2 ~-M)]1+(D, -Dy)]
360

Day Count Fraction =

where:
"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last day
of the Interest Period falls;

"M," is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest
Period falls;

"M," is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following
the last day of the Interest Period falls;

"D," is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Interest Period, unless (i) that
day is the last day of February or (ii) such number would be 31, in which case D, will be 30;
and

"D," is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day included
in the Interest Period, unless (i) that day is the last day of February but not the Maturity Date
or (ii) such number would be 31, in which case D, will be 30.

In these Terms and Conditions:

"Determination Period" means each period from (and including) a Determination Date to (but
excluding) the next Determination Date (including, where either the Interest Commencement Date or
the final Interest Payment Date is not a Determination Date, the period commencing on the first
Determination Date prior to, and ending on the first Determination Date falling after, such date); and
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"sub-unit" means, with respect to any currency other than euro, the lowest amount of such currency
that is available as legal tender in the country of such currency and, with respect to euro, one cent.

Interest on Fixed Rate Notes

Each Fixed Rate Note bears interest from (and including) the Interest Commencement Date at the
rate(s) per annum equal to the Rate(s) of Interest. Interest will be payable in arrear on the Interest
Payment Date(s) in each year up to (and including) the Maturity Date.

If the Notes are in definitive form except as provided in the applicable Final Terms, the amount of
interest payable on each Interest Payment Date in respect of the Fixed Interest Period ending on (but
excluding) such date will amount to the Fixed Coupon Amount. Payments of interest on any Interest
Payment Date will, if so specified in the applicable Final Terms, amount to the Broken Amount so
specified.

As used in these Terms and Conditions, "Fixed Interest Period" means the period from (and
including) an Interest Payment Date (or the Interest Commencement Date) to (but excludmg) the
next (or first) Interest Payment Date.

Except in the case of Notes in definitive form where an applicable Fixed Coupon Amount or Broken
Amount is specified in the applicable Final Terms, interest shall be calculated in respect of any
period by applying the Rate of Interest to:

(a) in the case of Fixed Rate Notes which are represented by a Global Note, the aggregate
outstanding nominal amount of the Fixed Rate Notes represented by such Global Note or, if
they are Partly Paid Notes, the aggregate amount paid up; or

(b) in the case of Fixed Rate Notes in definitive form, the Calculation Amount;
and, in each case, multiplying such sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the

. resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit

being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention. Where the
Specified Denomination of a Fixed Rate Note in definitive form is a multiple of the Calculation
Amount, the amount of interest payable in respect of such Fixed Rate Note shall be the product of
the amount (determined in the manner provided above) for the Calculation Amount and the amount
by which the Calculation Amount is multiplied to reach the Specified Denomination, without any
further rounding.

Interest on Floating Rate Notes, Index Linked Interest Notes, Share Linked Interest Notes, Debt
Linked Interest Notes, GDR/ADR Linked Interest Notes, FX Linked Interest Notes, Commodity
Linked Interest Notes, Fund Linked Interest Notes and Inflation Linked Interest Notes

(a) Interest Payment Dates

Each Floating Rate Note, Index Linked Interest Note, Share Linked Interest Note, Debt
Linked Interest Note, GDR/ADR Linked Interest Note, FX Linked Interest Note,
Commodity Linked Interest Note, Fund Linked Interest Note and Inflation Linked Interest
Note bears interest on its outstanding nominal amount (or, if it is a Partly Paid Note, the
amount paid up) from (and including) the Interest Commencement Date and such interest
will be payable in arrear on either:

(i) the Specified Interest Payment Date(s) in each year specified in the applicable Final
Terms; or

(ii) if no Specified Interest Payment Date(s) is/are specified in the applicable Final
Terms, each date (each such date, together with each Specified Inter